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Performance Report 

Chair and Chief Executive’s statement 

 
The past 12 months for the Trust have been filled with organisational achievements, 
improvements, and the continuation of the financial recovery journey that we embarked 
upon two years ago. It has also been a time of consolidation to maintain the good progress 
made in patient care, treatment and experience, while overcoming challenges local to the 
organisation and nationally within the NHS. 
 
2017/18 marked our first full year as a Teaching Hospital, with some substantial 
achievements made in this period, reflecting our ongoing commitment to training, 
education and research.  Organisationally, we had always held the believe that becoming a 
Teaching Hospital would be of great benefit for our local communities, patients and staff 
and this has proven to be the case, with some fantastic feedback from learners and visitors 
alike.  
 
The positive feedback we have received from medical, nursing and allied health professional 
students has been extremely encouraging for the organisation, particularly as we look to the 
future. With partners we have developed new roles such as Trainee Assistant Practitioners 
and Trainee Advanced Clinical Practitioners, amongst others. Ensuring we cater for students 
and learners, providing them with meaningful placements, will help us to ensure that we are 
able to bridge the many workforce challenges we may face in the future.  
 
This year we have also been extremely proud of the excellent improvements we have seen 
in the quality of care provided to our patients; including improvements we have sustained 
for the fifth year in a row. Developments such as further reductions in severe avoidable 
pressure ulcers, a substantial improvement in our mortality rate, as well as an increase in 
our overall Emergency Department performance have been particularly pleasing.  
 
Following this theme, we can also describe good progress in terms of our financial 
performance. Thanks to our identified savings and drive towards improved ‘Efficiency and 
Effectiveness’, we have been able to meet our control total, ending the year £5.2m ahead of 
plan, finishing the financial year in a position of £11.253m deficit (for Foundation Trust). This 
position ensures we are on a sound footing for the challenges ahead in 2018/19.  
 
Throughout the year we have seen significant capital developments, totalling £7.279m, to 
improve patient care, services and facilities. The most notable of these has seen us enter 
into a long-term partnership with caterers, Sodexo. This has delivered much-needed 
investment in our catering services as well as new facilities and retail offerings.  
 
In September 2017, we launched our new Trust website (www.dbth.nhs.uk), ensuring that 
our patients can access the right information whenever they need it.  Replacing the previous 
site, this revamped online portal is far easier to navigate and access. While the site 
continues to develop, we are pleased to have received excellent feedback from both 
patients and staff.  
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Research and Development at the Trust has continued to grow, alongside our new Teaching 
Hospital status. With increased activity, our commitment to research has been 
acknowledged externally, with two notable studies, amongst many others, ‘The Age Gap 
Study’ and the ‘Genome Project’ being undertaken by our teams. The former is led by our 
newly-accredited Professor of Cancer Surgery, Lynda Wyld.    
 
Throughout 2017/18, we have continued to strengthen our links with health and care 
partners in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, working as part of the Working Together 
Vanguard to develop new care models. We are also an integral partner of the Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Accountable Care Partnerships and the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
Accountable Care System (ACS), and a key stakeholder in the Hospital Services Review. This 
commitment to local and regional partnership work is thanks to established, strong 
relationships with neighbouring trusts and clinical commissioning groups and our proven 
history of working together to improve health and care for our population. 
 
As ever, Trust staff and services have been shortlisted for a number of local, regional and 
national awards. These improvements and achievements have been made as a result of our 
collective commitment and hard work, and members of Team DBTH continue to amaze  us 
as they strive, each-and-every-year, to develop and innovative for the betterment of 
patients.  
 
We are pleased to once again reflect upon the efforts of our Occupational Health and 
Wellbeing Team as, for the second year running, our flu vaccination campaign became the 
first in the country to vaccinate over 75% of all front-line staff, administering the jab to over 
3,500 of our doctors and nurses in just five weeks. These efforts have since been recognised 
by NHS Employers.  
 
Despite the multitudes of positives, unfortunately we have continued to experience 
challenges in terms of recruitment, particularly within certain specialities in nursing and 
medicine. This issue was encountered no more acutely than with the Paediatric Ward (A3) 
at Bassetlaw Hospital, which, in January 2017, closed to admissions from 7pm each day due 
to workforce gaps in nursing staff and junior doctors. In October 2017, following a period of 
review, the decision was taken to extend this action for the foreseeable future, whilst 
further work is undertaken by partners in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ACS to identify 
possible regional solutions for issues such as recruitment. 
 
The past 12 months have also marked the completion of our first full year in post, with the 
organisation’s Executive Team refreshed and fully established as Moira Hardy took up the 
position of Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals (following a period 
as Acting Director). 
 
Finally, this year we redeveloped the Trust’s five year strategy. Our vision for 2017 to 2022 
was developed with substantial staff and stakeholder input. We believe that this will serve 
us well as we approach the next few years, which promise to be exciting, challenging and 
full of opportunities for the Trust.  
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We believe it is clear that our development as an organisation has been substantial as we 
reflect upon 2017/18 and preceding years. This is a testament to the hard-work and 
dedication of members of Team DBTH and speaks volumes for the talent, care and 
innovation we can count on amongst our colleagues. Regardless of any changes we have 
undergone, it has always remained our goal to ensure that patients are at the heart of 
everything we do and we believe that, despite increased demands and challenges, we have 
managed to achieve this once again throughout the past 12 months. 
 
We would like to thank staff, governors, members, volunteers, partner organisations, 
commissioners, regulators and everyone else who has worked with us over the past year. 
Their positive support has been overwhelming and has contributed to what has been 
another successful, as well as challenging, year for the Trust. 
 
The Annual Report and Quality Accounts set out openly and honestly, in detail, how we 
performed in 2017/18, and what we plan to achieve in 2018/19. We hope you enjoy reading 
them and once again thank you for continued support.  
 

 
Suzy Brain England OBE                                Richard Parker 
Chair                                                                 Chief Executive 
25 May 2018                                                   25 May 2018  
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Who we are and what we do 
 
As well as being an acute NHS Foundation Trust, hosting one of the busiest emergency 
services in the country, we are also one of only five teaching hospitals in the Yorkshire 
region, working closely with the University of Sheffield and Sheffield Hallam University.  As a 
Trust, we also maintain strong links with Health Education England, our local clinical 
commissioning groups in both Doncaster and Bassetlaw, as well as our regional partners in 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. 
 
We are fully licensed by NHS Improvement, and fully registered (without conditions) by the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC) to provide the following regulated activities and healthcare 
services: 
 

 Treatment of disease, disorder or injury 

 Nursing care 

 Surgical procedures 

 Maternity and midwifery services 

 Diagnostic and screening procedures 

 Family planning 

 Termination of pregnancies 

 Transport services, triage and medical advice provided remotely 

 Assessment or medical treatment for persons detained under the Mental Health Act 
1983. 
 

We provide the full range of local hospital services, some community services (including 
family planning and audiology) and some specialist tertiary services including vascular 
surgery. 
 
We serve a population of more than 420,000 across South Yorkshire, North Nottinghamshire 
and the surrounding areas and run three hospitals: 
 

 Doncaster Royal Infirmary (DRI) 

DRI is a large acute hospital with over 500 beds, a 24-hour Emergency Department 

(ED) and trauma unit status. In addition to the full range of district general hospital 

care, it also provides some specialist services. It has inpatient, day case and 

outpatient facilities. 

 

 Bassetlaw Hospital in Worksop (BH) 

BH is an acute hospital with over 170 beds, a 24-hour Emergency Department (ED) 

and the full range of district general hospital services, including a breast care unit 

and renal dialysis. It has inpatient, day case and outpatient facilities. 

 

 Montagu Hospital in Mexborough 
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Montagu is a small, non-acute hospital with over 50 inpatient beds for people who 

need further rehabilitation before they can be discharged. There is a nurse-led Minor 

Injuries Unit, open 9am to 9pm. It also has a day surgery unit, renal dialysis, a chronic 

pain management unit and a wide range of outpatient clinics. Montagu is the site of 

our Rehabilitation Centre, Clinical Simulation Centre and the base for the Abdominal 

Aortic Aneurysm screening programme. 

 
Additionally, we are registered to provide outpatient and other health services at Retford 
Hospital, including clinical therapies and medical imaging. Our site at the Chequer Road 
Clinic, in Doncaster town centre, offers audiology and breast screening services. We also 
provide some services in community settings across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. The 
rehabilitation beds we previously had at Tickhill Road Hospital in Doncaster transferred to 
Montagu Hospital in August 2012. However, we still provide outpatient care for older 
people there. 
 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals became one of the first 10 NHS trusts in the country to 
be awarded foundation trust status in 2004. This granted more freedom to act than a 
traditional NHS trust, although we are still very closely regulated and must comply with the 
same strict quality measures as non-foundation trusts. 
 
Our headquarters are at Doncaster Royal Infirmary: 
 
Chief Executive’s Office 
Doncaster Royal Infirmary 
Armthorpe Road 
Doncaster  
DN2 5LT 
 
Tel: 01302 366666 
 

Our vision, mission, values and strategy 

Over the past two years we have gone through substantial change as a Trust. As we came to 
the end of our previous five year strategy, which covered the period 2012 to 2017, we 
needed a future vision which reflected our position, as well as the environment we now find 
ourselves in as an NHS organisation. 
 
We have set out in our new strategy ‘Stronger Together’ our goals and ambitions for the 
next five years and how we intend to get there. 
 
In developing this vision, nearly 700 members of Team DBTH gave their thoughts, feedback 
and suggestions on this direction, through clinical governance meetings, our various 
communications channels, and by completing and returning feedback postcards. 
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Stronger Together outlines our plans for the future, working with stakeholders and 
partners. In turn, this will help us to implement our plans and facilitate high quality services 
for the communities we serve in Doncaster, Bassetlaw and beyond.  
 
The full strategy can be found at: https://www.dbth.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-are-
run/trust-strategy-2017-2022/ 
 
Vision 
As an Acute Teaching Hospitals Trust, and a leading partner in health and social care across 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, we will work with our patients, partners and the public to 
maintain and improve the delivery of high quality integrated care. 
 
Values 
Our values show WE CARE: 
 

 We always put the patient first. 

 Everyone counts – we treat each other with courtesy, honesty, respect and dignity. 

 Committed to quality and continuously improving patient experience. 

 Always caring and compassionate. 

 Responsible and accountable for our actions – taking pride in our work. 

 Encouraging and valuing our diverse staff and rewarding ability and innovation. 
 

Strategic objectives 
 

 Patients: Work with patients to continue to develop accessible, high quality and 

responsive services. 

 People: As a Teaching Hospital we are committed to continuously developing the 

skills, innovation and leadership of our staff to provide high quality, efficient and 

effective care.  

 Performance: We will ensure our services are high performing, developing and 

enhancing elective care facilities at Bassetlaw Hospital and Montagu Hospital and 

ensuring the appropriate capacity for increasing specialist and emergency care at 

Doncaster Royal Infirmary.  

 Partners: We will increase partnership working to benefit people and communities. 
 Prevention: Support the development of enhanced community based services, 

prevention and self-care. 

Overview of activity 

As an organisation, we have built upon the achievements of the previous years, improving 
some aspects of care, while maintaining the standards of others. We have also maintained a 
focus on ensuring we make progress in our financial performance. In 2017/18, we delivered 
much to be proud of; however challenges still remain ahead, which will require significant 
focus as we head into the next financial year. 
 

https://www.dbth.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-are-run/trust-strategy-2017-2022/
https://www.dbth.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-are-run/trust-strategy-2017-2022/
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In the following sections you will find a breakdown of the Trust’s patient safety key quality 
indicators, as outlined in our ‘Sign up to Safety’ plan (page 11), as well as innovation and 
development projects. There is also a section on our financial performance and key 
indicators (page 19) as well as a section outlining our operational performance and 
associated quality indicators (page 22), all of which are presented to the Board of Directors 
on a monthly, bi-monthly or quarterly basis, depending on the metric.  
 
A focus on patients: 
 
For the fifth year in a row, we continued to make excellent strides in patient safety, 
improving certain aspects of care or maintaining high standards in many others 
(complimenting substantial improvements implemented over the past number of years).  
 
Our patient safety key quality indicators show: 
 

 28 cases of Clostridium Difficile seen at the Trust, with our performance better than 
expected for the year 

 99.5% of patients received a falls assessment when admitted to one of our hospital 
sites, with our falls rate maintaining the same performance as 2016/17 

 One Care Group achieved an entire year without a severe avoidable pressure ulcer 
on their wards, with an 8.5% reduction across the Trust in severe pressure ulcers in 
the year  

 3.66 point decrease in our Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) since 
2016/17 

 30.1% increase in the number of serious incidents reported at the Trust, with an 
emphasis on members of staff being encouraged to report incidents to ensure risks 
are reduced and actions taken as necessary.  
 

As we draw to the end of the ‘Sign Up to Safety Plan’, the Trust has improved, or maintained 
the key quality indicators of the scheme.  Although the national Sign Up to Safety scheme 
has ended, the ambitions of the programme remain key to the Trust’s performance into the 
future.  
 
The 8.5% reduction in severe avoidable pressure ulcers at the Trust is a continuation of the 
progress made.   Our Musculoskeletal and Frailty Care Group which recently passed more 
than 365 days without occurrence of such an ulcer on their 14 wards. Confirming this 
success, the department was nominated for the Nursing Times’ Care of Older People award.  
 
These improvements have also been evidenced in a recent Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
Inpatient Survey. Completed by 1,250 patients who had been admitted to one of our sites in 
2016, the results show: 
 

 8.9/10 patients staying in our hospitals have confidence and trust in the doctors 
treating them 

 9/10 patients staying in our hospitals describe the hospital room or wards as clean 

 9.1/10 patients staying in our hospitals say they were offered a choice of food.  
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Patients are at the heart of everything we do as an organisation, and as such we have also 
seen substantial achievements within the care we provide. This development has been 
particularly potent within the area of ‘Person Centred Care’, resulting in the development of 
five successful initiatives: 
 
• An enhanced patient supervision and engagement policy focused upon daily 

assessment for all patients to identify and action tailored supervision 
• An ‘Enhanced Care Plan’ to guide appropriate and timely assessment of falls risk factors 

and targeting bespoke treatment and advice to aid prevention 
• Further embedding of the Enhanced Care Team to offer 24/7 provision of care and 

support at Doncaster and Bassetlaw  for patients requiring one-on-one supervision 
• A hand-held care record for patients who are in the last months of their life called ‘Me 

and My Plan’ in addition to other innovative palliative care schemes 
• An ‘Advance Care Planning’ initiative that gives patients the chance to have a greater 

voice within their treatment and hospital stay. 
 

To compliment this work, we have also seen the adoption of the national campaign 
#EndPJParalysis. A novel and engaging programme asking patients to become active 
participants within their own recovery, encouraging them to get up, dressed and out of bed 
when possible, taking part in everyday activities which can help with the rehabilitation 
process.  
 

The same team have also implemented the ‘Achieving Reliable Care’ approach – a system of 
patient care which lays out a clear visual plan for each patient, which is then communicated 
to staff directly involved in care. The areas which have piloted this way of working have seen 
an average reduction of 18% in length of stay, meaning patients are able to get the right 
care at the right time, ultimately meaning they can go home safe, sooner.  
 
Going beyond the call of normal care and treatment for our patients has remained a 
common theme throughout the year, exemplified particularly by our End of Life Care team. 
In charge of looking after people in the final stages of their life, this team has introduced a 
number of innovations over the past number of months and years, with 2017/18 seeing the 
successful implementation of ‘Butterfly Volunteers’.  
 
Supporting members of Team DBTH, the volunteers spend time with patients when families 
and friends find this helpful. They will sit and talk, run errands and also help a patient’s 
loved ones, giving them valuable time to be able to go home for a few hours, safe in the 
knowledge that their friend, parent, child or significant other is not alone. With around 15 
volunteers at the Trust currently, we intend to actively promote this scheme for the 
foreseeable future, ensuring our patients get the best care both at the start of life, as well as 
at the end.  
 
Following this theme, we have also seen patient experience improvements within our 
midwifery services at both Doncaster and Bassetlaw. The department has seen fantastic 
feedback from mums who have used the services, as highlighted by a CQC poll of 347 local 
parents. Far above the national average, 91% of DBTH mums said that the midwives listened 
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to them during their antenatal check-ups, with 93% confirming that their partner was 
encouraged to be involved in their care. 
 
Maternity at the Trust was also reaccredited by the Baby Friendly Initiative (BFI). This 
followed a visit by a UNICEF team in July who recognised the high and best practice 
standards in place within our service, while the team also saw the purchase of SIM-MOM, a 
realistic birthing simulator, helped by £80,000 of additional funding, which enables the 
further training of midwives, doctors and support staff. In 2017, the department oversaw 
one of its most successful recruitment campaigns, appointing 33 new midwives, which will 
help to support our expectant parents in Doncaster and Bassetlaw. 
 

Building on these successes elsewhere in the Trust, in October 2017, the Dialysis Unit at our 
Doncaster site was recognised as the number one in the region for patient support. Around 
8,000 patients took part in a survey by the UK Renal Registry, the findings of which showed 
that our unit was number one for patient support out of 40 participating facilities, coming 
second overall in terms of feedback. A landmark year for the service, in 2017 the team also 
celebrated a decade of patient care and treatment.  
 
Looking towards technology, our IT Team installed free Wi-Fi access for patients and visitors 
coming to our hospital sites. Available in time for Christmas 2017, this service means that 
patients spending a prolonged period of time with us can make use of services such as 
FaceTime and Skype, while also keeping them entertained by watching streaming platforms 
such as Netflix and Amazon Prime. 
 
Always looking to innovate, the IT team have had a busy year working with InTouch with 
Health to roll-out a number of self-check-in kiosks in outpatient areas, as well as migrating 
the organisation’s email system from an internal service to NHSMail 2, a much more secure 
environment in which to send messages and, potentially sensitive, patient information.  
 
This emphasis on technology has also been seen within our Emergency Department, and the 
introduction of Smart-ER. Currently being piloted at Doncaster Royal Infirmary, patients are 
asked to take a few minutes to complete a short, digital form within the department’s 
waiting room, describing their ailment or injury as well as providing general health details. 
By completing this process, the patient is able to explain the reason for their visit, while also 
disclosing previous medical problems, all of which becomes part of their medical record. By 
completing this step, this improves communication in the Emergency Department, aids 
clinicians and also uses the patient’s waiting time more productively, reducing overall 
waiting times. The scheme will be evaluated and enhanced throughout 2018/19. 
 
On a more challenging note, this year has seen issues with our telephony services, with 
some callers finding it hard to get through to our hospital sites. With over 75,000 calls 
received per week, our team have been working hard to find solutions to this particular 
problem, implementing priority lines for patients posing a clinical risk, securing additional 
funding to increase call-handling capacity, as well as doubling the number of phone-lines 
into the Trust in late March 2018.  
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Ensuring that patients receive the right information when they need it, our Communications 
and Engagement team have also overseen the development of a brand new Trust website, 
launched in September 2017. Replacing the older site, this revamped online portal is far 
easier to navigate, much more responsive to the needs of users and provides a range of 
tools to enable the team to communicate crucial messages to our public. 
 
Finally, our Orthotics team have worked with partners to introduce a revolutionary new 
brace, making use of this aid in the treatment of a young patient, ultimately preventing the 
need for surgery. Known as a Blount Knee Ankle Foot Orthoses (or KAFO for short), the 
innovative brace allows the wearer to undertake normal activity, without too much 
discomfort, while correcting leg alignment at the same time. Designed in America, this is 
one of the first cases in which the support has been used in the country. 
 
A focus on people: 
 
Achieving ‘Teaching Hospital’ status last year has facilitated us to make significant strides in 
our commitment to training, education and research, and this year has seen a further 
consolidation of this ambition. 
 
Evidencing this progress has been the feedback from our learners. Annually, our doctors-in-
training, health professionals and mentors take part in the General Medical Council’s (GMC) 
Training Survey, the results of which help us to monitor the quality of medical education. In 
2017, this engagement highlighted huge improvements for the Trust.  
 
Specialities which came in for significant praise included Acute Internal Medicine, General 
Internal Medicine and General Surgery, all of which scored as best in the region. In other 
areas, Endocrine, Diabetes and Gastroenterology were close runners-up in South Yorkshire 
with notable improvements seen in Emergency Medicine, Obstetrics and Gynaecology and 
Paediatrics. Additionally, Core Medical Training and Geriatric Medicine came in for 
particular praise, not only leading neighbouring organisations but placing us joint fourth 
nationally. 
 
These improvements were also reflected in the evaluations received from pre-registration 
students (Nurses, Midwives and Allied Health Professionals) on placement with the 
Trust.  These students reported an overall satisfaction rate for learners of 98% (taken from 
Practice Placement Quality Assurance), placing us amongst the best in the region. Signalling 
this good performance, one of our Education Leads was nominated for the Student Nursing 
Times’ Awards under the category for ‘Learner of the Year’, while once again our 
Knowledge, Library and Information Service achieved a perfect score of 100% for Health 
Education England’s (HEE) annual NHS library assessment, for the second year running. 
 
To aid in our education ambitions, 2017/18 also saw the official opening of The Hub at 
Bassetlaw Hospital. Formally the Management Suite, the new area was opened following a 
£30,000 refurbishment. This new purposely designed facility encompasses training, 
education and library services under one roof offering a seamless service for students, 
doctors-in-training and staff.  
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This focus has also meant an expansion in our partnership work, working with Health 
Education England, local colleges and Trusts in the creation of Assistant Practitioners. An 
award-winning 18 month pilot scheme, this role bridges the gap between Health Care 
Assistant and Registered Nurse, providing a clear path for those wishing to join the health 
service. With 27 trainees employed at the Trust, this scheme has been proven to be 
extremely successful, outlining our commitment to developing our future workforce, 
alongside similar work with apprentices, 103 of which were placed within our hospital sites 
this year.  
 
To further strengthen this good performance within education, training and research, we 
also made two related appointments. The first, Julie Bury, was appointed as Research Fellow 
in April 2017, and the second, Ms Lynda Wyld, a Consultant Breast Surgeon at DBTH, was 
awarded Professor of Cancer Surgery by the University of Sheffield. Both are the first to hold 
such titles and posts at the Trust.  
 
Capping this successful first year as a Teaching Hospital, our Research Team have further 
improved our development ambitions, overseeing an 12.8% increase in the number of 
patients taking part in portfolio clinical research across the Trust, surpassing our target of 
1,000 participant patients.  
 
While there have been some successes in recruitment to some areas, staffing for certain 
specialities, particularly within nursing but also within medical areas, has been challenging. 
A national issue rather than local, this has been felt no more acutely than within our 
Paediatrics department at Bassetlaw Hospital.  
 

Throughout 2016/17, the Trust faced significant challenges in staffing the Children’s Ward, 
known as A3, at Bassetlaw Hospital. Due to gaps in nursing staff and the junior doctor rota, 
the decision was taken in partnership with NHS Bassetlaw Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) to close the ward to overnight admissions until suitable staffing could be recruited 
and the service operated overnight safely. In October 2017, following a period of review, the 
decision was taken to extend this action for the foreseeable future whilst further work is 
undertaken by partners in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Accountable Care System (ACS) to 
identify possible regional solutions for issues such as recruitment. 
 
Despite challenges in terms of recruitment, in 2017/18 we remained focused on safe 
staffing levels and investments were made in-line with national recommendations from 
evidence based tools including Association of UK University Hospitals (AUKUH), e-panda, 
Baseline Emergency Staffing Tool (BEST) and Birth Rate plus. Over the year more than 99% 
of shifts identified were filled with the nursing workforce required to meet the needs of our 
patients, in accordance with the assessments. 
 
Moving from recruitment and looking at individual, as well as departmental achievements, 
one of our Ear, Nose and Throat (ENT) consultants, Mr Muhammad Shahed Quraishi was 
named Section President of the Royal Society of Medicine, London. This caps a particularly 
successful number of years for the Surgeon who became the first British Surgeon to receive 
visiting professor status within a medical university in China, as well as being awarded an 
OBE in the Queen’s Birthday Honours List for his outstanding work within the health service.   
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Finally, one of our doctors, who specialises in the treatment of eye disorders has developed 
an innovative free app that alerts primary care professionals to eye conditions, which if left 
untreated could lead to blindness. Mr Gerard Jayamanne, Consultant Ophthalmologist, has 
designed the ‘Red Eye Red Flags’ app to help GPs, Practice Nurses, Emergency Care 
Physicians and Opticians to spot the warning signs of the condition. Some red eye problems 
can cause loss of sight if treatment is not started promptly.  The new app identifies red flag 
features which should prompt primary care professionals to make urgent referrals to an eye 
specialist for treatment. 
 
A focus on performance: 
 
In 2017/18 the number of our patients waiting over four hours in our Emergency 
Department decreased by 0.1%, a small improvement over performance last year. While the 
national picture remains challenging, with increased attendances seen within services 
nationwide, we remain one of the best performing and consistent trusts in the region. 
 
In order to improve our four-hour access performance, we continue to work with our 
partners in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, as well as our commissioners in both Doncaster 
and Bassetlaw. Further improvements are also being planned and implemented within 
emergency care, such as the introduction of Smart-ER which will undoubtedly benefit 
patients and further develop our performance.  
 
Following the theme of sustained improvements, we have also completed another year of 
excellent mortality performance, with our Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR) 
reducing by 3.66 points from 91.08 last year to 87.42 this year (lower than the expected 
range) for the 12 month period.  
 
These positive developments come as we renew our focus to ensure we are making every 
penny count. Initiatives led by the our Efficiency and Effectiveness teams, Finance Team, as 
well as other partners throughout the Trust have led to £10.3m in cost-savings. Coupled 
with an emphasis on making sure we make every penny count, this has meant we have 
finished the year £5.2m ahead of plan.  
 
Particular successes have been seen in the reduction of temporary staffing, from a high of 
£1.476m in June 2017, to just £707,000 in January 2018. Improvements have also been seen 
within length of stay, safely reducing the amount of time patients have spent on wards and 
decreasing costs by around £840,000 in the past 12 months. At the same time, our 
procurement costs have been reviewed, delivering substantial savings to the Trust of around 
£1.08m. The latter was spearheaded by our Procurement department and to recognise this 
good work, the team were nominated for the Health Care Supplies Association annual 
awards, under the category of ‘Team of the Year’.  
 
None of this would have been possible without the support and hard work of members of 
Team DBTH. Care Groups have made significant cost-savings within their own areas and 
services, amounting to around £1.4m, with lots of ideas and plans in the pipeline, as we look 
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to work more efficiently and effectively well into the future, ensuring the Trust is on a 
sustainable footing.  
 
Aiding this position was an addition of £4.3m Sustainability and Transformation Funding 
(STF) due to positive financial performance. More detailed information is set out in the 
financial performance section on page 19. 
 
Finally, the Trust was visited by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) late in 2017, which 
completed both unannounced and ‘Well-Led’ inspections. During these visits, the direction 
of the revised strategy and development of the governance structures were recognised, 
with acknowledgement of our continued work-in-progress across the Trust. 
 
We expect to a final report to be published in quarter one of 2018. 
 
A focus on partners 
 
To improve facilities for our workforce, in October, the Trust partnered with Sodexo. The 
ten year contract will see a number of investments and improvements to our catering 
services which will also offer significant benefit to our patients, such as the introduction of a 
new electronic ordering system, the purchase of brand new and temperature-controlled 
meal trolleys, as well as the opening of a Costa Coffee, Subway and a number of refurbished 
eateries and kitchens at Doncaster Royal Infirmary.  
 
The Trust began work with Care1Bank, a collaborative NHS initiative consisting of five NHS 
trusts Barnsley Hospital, Chesterfield Royal Hospital, Lincolnshire and Goole and Sheffield 
Children’s Hospital. By taking part in this partnership, we will be able to draw from a 
collective bank of skilled staff, reducing our reliance on agency workers.  
 
This year has also seen further strengthening of our partnership work. In June 2017 the 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) was 
named as one of the first Accountable Care Systems (ACS) in the country. Known as Health 
and Care Working Together in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, the ACS is a partnership of 25 
organisations responsible for looking after the health and care of the 1.5 million people 
living in Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield.  
 
In 2017/18, a number work streams were identified as priorities for the ACS: Mental Health 
and Learning Disabilities, Urgent and Emergency Care, Primary and Community Care, 
Cancer, Maternity and Children, Elective and Diagnostic and Healthy Lives, Living Well and 
Prevention. Additional work streams are set for further planning and development in 
2018/19.   
 
The ACS has helped secure additional funding into South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw health and 
care services thanks to the Government pledging additional funding for capital and 
transformation schemes. For the Trust, this is likely to lead to the purchase of a new CT 
scanner and  an expansion in capacity at Doncaster Royal Infirmary, to improve stroke as 
well as cancer care.  
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One of the biggest pieces of work commenced in 2017/18 by the ACS was a review of all 
acute hospital services. The review looks at how current hospital services are provided and 
what needs to happen to future proof them, taking into account local and national issues 
such as rising demand, workforce and resource challenges and consistently delivering 
quality standards. Related to this work, the Trust is also a key organisation within the 
Working Together Partnership Vanguard, a group which has now saved over £3.6m through 
joined-up procurement exercises.  
 
A focus on Prevention 
 
2017/18 has seen a significant focus on prevention through innovation, exploring new 
technologies to improve our patient care, treatment and experience. Funded by the Fred 
and Ann Green Legacy, in May 2017 we purchased FilmArray, a specialist piece of 
equipment which can diagnose causes of meningitis and encephalitis with an hour. One of 
the few Trusts to have such technology, FilmArray is a further example of our commitment 
to ensuring patients receive the best possible care.  
 
We have also seen further focus on research, with an emphasis on future prevention of 
disease and illness, with two notable projects currently underway at the Trust. The first, led 
by Professor Lynda Wyld, looks to reduce the difference in the outcomes of breast cancer 
treatment which is often seen between older and younger women. Called the ‘Age Gap 
Study’ over 3,500 patients are taking part across the country, with findings to be used to 
look at how treatment can become more effective for patients. 
 
The second scheme, known as the ‘Genome Project’ marks the beginning of the Trust’s work 
towards the national initiative, looking to maximise the health communities’ understanding 
of genomics and their potential benefit when tailoring care and treatment to individuals. 
The project will focus on patients with a rare disease and their families and patients with 
cancer. As a Trust, we are pleased to be working as a partner within the project, with 
specialties, Breast, Urology and Haematology, taking part and patients from our hospitals 
consenting for samples to be part of the sequencing study. 
 
Looking towards the challenging winter period, our Communications and Engagement team 
worked alongside our Occupational Health and Wellbeing department in delivering another 
successful flu vaccination campaign. Thanks to the tireless efforts of our vaccinators, over 
3,500 flu jabs were administered to members of Team DBTH in just five weeks, becoming 
the first trust in the country to vaccinate over 75% frontline workers, an accolade achieved 
for the second year running. With a large amount of (internal) advertising and publicity 
involved in this successful campaign, all those involved were nominated for NHS England’s 
Flu Fighter annual awards in the category of ‘Social and Digital Media’. 
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Financial performance  
 

NHS Improvement has directed that Foundation Trusts’ financial statements should meet 
the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT 
ARM), as agreed with HM Treasury.   
 
Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2017/18 FT ARM and 
follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial 
Reporting Manual to the extent to which they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS 
foundation trusts. Accounting policies are applied consistently in dealing with items 
considered material in relation to the accounts. 
 
This is the fourth year that the accounts of the Trust’s charitable funds have been 
consolidated with the accounts of the Foundation Trust, to produce ‘group’ accounts (in-line 
with the guidance above). The comments below refer to the financial performance of the 
Foundation Trust, with a separate annual report for the Charity being published at a later 
date. 
 
2017/18 in review 
 
Throughout the year, our Finance and Efficiency and Effectiveness teams have worked with 
our staff to deliver savings of £10.3m for the Trust, reaching a control total of £16.4m as 
agreed upon with NHS Improvement, ending the year £5.2m ahead of plan. 
 
A summary of our financial performance (set out in more detail in the annual accounts) is as 
follows: 
 
Savings 

We delivered cost savings of £10.3m for 2017/18 with a target of savings set at £17.8m for 
2018/19. 
 

Working capital  

Cash balances held at 31 March 2018 were £11.866m. Total loans received during 2017/18 
were £15.178m. The Trust now has £89.371m of loans.  

 

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) dividend 

A charge of 3.5% of average relevant net assets is payable to the Department of Health as 
PDC dividend, reflecting the forecast cost of the capital we used. A dividend of £2.868m was 
payable during 2017/18. 

 

Income 

We received a total of £387m income in 2017/18, which is growth of 0.26% from the 
previous year. 
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Our main sources of income continue to be NHS Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group 
and NHS Bassetlaw Clinical Commissioning Group, as shown in the pie chart: 
 

 

 

Revenue expenditure 

During the year the Foundation Trust spent a total of £394m. As in previous years, the vast 
majority of our expenditure is on pay budgets (staffing) at £259m, with nursing and medical 
staff continuing to be our biggest areas of expenditure. For 2017/18 an increased proportion 
of our staffing spend was on non-substantive staff, reflecting both the national challenges in 
recruiting in a range of key areas, and the in-year increase in staffing requirements in 
response to the growth in demand. 
 

 

 

Sources of Income 
Doncaster CCG 51%

Bassetlaw CCG 17%

Rotherham CCG 3%

Barnsley CCG 2%

NHS England 8%

Oter CCGs 5%

National STF funding 5%

Education and training 3%

NHS Trusts 4%

Other Income 4%

Revenue Expenditure 

Staff Costs 65%

Drugs 9%

Clinical Supplies 7%

Clinical Insurance 5%

Depreciation 2%

Subcontracting of
healthcare services 4%
Other expenditure 8%
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Capital expenditure 

Expenditure on larger items with a life of more than one year, typically buildings and 
equipment, was £7.279m of which £257k was funded by charitable donations. The major 
capital schemes in year were: 
 

 Fire and Electrical Enhancements: £2.127m 

 Emergency Department Front Door Service at Doncaster Royal Infirmary and 

Bassetlaw Hospital: £1.361m 

 Medical Equipment Replacement Programme: £1.703m 

 IT Infrastructure and Improvement Programme: £1.974m. 
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Operational Performance 

Area Indicator Standard 
Q1 
17/18 

Q2 
17/18 

Q3 
17/18 

Q4 17/18 YTD 

                

Sa
fe

ty
 Clostridium 

Difficile 
40 Full 
Year 

7 7 8 4 28 

MRSA  0 1 0 1 0 2 

                

Q
u

al
it

y 

31 day wait for 
second or 
subsequent 
treatment: 
surgery 

94.00% 100% 100% 100% 97.8% 99.4% 

31 day wait for 
second or 
subsequent 
treatment: anti-
cancer drug 
treatments 

98.00% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

31 day wait for 
second or 
subsequent 
treatment: 
radiotherapy 

94.00% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

62 day wait for 
first treatment 
from urgent GP 
referral to 
treatment 

85.00% 85.1% 84.8% 87.2% 86.7% 85.9% 

62 day wait for 
first treatment 
from consultant 
screening 
service referral 

90.00% 96.3% 94.1% 92% 92.4% 93.7% 

31 day wait for 
diagnosis to first 
treatment- all 
cancers 

96.00% 98.9% 98.9% 100% 98.8% 99.2% 

Two week wait 
from referral to 
date first seen: 
all urgent 
cancer referrals 
(cancer 
suspected) 

93.00% 90.6% 89.9% 93.1% 78.6% 89.2% 
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Green: Performance achieved 
Orange: Performance close to achievement 
Red: Performance not achieved 
 
Four hour access target 
 
Although we failed to achieve the four hour access target, 2017/18 saw the Trust 
outperform many of the trusts in the region and we were amongst the best performing 
organisations in the country.  
 
Despite seeing very high attendances, the Trust managed to stay above 90% for all quarters 
of the year, with particularly strong performance in March, achieving 93.3% against the 
access target, making us 13th best performing in the country which has been undoubtedly 
due to all the staff working extremely hard in our emergency services pathways.  
 
As reflects the national picture, we have faced a difficult winter period with increased 
demands often from older more ill patients, a position not unique to this Trust. A number of 
innovations have been put in place over the years to mitigate these challenges, and we 
expect the introduction of Smart-ER will further increase our Emergency Department 
performance in the coming year.  
 
Despite missing the target, we have still managed a strong performance throughout the 
year  
 

Two week wait 
from referral to 
date first seen: 
symptomatic 
breast patients 
(cancer not 
initially 
suspected) 

93% 92.5% 90.6% 94.3% 91.1% 92.1% 

A&E: Maximum 
waiting time of 
four hours from 
arrival/ 
admission/ 
transfer/ 
discharge 

95.00% 91.5% 93.5 90.9% 90% 91.5% 

Maximum time 
of 18 weeks 
from point of 
referral to 
treatment- 
incomplete 
pathway 

92.00% 90.9% 89.5% 89.6% 89.1% 89.1% 
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18 week Referral to Treatment (RTT) targets 
 
While performing above the national average, we are below the target set for RTT. In order 
to address this issue, weekly meetings have been held throughout the year in order to steer 
performance levels back in-line with our commissioned activity and targets. 
 
To aid in this ambition, we have purchased a modelling tool called Gooroo to more 
accurately model activity requirements in the new financial year.  
 
Diagnostic waits 
 
The overall position achieved was 98.4%, a slight deterioration from last year with the 
biggest challenges seen in Audiology. Plans are in place to improve this service in the next 
financial year.  
 
Cancer targets 
 
For 2017/18, we have achieved the 62 day wait for first treatment, delivering 93.7%. We 
missed our two-week referral rates, achieving 89.2% instead of the required 93%, while all 
31 day targets were achieved.  
 
To help achieve this target in the future, the Trust has transitioned all two week referrals to 
the Electronic Referral System, with all GP practices within Doncaster and Bassetlaw moved 
to this method for 2018/19.  
 
Other quality targets, including internal targets 
 
Details of our performance against our quality targets can be found in our Quality Account 
on page 107.  
 

Summary of awards and accolades  
 
Members of Team DBTH work incredibly hard to continuously improve our services and 
deliver the best possible care for our patients. It was no surprise that a number of them 
received external acknowledgment for their hard work by being shortlisted for awards or 
noted for recognition in 2017/18 including: 
 
April 2017 
The Renal Unit at Doncaster Royal Infirmary celebrated 10 years of service and was ranked 
first for patient support and second for overall experience in a survey conducted by UK 
Renal Registry. 
 
May 2017 
The Trust’s Procurement team in partnership with Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust were 
awarded level one in NHS Procurement and Commercial Standards. The accreditation 
recognises that both organisations have the ‘awareness and building blocks in place’ to 
achieve the highest standards of procurement and get the best deal for the local NHS. 
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June 2017 
Mr Muhammad Shahed Quraishi, a Consultant Ear, Nose and Throat (ENT) Surgeon at the 
Trust, was appointed Order of the British Empire (OBE) for the care and treatment he has 
provided to the many patients he has seen in the 30 years he has spent working in the NHS, 
16 at DBTH. 
 
July 2017 
As the first Trust in the country to vaccinate over 75% of all front-line staff against the flu in 
2016/17, we were featured in an NHS Employers’ case-study highlighting best practice for 
impressing on staff the importance of the jab. 
 
Mr Muhammad Shahed Quraishi is named Section President of the Royal Society of 
Medicine, London and will formally take up this positon 2 November 2018 to the section of 
Laryngology and Rhinology.  
 
The 2017/18 General Medical Council surveys were released this month, reflecting positive 
results for the Trust’s  Acute Internal Medicine, General Internal Medicine and General 
Surgery, all of which have scored as best in the region. Other areas, Endocrine, Diabetes and 
Gastroenterology, were second best in South Yorkshire with notable improvements in 
Emergency Medicine, Obstetrics and Gynaecology and Paediatrics. Additionally, Core 
Medical Training and Geriatric medicine came in for particular praise, not only leading 
neighbouring organisations but being placed joint fourth nationally. 
 
Finally, this month also saw the Trust awarded ‘gold’ for ‘Wellbeing at Work’ from 
Nottinghamshire County Council. 
 

August 2017 
One of our consultants at Doncaster Royal Infirmary was selected for a teaching award for 
the third time. The Medical School at the University of Sheffield awarded Juan Ballesteros, 
Consultant in Emergency Medicine, the Clinical Teaching Award after students at the 
medical school were asked to nominate individuals who provided high quality teaching, 
inspiring and supporting them throughout their learning. 
 

September 2017 
Thanks to our focus on patient centred care, the Trust was nominated for the Nursing 
Times’ award for ‘Care of Older People’. This comes as we delivered substantial 
improvements, such as a reduction of over 20 per cent in falls since 2014, with a further 76 
per cent reduction in these incidents resulting in serious harm. 
 
October 2017 
Following a successful campaign led by the Health and Wellbeing team, we became the first 
acute Trust in the country to vaccinate over 75% of our front-line staff against flu in the 
2017/18 programme. 
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November 2017 
Our MSK and Frailty Care Group mark an entire year without incidence of a single severe, 
avoidable hospital acquired pressure ulcer, with one ward going more than 1,000 days.  
 
December 2017 
The Trust’s Knowledge, Library and Information Service are awarded a perfect score of 100% 
for Health Education England’s annual NHS Library Assessment for the second year running.  
 
February 2018 
New mothers praised our Maternity services in an annual survey, sharing positive 
experiences during antenatal, labour and postnatal care. This national survey by the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) was undertaken to gain an insight into women’s experiences of 
maternity services across England and highlights the Trust as having scored significantly 
better than the national average. 
 
Ms Lynda Wyld was awarded the title ‘Professor of Cancer Surgery’ by the University of 
Sheffield for her achievements in health and education, the first person to hold such a 
position at the Trust.  
 
March 2018 
The Trust’s flu vaccination campaign is nominated for NHS Employers’ annual Flu Fighter 
Awards in the category of ‘Digital and Social Media’. 
 
Aimi Dillon, Education Lead at the Trust, is nominated for the Student Nursing Times Awards 
under the category of ‘Learner of the Year’.  
 
Melissa Simpson, the Doncaster Children’s Services Trust lead on the multi-agency 
Pregnancy Liaison Meeting (PLM) team and the scheme’s founder, and Debbie Rees-Pollard, 
midwife at Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals (DBTH), scoop the Partnership 
Working title at the national Royal College of Midwives’ 2018 awards. 
 

Social, community and human rights 
 
Communications and Engagement 
 
Having an open and honest approach to keeping patients, the public, GPs, staff, governors 
and members informed about key news and developments is very important to us. Through 
a wide variety of mediums, including social media, members’ events and the local press, we 
look to genuinely engage with people, listen to their views, suggestions and feedback, and 
work with them to keep improving the care we provide: 
 
 

 Publicising public health messages, key news and developments and pursuing 

positive working relationships with the media. Throughout 2017/18 the Trust once 

again substantially increased its output via traditional and social media to positive 

effect 



29 
 

 Consulting with patients, the public and partner organisations about our strategies 

and developments where appropriate – typified within the development of our new 

Trust strategy 2017 to 2022, demonstrating the benefits of a successful campaign. 

 Being honest about mistakes, both with patients/next of kin and with external 

bodies where appropriate. We have continued to be open and transparent in 

regards to our financial position, publishing a number of staff bulletins as to our 

progress as well as placing columns in local media 

 Learning from and responding to feedback, whether it is provided directly to us or 

via websites like Patient Opinion and NHS Choices 

 Responding to Freedom of Information (FOI) requests 

 Providing patient and service users with high quality information, for example about 

health conditions and treatment 

 Keeping key stakeholders, including governors, members, staff and GPs informed 

through regular briefings, publications and member events 

 Holding our Board of Directors meetings and Council of Governors meetings in public 

 Publicising our complaints procedure. 

 
Our work delivering NHS England’s screening programmes (abdominal aortic aneurism, 
breast cancer, diabetic eye and cervical cancer) has continued, strengthening our 
community engagement across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, developing relationships 
with key partners and community leaders in Doncaster, Worksop and wider in the region. 
 
We continue to improve our community engagement through education. Outreach visits to 
local schools, conducted by the Training and Education Team, have provided school pupils 
with an understanding of the services provided by the Trust, how they can manage their 
own health and also to showcase career opportunities within the NHS, which was expanding 
with the Trust’s Ambassador Programme. This work has also included work experience 
placements.  
 
In March, the Trust supported Keep Britain Tidy, with team members encouraged to keep 
their department and area tidy, while senior executives and governors got involved, picking 
litter around the grounds.  
 
Volunteers 

We have over 250 volunteers in our hospitals who volunteer across a range of services 
including assisting patients at mealtimes, escorting patients and visitors around the hospital, 
assisting in clinics and working in our coffee shop. Many more opportunities are available 
and we strive to expand these opportunities each year.  
 
Volunteers from external agencies including Royal Voluntary Service, the League of Friends, 
Aurora and the Montagu Hospital Comforts Fund also provide important services that 
enhance our patients’ hospital experience.  
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Charitable funds and fundraising 

Charitable and legacy funds such as the Montagu Hospital Comforts Fund, the Bassetlaw 
Hospital League of Friends and the Fred and Ann Green Legacy enable us to provide items or 
services that benefit patients and staff but which are additional to those that the NHS 
should reasonably provide. 
 
Countless individuals, many of them patients or their relatives have fundraised for the 
Trust’s charitable funds or bequeathed legacies. We are very touched by their generosity, 
and that of the many companies and organisations that have made donations to benefit 
patient care in 2017/18. 
 
The next financial year will mark the official launch of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals Charity.   

 
Sustainable Development Plan 
 
Our commitments to sustainable environments and energy saving continue to form part of 
our overall Trust strategy, and we are currently developing a Sustainable Development Plan 
as identified within our revised Estates and Facilities Strategy. 
 
This means that as a Trust we will aim to reduce our carbon footprint further, building on 
existing efficiency measures such as cross-site shuttle services aimed at reducing grey 
mileage emissions, the use of Combined Heat and Power plants (CHP) at our Doncaster and 
Montagu sites, and an ongoing capital investment programme which has led to an increased 
use of energy efficient plant and equipment across Trust properties.   
 
Further efficiency measures are to be developed in-line with the Lord Carter supported 
guidance document ‘Implementing Energy Strategies in Healthcare Estates: A Best Practice 
Guide to the Model Hospital’, published by the Carbon Energy Fund with support from 
organisations such as HEFMA, IHEEM and NHS Improvement.   
 
The Trust’s CHP plants at  DRI and Montagu Hospital have the potential to generate over 1.2 
megawatts of electrical energy, and provide efficiency by utilising the heat produced by the 
CHP engine to support the generation of steam, hot water and heating, thus reducing the 
total energy required to provide these services at each site.  
 
The reportable carbon emission of the Trust has demonstrated a continued downward trend 
for the last four years, resulting in a reduced Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) cost to 
the Trust. The most recent projection provided at month nine (December 2017) for the 
2017/18 CRC reporting period indicates that this trend is likely to continue, with carbon 
emissions having reduced by 9% in comparison to the same period last year. Similarly, 
emissions associated with combustion on site at DRI, which qualify for the EU Emissions 
Trading Scheme (EUETS), were found to have fallen by 4% in comparison to the previous 
year.  
 

Key developments since the end of 2017/18 



31 
 

 

The Trust said goodbye to one Board member at the end of March 2018 and welcomed two 
others.  John Parker left the organisation on 31 March as a Non-Executive Director.  Two 
new additions to the Board, Pat Drake and Kath Smart, began their tenure as Non-Executive 
Directors on 1 April 2018.  
 
The Trust is anticipating the publication of its Care Quality Commission (CQC) results in 
addition to being accepted into NHS Improvement’s LEAN programme.  The focus of this 
programme will be on delivering results patients will see and feel. This will be using quality 
and improvement, as well as ‘lean’ methods to empower staff and patients to improve their 
own processes and ways of working, and to improve the care we provide. Previous trusts 
who have been involved in similar programmes have seen significant improvements in their 
patient feedback, CQC ratings and in their staff engagement. 
 
In May, we received the Hospital Services Review. Like our partners across the South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw region, we will be considering its recommendations with our Board 
of Directors, as well as with key health organisations in the area.  
 

Principal risks and uncertainties and factors affecting future performance 
 
The principal risks against achievement of the Trust’s strategic objectives are as highlighted 
below:  
 
Delivering our financial plan, cost reduction programme and Efficiency and Effectiveness 
Plans (EEP) 
 
Whilst the Trust has gone through an extensive and detailed budget setting process, the 
organisation has a number of risks which may affect the delivery of this budget. This 
includes £17.8m of effectiveness and efficiency savings which equates to around 4.5% of our 
total budget.   
 

There is also a variance between the Trust’s financial plan and what commissioners feel they 

are able to pay. Whilst there are plans across the health community aimed at reducing 

demand for acute services, demand predictions for demographic growth not included in 

contracts by commissioners may result in adverse variance in the financial performance of 

the Trust.  

 
Ensuring that appropriate estates infrastructure is in place to deliver services and inability 
to meet Trust’s need for capital investment 
 
A significant proportion of the Trust’s estate dates back to the 1960s and requires 
investment to ensure that we are able to meet our legal requirements and maintain a safe 
environment in which to care for our patients.  External reports have highlighted necessary 
remedial action to ensure the building is compliant with existing regulations and additional 
surveys have brought the main issues into corporate focus.   
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The Grenfell Tower tragedy has increased the emphasis on ensuring public buildings are 
meeting changed evacuation strategies and in line with fire safety regulations, with 
additional requirements put in place over and above the significant investment the Trust 
was already making in respect of fire safety compliance. 
 
In 2017/18, following the specific Turnaround requirements the Trust reinstated its 
governance framework for overseeing capital works, and the estates capital programme for 
2018/19 is based upon maintaining and improving the safety of the buildings and our 
environments, and in so doing, supporting patient safety. Nevertheless, the availability of 
capital funds to support improvements remains an ongoing challenge. 
 
Availability of workforce and addressing the effects of agency caps 
 
Like many trusts nation-wide this year we have faced staffing challenges. In order to address 
these issues, we are looking at new and innovative programmes to fill these workforce gaps, 
promoting our teaching hospital status to aid our recruitment processes. We continue to 
strive to improve the use of locums and our bank workforce, ensuring we utilise our 
temporary workforce in a cost effective and efficient way. 
 
A key challenge for 2018/19 is to recruit, retain and develop sufficient nursing and other 
clinical staff to ensure safe staffing levels.  We are using both national and local evidence to 
define evidence-based staffing levels for an increasingly wide range of staff.  
 
The governance structures are in place to support the active reduction of our agency 
spending in line with the identified price caps and to minimise our reliance on agency and 
locum. This active management approach to our workforce has already achieved 
improvements in the relative use of agency nurses.   
 

Going Concern 

The Department of Health requires Foundation Trusts to decide the going concern status on 
an annual basis, the going concern principle being the assumption that the entity will remain 
in business for the foreseeable future. The Board of Directors considered this at their 
meeting on 22 May 2018.  
 
The Foundation Trust reported a deficit financial position of £11.253m the year along with 
current liabilities exceeding current assets by £5.5m. The Board recognised a level of 
material uncertainty, with the key issues being the Trust’s reliance on additional cash 
resource provided by NHS Improvement. The Trust has submitted a financial plan for 
2018/19 that assumes the continuation of this support.  
 
However, the Board agreed that the Trust was a going concern on the basis of the following: 
 

 Continuing support from local commissioners - the Trust currently has a contract in 

place to 31st March 2019. 

 

 The Trust ended the year with c. £12m cash in the bank. 
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 Within the proposals for the local ICS the Trust is expecting to become the second 

major emergency centre in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw with inward investment 

to support the additional services once final decisions are made e.g. the successful 

bid for additional CT facilities to support this show the intent to support the site 

going forward. 

 

 The Trust is in discussions with CCGs to repatriate work to its sites. 

 

 Whilst no formal undertaking has been received from NHSI to continue to provide 

additional liquidity on an ongoing basis, all planning assumptions that the Trust 

operates under imply this will be forthcoming. 

 

 The Trust has delivered a year-end financial outcome ahead of its agreed control 

total for 2017/18 and plans to achieve the lower target assigned for 2018/19. 

 

 The NHSI Board have agreed to lift all licence conditions on the Trust following the 

second year of financial delivery ahead of plan. 

 
 

 
 
 
Richard Parker 
Chief Executive (acting in his capacity as Accounting Officer) 
25 May 2018 
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Accountability Report 
 
Directors Report 
 

Composition of the Board 
 
During 2017/18, the following persons were members of the Board of Directors: 
 

Name Position Term of 
office 

Term of office 
from 

Attendance 
at Board 
meetings 

Suzy  Brain England Chair of the Board  3 years 1.1 2017 12 of 12 

Alan Armstrong Non-executive Director  
(Senior Independent Director) 

2 years 1.10.2016 
 

11 of 12 

Martin McAreavey Non-executive Director 
(resigned 27 September 2017) 

3 years 1.3.2015 5 of 6 

John Parker Non-executive Director  (left the 
Trust 31 March 2018) 

2 years 1.4.2016 10 of 12 

Linn Phipps Non-executive Director  3 years 1.1.2017 10 of 12 

Neil Rhodes Non-executive Director 3 years 1.4.2017 12 of 12 

Philippe Serna Non-executive Director  3 years 1.7.2015 8 of 12 

Richard Parker Chief Executive  12 of 12 

Karen Barnard Director of People and Organisational Development  12 of 12 

Moira Hardy Acting Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Quality (until 
31 December 2017) and Director of Nursing, Midwifery 
and Allied Health Professionals (from 1 January 2018) 

12 of 12 

David Purdue Chief Operating Officer (and Deputy Chief Executive from 
1 January 2018) 

12 of 12 

Jon Sargeant Director of Finance  11 of 12 

Mr Sewa Singh Medical Director 12 of 12 

 
All Non-executive Directors are considered to be independent, meeting the criteria for 
independence as laid out in NHS Improvement’s Code of Governance.  
 
Non-executive Directors are appointed and removed by the Council of Governors, while 
Executive Directors are appointed and removed by the Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee of the Board of Directors. 
 
The Chair of the Board’s other main commitments are as Chair of Keep Britain Tidy and 
Derwent Living and as a Lay Representative for Health Education England: Yorkshire and 
Humber.  In 2017/18, she took on an additional responsibility as an Acute Trust Chair on the 
board of NHS Providers. 
 

Balance of the Board 

 

Non-executive Directors are appointed to bring particular skills to the Board, ensuring the 
balance, completeness and appropriateness of the Board membership.  
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The Board of Directors considers the balance and breadth of skills and experience of its 

members to be appropriate to the requirements of the Trust.  The skill mix of the Board was 

considered by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee of the Council of Governors 

during 2017/18 as part of Non-executive Director appointments processes when it was 

agreed that all four non-executive roles would proceed to open competition.  Two new non-

executive directors were appointed in 2017/18.  Both are due to fill vacancies from 1 April 

2018. 

Brief details of all Directors who served during 2017/18 are as follows: 
 
Chair 
 

Suzy Brain England OBE C.Dir is an experienced board chair, non-executive director, 
consultant, mentor and counsellor. Suzy is currently the Chair of Derwent Living Housing 
Association, Chair and Trustee of Keep Britain Tidy, Lay Representative for Health Education 
England's doctor training and recruitment in Yorkshire, a member of the Institute of 
Directors' Accreditation and Standards Committee, and founder of Cloud Talking mentoring 
services. Suzy has a wealth of experience in chairing and serving on boards in a variety of 
sectors including health, housing, enterprise and finance.  She is a former Chair of Kirklees 
Community Healthcare Services, former Non-executive Director and Acting Chair of Mid-
Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and was a Non-executive Director at Barnsley 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. She was awarded an OBE for her work as Chair of the 
Department of Work and Pensions Decision Making Standards Committee.  Suzy began her 
career as a journalist and in her executive roles she has been CEO of The Talent Foundation, 
the Earth Centre in South Yorkshire and a Director in the Central London Training and 
Enterprise Council.  
 
Non-Executive Directors 

 
Alan Armstrong has spent most of his career working in personnel and human resources in 
industry. In 1996, he joined NSK Europe Ltd, a Japanese-owned firm that produces bearings 
for the automotive and general industrial markets, as their Human Resources Manager and 
rose to Board-level positions.  He was their European HR Director from 2010 until May 2013. 
Alan now runs his own consultancy firm focusing on corporate HR strategy development, 
talent management, employee engagement and facilitating continuous improvement within 
organisations. He is also a member of the Institute of Directors and spent two years as a 
Non-executive Director of Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire Chamber of Commerce. 

Martin McAreavey (resigned 27 September 2017) left Northern Ireland when he was 18 to 
train in Medicine and General Medical Practice in Scotland. In 1999 he moved with his 
family to Yorkshire to train in Public Health Medicine. Since qualifying as a Consultant in 
Public Health Medicine in 2005 he has taken on increasingly senior roles in Health Care and 
Health Care Education, his current role being Deputy Director of the Leeds Institute of 
Medical Education, this institute responsible for the training of new doctors (approx. 1,400 
medical students in total), and Associate Professor at the University of Leeds. He also holds 
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an honorary Consultant contract in Public Health Medicine with Public Health England and 
an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the Leeds University Business 
School.  

John Parker (left the Trust 31 March 2018) was born and brought up in Manton, Worksop 
and currently lives in Saxilby. He is a qualified accountant and during his career has gained a 
wealth of financial experience. In addition to senior Civil Service appointments, John has 
been Finance Director for a number of large public and private sector organisations. John is 
currently Senior Lecturer in Finance at Sheffield Hallam University Business School and is a 
partner in a firm of financial management consultants.  

Linn Phipps has a background in the public sector, originally in public transport and local 
government director roles.  For over 15 years she has held a portfolio of Non-executive 
Director (NED) and consultancy posts.  She has been a Non-executive Director/Chair in NHS 
primary care and in mental health/learning disability care.  Her consultancy and non-
executive work focuses on coaching, mediation and facilitation; addressing governance and 
risk; and reducing health inequalities.  She has national roles representing patient and public 
voice, for example serving on two NICE (National Institute for Health & Care Excellence) 
committees as a Lay Member, and on NHS England’s Patient Online Programme Board as 
Chair of its Stakeholder Forum.  Previously the Chair of Healthwatch Leeds, she is now 
Deputy Chair. Linn is particularly interested in how patient and public views influence what 
happens in health and care. 
 
Neil Rhodes was born and brought up in Barnsley and now lives in the north of 
Lincolnshire.  His particular areas of interest in the NHS are the quality of patient care and 
the importance of the patient perspective in designing services that give real value for 
money.   Neil is the Chair of the Financial Oversight Committee of the Trust, responsible for 
the scrutiny of those areas on behalf of the wider board.  His professional background was 
in policing, where as a chief constable he was responsible for the running of a large public 
sector organisation, with complex finances and a clear public service ethos. Neil has 
extensive experience in the delivery of large programmes of work, including the 
management of organisational change, provision of core computer systems and the 
outsourcing of services.  His interests outside of the Trust include non-executive 
membership of the national Youth Justice Board since 2013 and both personnel and 
organisational development work as a consultant. 

Philippe Serna was educated at the University of New South Wales, in Australia and is a 
qualified chartered accountant with over 25 years’ experience. He has worked through his 
own company as a senior interim consultant to Blue Chip and smaller companies throughout 
Europe since 2003. Philippe has expertise in risk management, process design, control and 
audit along with director level finance and management experience. He also currently 
serves on the board of an Academy Trust.  
 
Executive Directors 

 
Richard Parker was appointed Chief Executive in January 2017.  Richard's previous role 
was Director of Nursing, Midwifery & Quality. Richard began his career as a student nurse, 
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qualifying in 1985. Richard was appointed Deputy Chief Nurse at Sheffield Teaching 
Hospitals in 2005, Deputy Chief Operating Officer in 2010 and then Chief Operating Officer 
in 2013. He held that position until joining us in October 2013. Richard has a special interest 
in ways of ensuring that nurse staffing levels are safe, appropriate and provide high-quality 
patient care. He gained a MBA (Health and Social Services) in 1997 from Leeds University 
and the Nuffield Institute for Health and his dissertation was on acuity, patient dependency 
and safe staffing levels.   
 
Karen Barnard joined the Trust from Sheffield Teaching Hospitals where she was Deputy 
Director of HR and Organisational Development. Before that she worked at Mid Yorkshire 
Hospitals as Deputy Director of HR and has experience working for various NHS 
organisations across Northern Lincolnshire.  
 
Moira Hardy qualified as a registered general nurse in 1985 from the Sheffield School of 
Nursing, and become Acting Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Quality in January 2017.  
She has worked in a number of corporate senior nursing roles at Assistant Chief Nurse level 
before moving to Doncaster as Deputy Director of Nursing, Midwifery & Quality in July 2014. 
Moira is a strong advocate for patients and promoting positive patient experience. She 
gained a BMedSci in Nursing Studies from the University of Sheffield in 2000. 
 
David Purdue qualified as a registered general nurse from Nottingham University in 1990 
and specialised in cardiac nursing in Nottingham where he set up a number of cardiac nurse-
led services, an innovation that won him an award from the National Modernisation Agency. 
After four years working on the implementation of the National Service Framework for 
coronary heart disease and then improving access to heart services in the East Midlands, 
David returned to hospital life in 2004 as clinical nurse manager for cardiothoracics at City 
Hospital in Nottingham. He joined the Trust in October 2008 as Divisional Nurse Manager 
for Medicine. David was Associate Director of Performance from 2010. He was Acting Chief 
Operator Officer from June 2013 until his substantive appointment to the role in July 2013.  
 
Jon Sargeant joined the Trust as Director of Finance in November 2016. Previously Director 
of Finance at Burton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Jon has over 25 years of experience, 
working exclusively in the health service.  Starting as a Financial Trainee at Heartlands 
Hospital in 1989, Jon held a number of board level posts, most notably as Director of 
Finance at Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals, leading a number of reconfiguration 
projects at the London-based Trust, before moving to Burton Hospitals in 2013.  
 
Sewa Singh graduated from Sheffield University Medical School and trained in Surgery in 
South Yorkshire and London.  He is an enthusiastic trainer and was Director of the Surgical 
Training Programme in South Yorkshire from 2009 until appointment as Medical Director.  
He has worked for the Trust as a Consultant Vascular Surgeon since 1996. He was Clinical 
Director for Surgery in 2004-07, Clinical Director, Division of Surgery 2008-10, and Deputy 
Medical Director from 2010 until his appointment as Medical Director in April 2012.  
 
Registers of interests 
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All Directors and Governors are required to declare their interests, including company 
directorships, on taking up appointment and as appropriate at Council of Governors and 
Board of Directors meetings in order to keep the register up to date.  
 
The Trust can specifically confirm that there are no material conflicts of interest in the 
Council of Governors or Board of Directors.  One director declared a company directorship 
which may have conflicted with his management or governance responsibilities at the Trust 
and subsequently resigned his position at the Trust. The Register of Directors’ Interests and 
the Register of Governors’ Interests are available on request from the Foundation Trust 
Office at Doncaster Royal Infirmary. 
 
Cost allocation and charging 
 
The Trust complied with the cost allocation and charging guidance issued by HM Treasury. 
 

Donations 
 
The Trust made no donations to political parties or other political organisations in 2017/18 
and no charitable donations in 2017/18. 
 
Payments Practice Code 
 

The Trust has adopted the Public Sector Payment Policy, which requires the payment of 
non-NHS trade creditors in accordance with the CBI prompt payment code and government 
accounting rules. The target is to pay these creditors within 30 days of receipt of goods or a 
valid invoice (whichever is the later) unless other payment terms have been agreed with the 
supplier. The Trust is in receipt of cash support from the Department of Health and 
therefore the Trust’s cash flow is being proactively managed with the aim of paying 
outstanding invoices within the Public Sector Payment Policy 30 day target. 
 

 
 
 

Quality governance 
 

The Board of Directors monitors a series of quality measures and objectives on a monthly 
basis, reported as part of the Business Intelligence Report and Nursing Workforce report. 
Risks to the quality of care are managed and monitored through robust risk management 

Performance for 12 months ending 31st March 2018 Number 000's

Non NHS payables

Total non NHS trade invoices paid in the period 85,638       182,108             

Total non NHS trade invoices paid within target 54,567       157,082             

Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 63.7% 86.3%

NHS Payables

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the period 2,508         13,766               

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 1,656         8,463                 

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 66.0% 61.5%
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and assurance processes, which are outlined in our Annual Governance Statement. The 
committees of the Board, particularly the Quality and Effectiveness Committee, play a key 
role in quality governance, receiving reports and using internal audit to test the processes 
and quality controls in place. This enables rigorous challenge and action to be taken to 
develop services to enable improvement.  
 
During 2016/17, the Trust underwent an external governance review in accordance with 
NHS Improvement’s Well Led framework.  In addition to examining the Trust’s approach to 
the four key questions of Well Led, the Trust agreed eight focus areas with NHS 
Improvement around whistleblowing, internal audit, collaborative working, strategic 
planning, risk management, the Board’s sub-committees, business planning and Board level 
mentoring/support.   
 
The review was positive about the Trust’s quality culture, highlighting that the Board had led 
the response to the financial turnaround internally which had earned the respect of the 
wider workforce and had been a key factor in the delivery of financial improvements whilst 
maintaining a focus on quality and performance.   In addition, it found that the wider culture 
of the Trust was clearly focussed around the quality of service provided, with good levels of 
awareness of the ‘We Care’ values amongst staff.  Areas for improvement around quality 
impact assessments and data quality were highlighted. 
 
The Board gives regular consideration to ensuring service quality in all aspects of its work, 
including changes to services and cost improvement plans. The Board proactively works to 
identify and mitigate potential risks to quality. More information on our arrangements to 
govern service quality can be found in our Annual Governance Statement (page 81) and 
Quality Account (page 107).  There are no material inconsistencies to report between the 
Annual Governance Statement, annual/quarterly board statements, the Board Assurance 
Framework, Quality Account, Annual Report and CQC reports. 
 
We aim to work with patients and the public to improve our services, including the 
collection of feedback through the Friends and Family Test comments, patient surveys and 
involvement in service changes. We also work in partnership with Healthwatch Doncaster 
and Healthwatch Nottinghamshire and the Trust’s public Governors, to promote patient and 
public engagement.  We have actively been supported by Healthwatch and local Learning 
Disability patients in undertaking the Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment 
(PLACE) this year.  Their contribution is very helpful and important in our endeavours to 
make improvements for patients. 
 

Disclosures to auditors 
 
Each director confirms that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
of which the Trust's auditor is unaware, and that they have taken all the steps they ought to 
have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the Trust’s auditor is aware of that information. 
 

Income disclosures  
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The directors confirm that, as required by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, the income 
that the Trust has received from the provision of goods and services for the purposes of the 
health service in England is greater than its income from the provision of goods and services 
for any other purposes. The Trust has processes in place to ensure that this statutory 
requirement will be met in future years, and has amended its constitution to reflect the 
Council of Governors’ new role in providing oversight of this.  
 
In addition to the above, the directors confirm that the provision of goods and services for 
any other purposes has not materially impacted on our provision of goods and services for 
the purposes of the health service in England. 

 
Remuneration report 

Annual Statement on Remuneration 

 

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee aims to set executive remuneration at an 
appropriate level to ensure good value for money while enabling the Trust to attract and 
retain high quality executives.  
 
During 2017/18, all executive and non-executive directors received a 1% increase in line 
with the pay increase awarded to staff nationally.    
 

 
Suzy Brain England OBE 
Chair of the Board 
25 May 2018 
 

Remuneration policy – Executive Directors  

 

It is the policy of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee to consider all reviews and 
proposals regarding executive remuneration on their own merits. This means that the 
recruitment market will be taken into account when seeking to appoint new directors, and 
salaries are set so as to ensure that the Trust is able to recruit and retain individuals with the 
required competencies and skills to support delivery of the Trust’s strategy.  
 
Executive directors do not have any performance related components within their 
remuneration, and do not receive a bonus.  
 
The committee does not routinely apply annual inflationary uplifts or increases, and only 
applies uplifts of any kind where this is thought to be justified by the context. The primary 
aim of the committee is to ensure that executive remuneration is set at an appropriate level 
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to ensure good value for money while enabling the Trust to attract and retain high quality 
executives.  
 
The committee considers the pay and conditions of other employees when setting the 
remuneration policy, but does not actively consult with employees. The committee also 
considers the remuneration information published annually by NHS Providers when making 
decisions regarding appropriate remuneration levels. 
 
Two Executive Directors earn more than £150,000, and the Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee has given detailed consideration to the context of this salary and the 
performance of the individuals in order to satisfy itself that this remuneration is reasonable. 
 
Remuneration policy – Senior managers  

 

As at 31 March 2018, three senior managers other than the Executive Directors are not 
remunerated according to Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions of service.  
 
As part of the appraisal process, the remuneration of these managers may reduce or 
increase on the basis of performance, including delivery of personal objectives and CIP 
targets. The starting salary for these managers is generally market-based, within the pay 
strategy set by the Trust. With the exception of remuneration, all other Agenda for Change 
terms and conditions, including those relating to payment for loss of office, are applied to 
these managers.  
 
The committee considers the pay and conditions of other employees when setting the 
remuneration policy, but does not actively consult with employees. The committee also 
considers the remuneration information published annually by NHS Providers when making 
decisions regarding appropriate remuneration levels. 
 
All other managers are remunerated in accordance with Agenda for Change terms and 
conditions of service. Approval to pay remuneration outside of Agenda for Change terms 
and conditions may only be granted by the Director or Deputy Director of People and 
Organisational Development. 
 
For managers who are paid according to Agenda for Change terms and conditions, the Trust 
is under an obligation to pay increments and uplifts in accordance with national pay 
agreements. The Trust does not propose to introduce any new obligation which could give 
rise to, or impact on, remuneration payments or payments for loss of office. 
 
The Trust intends to maintain this remuneration policy for 2018/19.  
 
NOTE: 1 This section of the report discusses the wider remuneration policy applied to senior 
managers not paid in accordance with Agenda for Change terms and conditions, but it 
should be noted that these employees do not meet the NHS Improvement definition of a 
‘senior manager’, and have therefore not been included in the remuneration tables . 
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Remuneration policy - Other employees 
  
Other than the senior managers and Executive directors referred to above, all employees 
are paid according to either the Agenda for Change or Medical and Dental Terms and 
Conditions of service. 
 
Early Termination Liability 
 

Depending on the circumstances of the early termination the Trust would, if the termination 
were due to redundancy, apply redundancy terms under Section 16 of the Agenda for 
Change Terms and Conditions of Services or consider severance settlements in accordance 
with HSG94 (18) and HSG95 (25).  

 
Future Policy Table 
 

Salary/Fees Taxable 
Benefits 

Annual 
Performance 
Related Bonus 

Long Term 
Related 
Bonus 

Pension Related 
Benefits 

 
Support for the 
short and 
long-term 
strategic 
objectives of 
the 
Foundation 
Trust 

 
Ensure the 
recruitment/retention 
of 
directors of sufficient 
calibre to deliver the 
Trust’s objectives 

 
None 
disclosed 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
Ensure the 
recruitment/retention 
of directors of 
sufficient calibre to 
deliver the Trust’s 
objectives 

How the 
component 
Operates 

Paid monthly None 
disclosed 

N/A N/A Contributions paid 
by 
both employee and 
employer, except for 
any employee who 
has opted out of the 
scheme 

Maximum 
payment 

As set out in the 
remuneration table. 
Salaries are 
determined 
by the Trust's 
Remuneration 
committee 

None 
disclosed 

N/A N/A Contributions are 
made in accordance 
with the NHS 
Pension 
Scheme 

Framework 
used to 
assess 
performance 

Trust appraisal 
system 

None 
disclosed 

N/A N/A N/A 

Performance 
Measures 

Based on individual 
objectives agreed 
with 
line manager 

None 
disclosed 

N/A N/A N/A 

Performance 
period 

Concurrent with the 
financial year 

None 
disclosed 

N/A N/A N/A 

Amount paid 
for minimum 
level of 
performance 
and any 
further levels 
of 
performance 

No performance 
related 
payment 
arrangements 

None 
disclosed 

N/A None paid N/A 

Explanation of 
whether there 
are any 
provisions for 

Any sums paid in 
error 
may be recovered. 
In 

None 
disclosed 

Any sums 
paid in error 
may be 

None paid N/A 
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Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors  
 
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for 
the appointment and remuneration of Executive Directors. 
 
The membership of the committee in 2017/18 consisted of the Chairman and Non-executive 
Directors. The Chief Executive, the Director of People and Organisational Development 
(both of whom withdraw if their own remuneration or appointment is considered) and the 
Trust Board Secretary attend by invitation in order to assist and advise the committee. The 
committee was convened on four occasions during the year to discuss appointments and 
the remuneration of Executive Directors. 
 

Name Role Attendance 

Suzy Brain England OBE Chair of the Board  4 of 4 

Alan Armstrong  Non-executive Director 
(Senior Independent 
Director) 

4 of 4 

Martin McAreavey Non-executive Director 
(resigned 27 September 
2017) 

1 of 2 

John Parker Non-executive Director (left 
the Trust 31 March 2018) 

2 of 4 

Linn Phipps Non-executive Director  2 of 4 

Neil Rhodes Non-executive Director 4 of 4 

Philippe Serna Non-executive Director 4 of 4 

 

Fair pay comparison 

 

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation’s workforce.    

 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in in the financial year 2017/18 was 
£200 -205k (2016/17 - £215 -220k).  This was 9.04 times (2016/17 - 8.55 times) the median 
remuneration of the workforce, which is £22,232 (2016/17, £25,413).  

recovery of 
sums paid to 
directors, or 
provisions for 
withholding 
payments 

addition there is 
provision for 
recovery of 
payments in relation 
to 
Mutually Agreed 
Resignation 
Scheme 
(MARS) payments 
where individuals 
are 
subsequently 
employed 
in the NHS 

recovered 
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Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-
kind, but not severance payments.  It does not include employers ‘pension contributions 
and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

 

Expenses 

 2017/18 2016/17 

 
No. in 
office 

No. 
receiving 
expenses 

Expenses 
Paid (£) 

No. in 
office 

No. 
receiving 
expenses 

Expenses 
Paid (£) 

Non-executive 
directors 

7 6 £12,738.16 9 9 £10,209.24 

Executive directors 6 4 £2,021.09 9 5 £1,980.43 

Governors 45 6 £2,131.44 35 8 £2,242.80 
 
 

Senior Managers Service Contracts 
All directors have a notice period of six months; this does not affect the right of the Trust to 
terminate the contract without notice by reason of the conduct of the Executive Director. All 
other employees have notice periods between one and three months depending on the 
seniority of the role.  
 

Name Position Date of contract 

(date 

commenced in 

post as senior 

manager) 

Unexpired 

term as at 

31 March 

2018 

Suzy Brain England 

OBE 

Chair of the Board  1.1.2017 1 year 9 

months 

Alan Armstrong Non-executive Director (Senior 

Independent Director) 

1.10.2013 6 months 

Martin McAreavey Non-executive Director (resigned 27 

September 2017) 

1.3.2015 n/a 

John Parker Non-executive Director  (left 31 March 

2018) 

1.4.2010 n/a 

Linn Phipps Non-executive Director  1.1.2017 1 year 9 

months 

Neil Rhodes Non-executive Director 1.4.2017 2 years 

Philippe Serna Non-executive Director  1.7.2015 4 months 

Richard Parker Chief Executive  14.10.2013 n/a 

Karen Barnard Director of People and Organisational 

Development  

2.5.2016 n/a 
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Moira Hardy Acting Director of Nursing, 

Midwifery and Quality (until 31 

December 2017) and Director of 

Nursing, Midwifery and Allied 

Health Professionals (from 1 

January 2018) 

3.1.2017 n/a 

David Purdue Chief Operating Officer (and Deputy 

Chief Executive from 1 January 2018) 

10.7.2013 n/a 

Jon Sargeant Director of Finance  2.10.2016 n/a 

Sewa Singh Medical Director 1.4.2012 n/a 
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Name and Title 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2017-18 2016-17 
Salary and 

fees 
(bands of 

£5000) 

Taxable 
benefits 
Rounde

d to 
the 

nearest 
£100 

Annual 
Perform

- 
ance 

related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Long Term 
Perform- 

ance  
related 
bonus 

(bands of 
£2500) 

Pension 
Related 
benefit 

(bands of 
£2500) 

Other 
Remune

r 
-ation 
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Total 
(bands 

of £5000) 

Salary and 
fees 

(bands of 
£5000) 

Taxable 
benefits 
Rounde

d to 
the 

nearest 
£100 

Annual 
Perform

- 
ance 

related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Long 
Term 

Perform
- 

ance 
related 
bonus 
(bands 

of 
£2500) 

Pension 
Related 
benefit 

(bands of 
£2500) 

Other 
Remune

r 
-ation 
(bands 

of 
£5000) 

Total 
(bands of 

£5000) 

Suzy Brain England 
OBE – Chair of the 
Board 

45-50      45-50 10-15      10-15 

Alan Armstrong 
Non-executive 
Director 

10-15      10-15 10-15      10-15 

John Parker 
Non-executive 
Director (left the 
Trust 31.3.18) 

10-15      10-15 10-15      10-15 

Martin McAreavey 
Non-executive 
Director 
(resigned 27.9.18) 

5-10      5-10 10-15      10-15 

Linn Phipps 
Non-executive 
Director 

10-15      10-15 0-5      0-5 

Philippe Serna 
Non-executive 
Director 

10-15      10-15 10-15      10-15 

Sewa Singh 
Medical Director 

200 - 
205 

   0  200-205 
 
 

215 -
220 

 

   70 - 72.5 
 

 285 -290 
 

David Purdue 
Chief Operating 
Officer 

115 - 
120 

 

   35- 37.5 
 

 150 - 
155 

 

110 -
115 

 

   70 - 72.5 
 

 180 -185 
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The remuneration report table above has been prepared in-line with 2017/18 ARM for Foundation Trusts. The basis of calculation for pension 
related benefits shows the pension accrued in year multiplied by a factor of 20, this has resulted in large pension related benefits being shown 
in the remuneration report table above. 
 
The basis of calculation for pension related benefits is in line with section 7.69 of the ARM, and follows the ‘HMRC method’ which is derived 
from the Finance Act 2004 and modified by Statutory Instrument 2013/1981. The calculation required is:  
Pension benefit increase = ((20 x PE) + LSE) - ((20 x  PB) + LSB)) 
 

PE is the annual rate of pension that would be payable to the director if they became entitled to it at the end of the financial year; 
PB is the annual rate of pension, adjusted for inflation, that would be payable to the director if they became entitled to it at the beginning of 
the financial year; LSE is the amount of lump sum that would be payable to the director if they became entitled to it at the end of the financial 
year; and LSB is the amount of lump sum, adjusted for inflation, that would be payable to the director if they became entitled to it at the 
beginning of the financial year. 

Richard Parker - Chief 
Executive  

155 - 
160 

   77 -77.5  230 -
235 

125 -
130 

   125 -127.5  250 - 255 

Jon Sargeant – 
Director of Finance  

130 - 
135 

   0  130 -
135 

55 -60    30 -32.5  85 -90 

Karen Barnard – 
Director of People 
and Organisational 
Development  

105 - 
110 

 

    
22.5 -25 

 

  
125 -
130 

 

95 -100 
 

   22.5 -25 
 

 115 - 120 
 

Moira Hardy – Acting 
Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and 
Quality (until 31 
December 2017) & 
Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and Allied 
Health Professionals 
(from 1 January 
2018) 

100 - 
105 

   150 -
152.5 

 250 -
255 

20 -25    22.5 -25  40 -45 
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Pension benefits 
 
Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers  
 

 
 
 
Note 1 – Variance due to retirement and therefore taking pension

Name and Title Real increase/ 
(decrease) in 
Pension age 

(Bands of 
£2500) 
£000 

Real 
increase/(decrease) 
in pension related 

lump sum at 
pension age 

(Bands of £2500) 
£000 

Total accrued 
pension at pension 

age at 31 March 
2018 

(Bands of £5000) 
£000 

Lump sum at pension 
age related to accrued 
pension at 31 March 

2018 
(Bands of £5000) 

£000 

Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Value at 1 

April 2017 
£000 

Real increase 
in Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value 
£000 

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer 
value at 31 

March 
2018 
£000 

Employers 
contribution to 

stakeholder 
pension 

£000 

Sewa Singh 
Medical Director 

0 
 

 0 
 

65 -70 
 

225 - 230 
 

1774 
 

1774  – 
*Note 1 

0 
 

 

Jon Sergeant  
Director of Finance  

0 
 

0 
 

35 - 40 
 

105 -110 
 

778 
 

0 
 

754 
 

 

Karen Barnard 
Director of People and 

Organisational Development 

0 - 2.5 
 

2.5 – 5 
 

40 - 45 
 

130 - 135 
 

848 
 

80 
 

937 
 

 

David Purdue 
Chief Operating Officer 

0 - 2.5 
 

0 - 2.5 
 

45 - 50 
 

115 - 120 
 

715 
 

76 
 

798 
 

 

Moira Hardy – Acting Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and Quality 

(substantive from 1 January 
2018) 

5 -7.5 
 

20 – 22.5 40 - 45 120 - 125 661 165 833  

Richard Parker – 
Chief Executive  2.5 – 5 12.5 - 15 50 -55 155 - 160 905 138 1052  
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)  
 
The CETV is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by 
a member at a particular point in time.  The benefits valued are the member's accrued 
benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a 
payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another 
pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to 
transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to 
the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of 
the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure 
applies.  
 
The CETV figures, and from 2004/05 the other pension details, include the value of any 
pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to 
the NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional benefit accrued to the member 
as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own 
cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute 
and faculty of Actuaries. 
 
Real increase in CETV 
 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer.  It takes account of 
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the 
period.  On 1 October 2008, there was a change in the factors used to calculate CETVs as a 
result of the Occupational Pension Scheme (Transfer Value Amendment) regulations. These 
placed responsibility for the calculation method for CETVs (following actuarial advice) on 
Scheme Managers or Trustees. Further regulations from the Department for Work and 
Pensions to determine CETV from Public Sector Pension Schemes came into force on 13 
October 2008. 
 
In his budget of 22 June 2010 the Chancellor announced that the uprating (annual increase) 
of public sector pensions would change from the Retail Prices Index (RPI) to the Consumer 
Prices Index (CPI) with the change expected from April 2011. As a result the Government 
Actuaries Department undertook a review of all transfers factors. The new CETV factors 
have been used in the above calculations and are lower than the previous factors we used. 
As a result the value of the CETVs for some members has fallen since 31 March 2010.  

 

 

 

 

Richard Parker 
Chief Executive  
25 May 2018 
 



50 
 
 

Our staff 
 
We can only realise our vision as a Trust through the enthusiasm, innovation, hard work, 
engagement, values and behaviours of our staff.  It is absolutely crucial that we recruit and 
retain the right people, support their health and wellbeing, enable them to maintain the 
highest level of knowledge and skill, and support them in doing their jobs. We believe that 
DBTH is an organisation with great people, providing great care, each and every day. 
 
We also know that we can continually improve, aiming to be the best in everything we do.   
 

Keeping staff informed and engaged 

 

We engage with our staff in a range of ways, from formal consultation with Staff Side Union 
representatives, through collective agreements, to open feedback forums regarding planned 
changes. 
 
Our monthly Staff Brief keeps team members informed about key news and developments, 
including the Trust’s performance and how staff can contribute towards improvement. This 
follows the monthly Board of Directors meeting that takes place a few days earlier and 
ensures information is cascaded quickly throughout the organisation. Members of the 
Executive Team brief members of staff at each site, encouraging engagement and informal 
questions. The Staff Brief documents are also cascaded through the organisation by 
managers and team leaders and are made available on the intranet. 
 
The weekly DBTH Buzz staff newsletter, which communicates key information, celebrates 
individual and team achievements and draws attention to the various roles within the 
organisation highlighting how every member of staff has an important role to play in our 
success as an organisation. The newsletter enjoys a healthy following, with an average of 
4,000 readers each week.  
 
In-line with our cost saving efforts this year, we produced a separate, monthly, bulletin 
detailing our Efficiency and Effectiveness journey. Ultimately, this brief kept staff up-to-date 
on all things cost improvement, with a key focus on our control total, total savings and 
target for the financial year.  
 
We have an ‘Ask the Boss’ facility, which allows staff to put their questions and suggestions 
to the Chief Executive, receiving a direct response if they have provided their contact 
details.  Full responses to staff questions are also published on the staff intranet. 
 
We have also branched out into different mediums of communication. In 2017 we 
introduced a staff Facebook ‘group’. With almost 2,000 members by March 2018, this closed 
network is administrated by the Communications Team and only open to members of the 
Trust. This new platform gives staff an informal forum in which to communicate, as well as 
giving the organisation the opportunity to share news with those harder to reach groups of 
staff. 
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The Communications and Engagement team embarked on a project to design and develop 
the Trust’s new Intranet site, expected to be completed by quarter three of 2018, further 
improving communication.  
 

Reward and recognition 
 
It is important that we encourage and recognise good performance by our staff. 
 
We have a team award scheme called DBTH Stars (Staff Awards and Recognition Scheme), 
which enables any employee to nominate colleagues whom they believe deserve 
recognition for the work they do. Once a month a panel of staff and managers review the 
nominations and select the winning ‘Star’. The winner receives gift vouchers and a place on 
our ‘Wall of Stars’. All nominees receive a certificate. 
 
In September 2017, we held the annual DBTH Stars event celebration at Doncaster’s 
Keepmoat Stadium.  For the first time, the event was organised entirely by the Trust’s 
Communications and Engagement team, with support from local sponsors. Hosted by Look 
North’s Harry Gration, the event was a resounding success with staff and sponsors and we 
are already organising the 2018 event. 
 
Health and Wellbeing  
 
A healthy workforce is a vital element in providing high-quality care to our patients. The 
Health and Wellbeing strategy has picked up pace with an increase in staff engagement in 
relation to healthy lifestyle activities. Our new Lifestyle Assessment Service for staff has 
been implemented, along with a range of exercise opportunities including a walking 
programme.  A team of over 60 health champions from within existing staff have been 
recruited and trained and are available to support staff with leading a healthier lifestyle.  
 
Our 2017 Staff Survey results show a slight increase in staff experiencing work related stress 
and we aim to improve on this in the coming year, with a range of opportunities for staff 
including training and mindfulness. 
 
We have achieved the Nottinghamshire Wellbeing at Work Award at ‘Gold Level’ and we are 
working towards achieving ‘Platinum Level’, as well as the National Workplace Health 
Charter. We achieved the National Sport and Physical Activity ‘Bronze Award’ and are 
building towards the ‘Silver Award’. 
 
Our Occupational Health and Wellbeing team supports people returning to work after illness 
and this year with cross-organisational support ran another very successful flu vaccination 
programme that resulted in over 85% of frontline staff being immunised and receiving the 
accolade of being the first Trust in the country to vaccinate 75% of frontline workers by 30 
October 2017. 
 
Health and safety 
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Over the past year, although we have continued to encourage staff to report issues, we 
have shown a 5.6% decrease in incident reporting from 2,122 to 2,003 and we are still well 
below the national average. 
 
Nationally the NRLS has reported that there has been an overall 6.9% increase in reporting 
to them.  DBTH has seen an 8.6% decrease in reporting over the same period. 
 
There has been a drop in the number of falls reported within the Trust from 1,583 to 1,485 
which equates to  6.19%. This correlates with the work of the Enhanced Care Team who 
commenced in post in October 2017. The harm/no harm ratio is under the national average 
(NRLS figures demonstrate 24.5% harm rate for all submitted incidents) at 21.81% harm. 
 
There is normal variation in the number of sharps incidents reported, however there is a 
demonstrable increase in the number being reported over the last year from 120 to 131 
equating to 8.3%. This may relate to the push on improving reporting on Datix to 
Occupational Health and the Emergency Departments.   
 
This financial year has seen a significant decrease in the number of RIDDOR reportable 
incidents from 33 to 19, but a concern is the number of late reported incidents. We are 
required to report RIDDOR incident within 15 days, we have often exceed this which can be 
attributed to a lack of understanding of the importance of reporting incidents immediately, 
which we are looking to improve in 2018/19.  
 

Education and training 
 
As part of our promise to staff to ‘Develop Belong Thrive Here’ and our formal recognition as 
a Teaching Hospital, we are committed to the training of our staff to enable them to provide 
an excellent service for our patients.   
 
Our Training and Education Department facilitates this process by providing a wide range of 
courses offering professional development, as well as Statutory and Essential for Role 
Training (SET).  Care Group Educational Leads work with the Care Group and corporate 
service leaders to ensure that the Training and Education Department commission and 
deliver education aligned to the business need.  As a Trust we have successfully secured 
‘training grant’ money from Health Education England (HEE) to support the upskilling of 
some staff to Assistant Practitioners and Advanced Clinical Practitioners.  We have also 
worked closely with the Local Workforce Action Board to help shape and support the three 
regional priorities: South Yorkshire Region Excellence Centre (SYREC), Advanced Practice 
Faculty and Primary Care Workforce. 
 
With the introduction of the apprenticeship levy we have further developed partnerships 
both internally and with external education providers to maximise the benefit for our staff.  
An apprenticeship operational group, reporting to the Workforce and Education Committee 
has been established to provide direct oversight, direction and support for all 
apprenticeships.    
  



53 
 
 

All three of our hospital sites have newly refurbished training rooms with eLearning suites to 
support learning close to the work place.  Within the Mexborough Hospital site we continue 
to host a regional simulation centre, supported by Health Education England which regularly 
receives outstanding feedback from a range of learners. 
 

Workforce statistics as at 31 March 2018 
 

(excl. bank and locum) 
Total  

(Headcount) 

Permanently 
Employed 

(WTE) 

Other              
(Headcount) 

Total staff employed as 
at 31 March 2018 

6001 4995.63 500 

Medical and dental 313 297.69 284 

Administration and 
Estates 

1841 1428.88 147 

Healthcare assistants 
and other support staff 

1338 1100.43 17 

Nursing, midwifery and 
health visiting staff 

1812 1553.75 35 

Scientific, therapeutic 
and technical staff 

558 491.18 15 

Healthcare science staff 
139 123.70 2 

Other 
- - - 

 
2017/18 Actual 

2017/18 
Target 

Benchmarking data 

Staff Sickness Absence 
Rate 

4.40% 3.50% 2016/17 rate was 4.9%  

 
  In 2015/16 the regional 

average is 5.0% 
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Staff Cost 

  Total £000 

Permanently 
employed 
total £000 

Business 
with other 

WGA 
bodies £000 

Business 
with bodies 
external to 

Government 
£000 

Other total 
£000 

Business 
with NHS 
FTs £000 

Business 
with NHS 

Trusts £000 

Business 
with bodies 
external to 

the 
Government 

£000 

Salaries and wages 197,564 192,115       5,449 -   

Social security costs 22,406   22,406 - - - - - 

Apprenticeship Levy 967   967           

Pension cost – defined 
contribution plans employer’s 
contributions to NHS Pensions 

22,401   22,401 - - - - - 

Pension cost - other 18   18 - - - - - 

Other post-employment benefits - - - - - - - - 

Other employment benefits - - - - - - - - 

Termination benefits - - - - - - - - 

Temporary staff – external bank - - - - - - - - 

Temporary staff – agency/contract 
staff 

15,819 - - - - - - 15,819 

NHS charitable funds staff   - - - - - - - 

Total Staff costs 259,175 192,115 45,792 - - 5,449 - 15,819 
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Equality and diversity  
 
We have a richly diverse workforce (see our workforce statistics below), with staff from 
across the globe working alongside those born in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. Respect 
for each other’s unique skills, experience and strengths is an integral element in effective 
team-working and our Fair Treatment for All Policy sets out the standards we expect. This 
includes equality of opportunity for job applicants, where we anonymise applications before 
shortlisting.  We are a now recognised as Level 2 on the Disability Confident Scheme 
(replacing the Disability Two Ticks framework) focused on retention as well as recruitment.  
To support this work we have policies and guidelines in place to encourage recruitment of 
people with disabilities. We also make reasonable adjustments to enable us to retain staff 
that become ill, or develop disabilities, with further support available from our Occupational 
Health Team. 
 
Details of our equality priorities and some of the actions we take can be found on the 
Equality and Diversity page of the Trust website www.DBTH.nhs.uk, where we also publish 
information to comply with our obligations under the Equality Act.  
 

Equality Information as at 31 March 2018 – Directors 
 

Gender (Directors Only) Headcount Headcount % 
 Female  4 44.44 

 Male 5 55.56 

  
Note:  All staff meeting the NHS Improvement criteria to be considered a ‘senior manager’ are 
directors. 

 

Senior Managers 
  

   Gender  Headcount Headcount % 

Female  134 69.07 

Male 60 30.93 

 
 

Equality Information as at 31 December 2017 
  

    Gender Headcount FTE Headcount % 

Female 5,503 4, 478.70 82.5 

Male 1,164 1,028.09 17.5 

     
 

   Age Headcount FTE Headcount % 

16 – 20 42 35.7 0.63 

21 – 25 455 425.09 6.82 

http://www.dbh.nhs.uk/
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26 – 30 733 622.84 10.99 

31 – 35 738 612.91 11.07 

36 – 40 702 568.83 10.53 

41 – 45 733 621.16 10.99 

46 – 50 873 745.46 13.09 

51 – 55 1,052 878.55 15.78 

56 – 60 795 613.01 11.92 

61 – 65 437 317.7 6.55 

66 – 70 91 57.37 1.36 

71 & above 16 8.18 0.24 

    

    Ethnicity Headcount FTE Headcount % 

Any Other 59 54.03 0.88 

Asian 328 290.32 4.92 

Black 96 183.14 1.44 

Chinese 24 19.65 0.36 

Mixed 57 48.78 0.85 

White 5,880 4836.65 88.2 

Not Disclosed 223 171.66 3.34 

 
   Disability Headcount FTE Headcount % 

No 5,021 4157.42 75.3 

Yes 190 152.81 2.8 

Not Disclosed 79 66.35 1.2 

Unspecified 1,377 1130.21 20.7 

 
   

 
   Sexual Orientation Headcount FTE Headcount % 

Bisexual 12 10.65 0.18 

Gay 13 12.40 0.19 

Heterosexual 2,443 2054.73 36.64 

Lesbian 15 13.23 0.22 

Not Disclosed 3,447 2803.76 51.70 

Unspecified 737 612.03 11.05 

 
Our Trust values set out in the strategic direction, embeds our desire to eliminate all forms 
of discrimination, promote equality of opportunity, value diversity and foster good relations. 
We are firmly committed to fair and equitable treatment for all and by truly valuing the 
diversity everyone brings, create the best possible services for our patients and working 
environment for our staff.  
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Our Fair Treatment for All Policy explicitly sets out our expectations of all staff that we will 
not tolerate any form of discrimination, victimisation, harassment, bullying or unfair 
treatment on the grounds of a person’s age, disability, gender re-assignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race including nationality and ethnic origin, 
religion or belief, gender or sexual orientation. 
 
Gender Pay Gap  
 
Gender Pay Gap legislation requires all employers of 250 or more employees to publish their gender 
pay gap annually commencing 31 March 2018 with data as at 31st March 2017. The Trust uses the 
national job evaluation framework for Agenda for Change staff to determine appropriate pay 
bandings; this provides a clear process of paying employees equally for the same or equivalent work. 
Each grade has a set of pay points for annual progression, the longer period of time that someone 
has been in a grade the higher their salary is likely to be irrespective of their gender.  
 
It should be noted that gender pay gap reporting is different from equal pay which deals with the 
pay differences between men and women who carry out the same jobs, similar jobs or work of equal 
value. It is prohibited under UK law to pay people unequally because they are a man or a woman. 
The gender pay gap shows the differences in the average pay between men and women and the 
regulations require both median and mean figures to be reported. The median shows the mid-point 
salary of any sample, calculated through sorting the hourly rates from lowest to highest and 
calculating the middle value. The mean is the overall average of the sample and therefore the overall 
figure can be influenced by any extremely high or low hourly rates of pay. 
 
It is therefore possible to have genuine pay equality but still have a significant gender pay gap. 
 
Mean Gender Pay Gap 
The mean gender pay gap shows that female staff are paid 36.1% less than male staff at the Trust. 
 
This is a substantial difference which we believe is due largely to the fact that we employ a higher 
number of male staff in senior medical and dental positions.  In addition, some senior medical and 
dental staff are in receipt of Clinical Excellence Awards which are consolidated into basic pay.   
 
Median Gender Pay Gap 
The median gender pay gap shows that female staff are paid 26.5% less than male staff. We believe 
this is a more accurate representation of the position at DBTH but acknowledge that there is still 
work to be done. 
 
As a Trust we welcome the introduction of gender pay gap reporting across both public and private 
sector organisations.  We are fully supportive of equality of opportunity within our workforce. We 
recognise that this data tells us that there is further work to be undertaken to achieve that equality 
of opportunity.  We have females represented in many senior positions – our Chair of the Board is 
female and four of our nine Directors are also female.   
 
But we acknowledge that there could be greater representation in the senior clinical roles which 
appear to drive the greatest variances in this report.  The current NHS medical workforce has a far 
greater proportion of men, howevrr at junior doctor level the numbers are more equal.  This should 
create a viable pipeline to more senior roles over time. 
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We have a robust recruitment process and diversity and inclusion is embedded into this, and all our 
policies.  We will continue to recruit on merit in a fair, open and transparent manner.  We also have 
a suite of family friendly policies with a range of flexible working patterns including support for 
women returning to work. 
 
We hope that, over time, and by taking account of some of the issue highlighted in this report, the 
gender pay gap will reduce. 

 
Organisation’s Structure and Principal Activities  
 
As well as being an acute foundation trust with one of the busiest emergency services in the 
country, we are Teaching Hospital, supported by Sheffield University and Sheffield Hallam 
University and have strong links with the Yorkshire and Humber Deanery. 
 
We are fully licensed by NHS Improvement and fully registered (i.e. without conditions) by 
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to provide the following regulated activities and 
healthcare services: 
 

 Treatment of disease, disorder or injury  

 Nursing care  

 Surgical procedures  

 Maternity and midwifery services  

 Diagnostic and screening procedures  

 Family planning  

 Termination of pregnancies  

 Transport services, triage and medical advice provided remotely 

 Assessment or medical treatment for persons detained under the Mental Health Act 

1983. 

We serve a population of more than 420,000 across south Yorkshire, north Nottinghamshire 
and the surrounding areas and we run three hospitals: Doncaster Royal Infirmary, Bassetlaw 
Hospital and Montagu Hospital, as well as outpatient services at Retford Hospital and 
Chequer Road Clinic.  
 
Our Supply Chains  
 
Our supply chains include the sourcing of all products and services necessary for the 
provision of high quality care to our service users.  
 
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 2017/18 
 
Slavery and human trafficking remains a hidden blight on society.  We all have a responsibly 
to be alert to the risks in our business and in the wider supply chain. Employees are 
expected to report concerns and management are expected to act upon them.  
 
Our Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking  
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We are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our 
supply chains or in any part of our business.  
 
Due Diligence Processes for Slavery and Human Trafficking  
 
We expect that our supply chains have suitable anti-slavery and human trafficking policies 
and processes. Most of our purchases are against existing supply contracts or frameworks 
which have been negotiated under the NHS Standard Terms and Conditions of Contract 
which have the requirement for suppliers to have in place suitable anti-slavery and human 
trafficking policies and processes. 
 
We expect each element in the supply chain to, at least, adopt ‘one-up’ due diligence on the 
next link in the chain as it is not always possible for us (and every other participant in the 
chain) to have a direct relationship with all links in the supply chain. 
 
Our standard ITT documentation includes a standard question asking whether suppliers are 
compliant with section 54 (Transparency in supply chains etc.) of the Modern Slavery Act 
2015.  If they are, they are required to provide evidence.  If they are not, they are required 
to provide an explanation as to why not.  In addition, our standard contract contains the 
following provisions: 
 
The Supplier warrants and undertakes that it will: 
 

(i) comply with all relevant Law and Guidance and shall use Good Industry Practice 

to ensure that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains; and  

(ii) Notify the Authority immediately if it becomes aware of any actual or suspected 

incidents of slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains;  

(iii) At all times conduct its business in a manner that is consistent with any anti-

slavery Policy of the Authority and shall provide to the Authority any reports or 

other information that the Authority may request as evidence of the Supplier’s 

compliance with this Clause 10.1.29 and/or as may be requested or otherwise 

required by the Authority in accordance with its anti-slavery policy. 

Supplier Adherence to Our Values  
 
We have zero tolerance to slavery and human trafficking. We expect all those in our supply 
chain and contractors to comply with our values. The Trust will not support or deal with any 
business knowingly involved in slavery or human trafficking.  
 
Training  
 
Senior staff within our Procurement Team are duly qualified as Fellows of the Chartered 
Institute of Procurement and Supply and have passed the Ethical Procurement and Supply 
Final Test. 
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This statement is made pursuant to section 54 (1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and 
constitutes the Trust’s slavery and human trafficking statement for the current financial 
year. 
 

Staff Survey 
 
Our performance on staff satisfaction is benchmarked against other similar trusts once a 
year in the NHS National Staff Survey. In most trusts this is done by surveying a randomly-
selected representative sample of staff. Our first census survey was in 2012 and we have 
continued with the same approach each year, surveying every substantive employee (those 
on long-term or permanent contracts).  
 
In 2017/18 we continued with an online survey for all staff, and saw our response rates 
again increase, now up to 50%.  This gives us confidence in the validity of the data and the 
ability to drill down. We will continue to work with leaders across the Trust to achieve 
further improvements in response rates.  
 
Response rate and overall staff engagement 

 

 2016 2017 Trust 
improvement/deterioration 

 Trust Trust Benchmarking 
Group (all 
Acute Trusts) 
average 

Increase/decrease in 
percentage points 

Response rate 47% 50% 45% A further improvement in 
the response rate, greater 
than the 2% increase for all 
acute trusts. 

Staff engagement 3.66 3.66 3.79 Our rate has remained 
steady, whilst the figure for 
all acute trusts has 
decreased by 0.6% for the 
same period. 

 

Top 5 Ranking scores 

 2016  2017 Trust 
improvement/deterioration 

 Trust Trust Benchmarking 
Group (all 
Acute Trusts) 
average 

 

KF16. Percentage of 
staff working extra 
hours 

69 

67 72 

A statistically significant 
decrease in this Key Factor. 
This was one of our five 
highest last year. 
 

KF20. Percentage of 
staff experiencing 

 
 

10 12 
No statistically significant 
increase in this Key Finding.  
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discrimination at 
work in the last 12 
months 

9 This was one of our five 
highest last year. 
 

KF25. Percentage of 
staff experiencing 
harassment, bullying 
or abuse from 
patients, 
relatives or the 
public in last 12 
months 

 
 
 
26 

26 28 

 
 
No statistically significant 
change in this Key Finding. 
This was one of our five 
highest last year. 
 
 

KF28. Percentage of 
staff witnessing 
potentially harmful 
errors, near misses 
or 
incidents in last 
month 

 
 
 
30 

29 31 

 
 
 
No statistically significant 
change in this Key Finding. 
This was one of our five 
highest last year. 
 

KF26. Percentage of 
staff experiencing 
harassment, bullying 
or abuse from staff 
in last 
12 months 

 
 
24 

23 25 

 
No statistically significant 
change in this Key Finding 
This was one of our five 
highest last year. 
 

 
Bottom 5 Ranking Scores 
 2016 2017 Trust 

improvement/deterioration 

 Trust Trust Benchmarking 
Group (all 
Acute Trusts) 
average 

 

KF.29 Percentage of 
staff reporting errors, 
near misses or 
incidents witnessed in 
the last month 

 
 

89 87 90 

 
 
A decrease, but not 
statistically significant 

KF.18 percentage of 
staff attending work in 
the last 3 months 
despite feeling unwell 
because they felt 
pressure from their 
manager, colleagues or 
themselves  

 
 
 

56 
 

58 52 

 
 
 
An increase, but not 
statistically significant 

KF7: Percentage of 
staff able to contribute 
towards improvements 
at work 

  
 
 63 65 70 

An improvement, but still 
well short of the benchmark 
One of our five lowest last 
year. 
 

KF.4: Staff motivation  3.81 3.92 A statistically significant 
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at work 3.86 reduction. 
KF9: Effective Team 
Working 

 
 

3.61 
3.61 3.72 

Trust score held fast, whilst 
benchmark reduced. One of 
our five lowest last year. 
 

 
 

Future priorities and targets: 
 
Generally overall experience of being part of team DBTH showed a modest improvement 
this year. Again, there was some really positive feedback highlighted by the survey. Low 
levels of staff reported witnessing potentially harmful errors at work and the levels of 
harassment, discrimination and bullying experienced by staff, from patients and other staff, 
are amongst some of the lowest in the country.  
 
Work will commence in 2018/19 to improve lower scores seen in this year’s Staff Survey, 
with each Care Group and directorate required to complete a SMART action plan to address 
the issues identified.  
 
In terms of comparison with the 32 Key Factors with 2016/17 results, we saw a statistically 
significant decrease in only one, and a significant increase in one other, with the vast 
majority relatively unchanged. The corporate priorities to address these will be determined 
following a local action planning exercise instigated by the Chief Executive.  
 
We continue to use a range of local systems to monitor progress, in addition to quarterly 
surveys from the Staff Friends and Family Test and the next Annual Staff Survey.  
 
Countering fraud, bribery and corruption 

 
Fraud in the NHS is not a victimless crime as losses can have an impact on the delivery of 
patient care, so everyone has a duty to help prevent it. NHS fraud may be committed by 
anyone, including staff, patients and suppliers of goods/services to the NHS. To ensure we 
have the right culture and that our staff are able to recognise and report fraud, we require 
all employees to receive fraud awareness training as part of our Statutory and Essential 
Training (SET) program; the compliance level for 2017/18 was at 94%. Annually, we also 
conduct a fraud awareness survey and to further amplify our efforts, we held a Fraud 
Awareness Month in November 2017. The Trust was also pleased to be an official supporter 
of International Fraud Awareness Week in the same month.  
 
The NHS Counter Fraud Authority (NHSCFA) provides the national framework through which 
NHS trusts seek to minimise losses through fraud. The Director of Finance is nominated to 
lead counter fraud work and is supported by the Trust’s Local Counter Fraud Specialist 
(LCFS). The Trust follows the guidance contained in the NHS Provider Standards and ensures 
our contractual obligations with our local clinical commissioning groups are adhered to. The 
Trust has a robust Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy which provides a framework for 
responding to suspicions of fraud and provides advice and information on various aspects of 
fraud investigations. The Trust also has a Standards of Business Conduct and Employees 
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Declarations of Interest Policy which clearly sets out the expectations we have of all our 
staff where probity is concerned. To reinforce this, the Chief Executive has issued a 
publically available statement setting out our position to ensuring our organisation is free 
from bribery and corruption.  There are references to counter fraud measures and reporting 
processes in various other Trust policies and procedures. 
 
We have a well-publicised system in place for staff to raise concerns if they identify or 
suspect fraud. They can do this via our LCFS, the Director of Finance or via the NHS Fraud 
and Corruption reporting line (0800 028 40 60 or online at www.cfa.nhs.uk/report fraud) 
and our whistleblowing procedures. Patients and visitors can also refer suspicions of NHS 
fraud to the Trust via the same channels.  
 
During 2017/18, we have maintained our collaborative counter fraud arrangement with two 
other local acute NHS trusts. This arrangement allows us to have a LCFS permanently on 
site, supported by a small team of counter fraud specialists dedicated to dealing with fraud 
in a secondary care setting. An annual work plan, approved by the Director of Finance with 
oversight from the Trust’s Audit and Non-Clinical Risk Committee, has been in place over the 
last year. The key aims are to seek to proactively create an anti-fraud culture, implement 
appropriate deterrents and preventative controls and ensure that allegations of fraud are 
appropriately and professionally investigated to a criminal standard. Progress reports on all 
aspects of counter fraud work and details of investigations are received at each meeting of 
the Trust’s Audit and Non-Clinical Risk Committee. 
 

Expenditure on consultancy 
 
The Trust incurred consultancy expenditure of £1.566m. 
 
Staff exit packages  
 
As part of the Trust wide cost-saving projects last year, we introduced a limited Mutually 
Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS), running from October 2017 to March 2018. This 
voluntary scheme enabled one employee, in agreement with the Trust, to leave their 
employment voluntarily in March in return for a payment. The Scheme was only available to 
members of staff with permanent contracts of employment with two years or more 
continuous service with the Trust. 
 
2017/18 
 

Exit package cost 
band 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures agreed 

Total value of exit 
packages  

<£10,000  1 £6,500 

£10,001 - £25,000    

£25,001 - £50,000  1 £30,000 

£50,001 - £100,000    

£100,001+    

http://www.cfa.nhs.uk/report%20fraud
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Total number of exit 
packages by type 

 2 £36,500 

 

 Agreement Number Total value of 
Agreement 

Voluntary redundancies including early 
retirement contractual costs 

  

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) 
contractual costs 

1 £30,000 

Early retirements in the efficiency of the 
service contractual costs 

  

Contractual payments in lieu of notice 1 6,500 

Exit payments requiring HMT approval   

Total 2 £36,500 

 
High paid and off pay-roll arrangements 
 
For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2018, for more than £245 per day and that 

last for longer than six months: 

 
 

 No. of existing engagements as of 31 March 2018 0 

Of which:  

Number that have existed for less than one year at the time of reporting 0 

Number that have existed for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0 

Number that have existed for between two and three years at the time of 

reporting 
0 

Number that have existed for between three and four years at the time of 

reporting 
0 

Number that have existed for four or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 
The Trust undertakes a risk based assessment on new and existing off-payroll engagements, 
to seek assurance that each individual is paying the right amount of tax.  
 
For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 

April 2017 and 31 March 2018, for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than six 

months: 

 
 Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, 

between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018  
0 

Of which:  
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Number assessed as within the scope of IR35 0 

Number assessed as not within the scope of IR35 0 

The number that were engaged directly (via PSC contracted to trust) and are on the 
trust’s payroll 

93 

The number that were reassessed for consistency/ assurance purposes during the 
year 

All 

The number that saw a change to IR35 status following the consistency review 0 

 
For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant 
financial responsibility, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 
 
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with 

significant financial responsibility, during the financial year. 
1 

Number of individuals that have been deemed ‘board members and/or senior officials 

with significant financial responsibility’ during the financial year. This figure must include 

both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements. 

18 
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Governance Report 
 

Responsibility for preparing this annual report and ensuring its accuracy sits with the Board 
of Directors. The principal responsibilities and decisions of the Board of Directors and 
Council of Governors are as shown below. The process for resolution of conflict between the 
Board of Directors and Council of Governors is detailed in the Trust Constitution. 
 
The respective roles of the Board of Directors and Council of Governors are as follows: 
 

Board of Directors Council of Governors 

 Operational management 

 Strategic development 

 Capital development 

 Business planning 

 Financial, quality and service 
performance 

 Trust-wide policies 

 Risk assurance and governance 

 Strategic direction of the Trust 
(taking account of the views of 
the Council of Governors). 

 

 Hold the Non-executive Directors to account for 
the performance of the Board of Directors. 

 Appoint and determine the remuneration of the 
chairman and Non-executive Directors 

 Appoint the auditors 

 Promote membership, and governorship, of the 
Trust 

 Establish links and communicating with members 
and stakeholders 

 Seek the views and represent the interests of 
members and stakeholders 

 Approve significant transactions, mergers, 
acquisitions, separations, dissolutions, and 
increases in non-NHS income of over 5%. 

 

 

Board of Directors 
 
Although the Board remains accountable for all its functions, it delegates to management 
the implementation of Trust policies, plans and procedures and receives sufficient 
information to enable it to monitor performance. 
 
In addition to the responsibilities listed above, the powers of each body, and those 
delegated to specific officers, are detailed in the Trust’s Reservation of Powers to the Board 
and Delegation of Powers.  
 
Performance evaluation of directors 
 
The Chair conducts the performance appraisals of the Chief Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors. The Senior Independent Director and Vice Chairman conducted the performance 
appraisal of the Chair in 2017/18. The Council of Governors approves the objectives of the 
Chair and Non-executive Directors, and governors and directors feed into the appraisal 
process by providing commentary regarding the performance of the Chair and Non-
executive Directors. 
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The performance review of Executive Directors is carried out by the Chief Executive, with 
input the Chair, from Non-executive Directors and Governors. 
 
 Performance evaluation of the Board and its committees 
 
The Board and its committees conduct regular self-assessments of their performance. In 
2017/18, the Board’s self-assessment was carried out by KPMG as part of its internal audit 
into corporate governance.  The next external governance review will take place in 2019, as 
the Trust had previously undertaken one in 2016.   
 
In June 2017, the Board’s committee changed.  The Clinical Governance and Financial 
Oversight Committees were replaced by Finance and Performance Committee and Quality 
and Effectiveness Committee.  In view of the change, performance evaluation of the 
committees was deferred until 2018/19. 
 
Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee  
 
The committee’s remit is to make sure that effective internal control and systems are in 
place and in compliance with law, guidance and codes of conduct. The Committee has three 
members – all Non-executive Directors, including the Chair of the Committee. One member 
has recent and relevant financial experience.  

 

Name 

 

Role Meeting 
attendance  

Philippe Serna – Chair  Non-executive Director  6 of 6 

Martin McAreavey  Non-executive Director 
(until 27 September 
2017) 

3 of 3 

John Parker Non-executive Director 
(left the Trust 31 March 
2018) 

2 of 3 

Linn Phipps Non-executive Director 3 of 6 

 
The Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee has, on behalf of the Board: 
 

 Reviewed internal control and systems, including the Board Assurance Framework 

 Reviewed standards of financial reporting  

 Approved the internal and external audit plans each year and associated costs 

 Received summaries of internal audits  

 Received the External Auditors’ opinion on the financial statements, Annual Audit 
Plan and Report 

 Examined the circumstances when Standing Orders were waived 

 Reviewed schedules of losses and compensations  

 Reviewed the standards of business conducted by and for the Board, with the aim of 
ensuring high standards of probity. 
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The Trust has an internal audit function, and the internal auditors attend all meetings of the 
Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee to report on progress against the annual audit plan 
and present summary reports of all internal audits conducted. The internal audit function in 
2017/18 was carried out by KPMG.  Internal audit’s main functions are to provide 
independent assurance that an organisation’s risk management, governance and internal 
control processes are operating effectively by: 
 

 Reviewing the Trust’s internal control system 

 Undertaking investigations into particular aspects of the Trust’s operations 

 Examining relevant financial and operating information 

 Undertaking VFM audits 

 Reviewing compliance by the Trust with particular laws or regulations 

 Identifying, assessing and controlling significant risks to the Trust. 

External auditors review the accuracy of the Annual Accounts and may carry out various 
reviews in accordance with the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts. Directors made the 
auditors aware of all the information that they require to carry out their audit 
responsibilities in accordance with the Audit Code.  
 
During 2017/18, the Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee considered a range of issues 
including matters raised through internal audit.  The committee maintains a formal work 
plan and action log to ensure that areas of concerns are followed up and addressed by the 
executive team.  
 
The Trust employed EY as its external auditing firm in 2017/18.  They were appointed in 
2016 following a competitive process and their contract is until September 2019.   
 
For 2017/18, the Trust paid audit fees (Statutory Audit and Assurance on the Quality 
Account) to the external auditor of £70k and £6k for the Charitable Fund Statutory Audit.  
 

Finance and Performance Committee 
 
The Finance and Performance Committee was established in June 2017 as a committee of 
the Board of Directors, replacing the Financial Oversight Committee.  The remit of the 
committee is to provide assurance on the systems of control and governance specifically in 
relation to operational performance, workforce and financial planning and reporting. 
 

Name 

 

Role Meeting 
attendance  

Neil Rhodes – Chair Non-executive Director 10 of 10 

Karen Barnard Director of People and Organisational 
Development 

8 of 10 

Martin McAreavey Non-executive Director (resigned 27 
September 2017) 

5 of 5 
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David Purdue Deputy Chief Executive (from 1 January 
2018) and Chief Operating Officer 

9 of 10 

Jon Sargeant Director of Finance 10 of 10 

Philippe Serna Non-executive Director 8 of 10 

 
In the year the Committee has, on behalf of the Board: 
 

 Provided assurance on:  

- Current financial, workforce and operational performance, 

- Financial forecasts, budgets and plans in light of trends and operational 

expectations, 

- Plans and processes for the implementation of Effectiveness and Efficiency 

Improvement plans, 

- Any specific risks in the Board Assurance Framework relevant to the committee. 

 Reviewed and developed strategy in relation to clinical site development, estates 

and facilities, IT and information and finance.  

 Undertaken deep dives into key service areas, effectiveness and efficiency plans and 

areas of performance. 

 

Quality and Effectiveness Committee 
 
The Quality and Effectiveness Committee was established in June 2017 as a committee of 
the Board of Directors, replacing the Clinical Governance Oversight Committee. The remit of 
the committee is to provide assurance on the systems of control and governance specifically 
in relation to clinical quality and governance and organisational effectiveness. 
 

Name 

 

Role Meeting 
attendance  

Linn Phipps – Chair Non-executive Director 5 of 5  

Alan Armstrong Non-executive Director 5 of 5 

Karen Barnard 

 
 

Director of People and Organisational 
Development 

 

5 of 5 

Moira Hardy Acting Director of Nursing, Midwifery 
and Quality (until 31 December 2017) 
and Director of Nursing, Midwifery and 
Allied Health Professionals (from 1 
January 2018) 

5 of 5 

Martin McAreavey 

 

Non-executive Director (resigned 27 
September 2017) 

2 of 2 

Sewa Singh Medical Director 5 of 5 
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In the year the Committee has, on behalf of the Board: 
 

 Provided assurance on: 

 - The effectiveness of clinical governance, clinical risk management and clinical 

control, 

- Compliance with Care Quality Commission standards, 

- Adverse clinical incidents, complaints and litigation and examples of good 

practice and learning, 

- Comments, compliments and complaints, 

- Workforce matters including workforce planning, staff engagement, training, 

education and development, staff wellbeing, equality and diversity, employee 

relations and HR and OD systems and processes. 

 Reviewed and developed strategy in relation to clinical site development, patient 

experience and person centred care, clinical governance, research and development, 

quality improvement and innovation, people and workforce development and 

communications and engagement. 

 Undertaken strategic discussions and deep dives into quality, governance and 

workforce related issues. 

 Carried out interrogations of key risks on the Trust’s corporate risk register and 

board assurance framework. 

 Ensured that the Trust has reliable, up-to-date information about what it is like being 

a patient experiencing care administered by the Trust. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 
 
 

Council of Governors 
 
During 2017/18 the Council of Governors met on four occasions. Council of Governors 
meetings are held in public. The composition of the Council of Governors, including 
attendance at Council of Governors meetings is shown below: 
 

Name 

 
Constituency / Partner Organisation Meeting 

attendance 

Peter Abell  Public – Bassetlaw (from 23 June 2017) 3 of 3 

Michael Addenbrooke Public – Doncaster  (Vice Chairman) 4 of 4 

Philip Beavers Public – Doncaster 4 of 4 

Shelley Brailsford  Public – Doncaster  4 of 4 

Mark Bright Public – Doncaster (from 23 June 2017) 3 of 3 

Hazel Brand Public – Bassetlaw  2 of 4 

Anwar-ul-aq Choudhry Public – Doncaster  2 of 4 

Sharon Cook Public – Bassetlaw 0 of 3 

David Cuckson Public – Rest of England & Wales 4 of 4 

Dev Das Public – Doncaster (to 26 July 2017) 1 of 1 

Eddie Dobbs Public – Doncaster  2 of 4 

Andrina Hardcastle Public – Doncaster (from 23 June to 21 December 
2017) 

2 of 2 

Nicky Hogarth Public – Doncaster  3 of 4 

Peter Husselbee Public – Bassetlaw (to 22 June 2017) 1 of 1 

Lynne Logan Public – Doncaster (23 June 2017) 2 of 3 

Bev Marshall Public – Doncaster  3 of 4 

Brenda Maslen  Public – Doncaster 4 of 4 

David Northwood Public – Doncaster (from 26 July 2017) 2 of 3 

Susan Overend Public – Bassetlaw 4 of 4 

John Plant Public – Doncaster (to 22 June 2017) 1 of 1 

Patricia Ricketts Public – Doncaster (to 22 June 2017) 1 of 1 

Liz Staveley-Churton Public – Rest of England and Wales (from 23 June 
2017) 

2 of 3 

George Webb Public – Doncaster (Lead Governor) 3 of 4 

Maureen Young Public – Doncaster  3 of 4 

Karl Bower Staff – Other Healthcare Professionals (from 21 
October 2017) 

1 of 2 

Duncan Carratt Staff – Non-clinical (from 23 June 2017) 3 of 3 

Dr Vivek Desai Staff – Medical and Dental 2 of 3 

Lynn Goy Staff – Nurses and Midwives  3 of 4 

Shahida Khalele Staff – Other Healthcare Professionals (to 20 0 of 1 
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October 2017) 

Lorraine Robinson Staff – Nurses and Midwives  3 of 4 

Roy Underwood Staff – Non-Clinical 3 of 4 

Prof Ruth Allarton Partner – Sheffield Hallam University  3 of 4 

Dr Oliver Bandmann Partner – Sheffield University (to 9 November 
2017) 

0 of 1 

Prof Rob Coleman  Partner – Sheffield University (from 10 November 
2017) 

2 of 2 

Lisa Bromley Partner – Bassetlaw CCG (to 31 August 2017) 2 of 2 

Kathryn Dixon Partner – Doncaster College (from 2 March 2018) n/a 

Pat Knight Partner - Doncaster MBC (to 22 June 2017) 1 of 1 

Griff Jones Partner – Doncaster MBC (from 7 September 2017) 2 of 2 

Ainsley MacDonnell Partner - Nottinghamshire County Council 2 of 4 

Anthony Fitzgerald Partner – Doncaster CCG  3 of 4 

Victoria McGregor-Riley Partner – Bassetlaw CCG (from 1 September 2017) 2 of 2 

Susan Shaw Partner – Bassetlaw District Council  2 of 4 

Rupert Suckling Partner - Doncaster MBC  2 of 4 

Clive Tattley Partner - Bassetlaw CVS 4 of 4 

 
Our public and staff governors are elected by the members of their constituencies, while our 
partner governors are appointed by the partner organisations named in our constitution. 
 
In addition to the Chair of the Board, all directors attend Council of Governors meetings to 
listen to governors’ views and to brief and advise governors on the business of the Trust.   
 

Director 

 
Role Council of 

Governors 
meeting 

attendance 

Suzy Brain England OBE Chair of the Board  4 of 4 

Alan Armstrong 
Non-executive Director (Senior Independent 
Director) 

4 of 4 

Martin McAreavey 
Non-executive Director (resigned 27 September 
2017) 

2 of 2 

John Parker 
Non-executive Director (left the Trust 31 March 
2018) 

2 of 4 

Linn Phipps Non-executive Director  3 of 4 

Neil Rhodes Non-executive Director   4 of 4 

Philippe Serna  Non-executive Director 0 of 4 

Richard Parker Chief Executive 4 of 4 

Karen Barnard 
Director of People and Organisational 
Development  

4 of 4 

Moira Hardy Acting Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Quality 4 of 4 
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(until 31 December 2017) & Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals (from 1 
January 2018) 

David Purdue 
Chief Operating Officer (and Deputy Chief 
Executive from 1 January 2018) 

4 of 4 

Jon Sargeant Director of Finance  3 of 4 

Sewa Singh Medical Director 3 of 4 

 

Appointments and Remuneration Committee of the Council of Governors 

 

Non-executive Directors, including the Chair, are appointed for a term of office of up to 
three years, and may be removed by the Council of Governors. The Council of Governors 
delegates the recruitment and selection of candidates to its Appointments and 
Remuneration Committee. 
 
During 2017/18, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee of the Council of 
Governors was convened to discuss the recruitment of Non-executive Directors, objective 
setting and performance evaluation for the Chair and Non-executives and remuneration of 
Chair and Non-executives. The committee recommended the following appointments, all of 
which were approved by the Council of Governors:  
 

 Ruth Allarton, appointed Associate Non-executive Director for a term of five months 
commencing 1 November 2017 until 31 March 2018 

 Pat Drake, appointed Non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing 
1 April 2018 

 Kath Smart, appointed Non-executive Director for a term of three years commencing 
1 April 2018 

 
The committee was convened on seven occasions during the year. 
 
Open advertisement is used for all new appointments. Although the committee has not 

traditionally used open advertisement for reappointments of existing directors, in August 

2017 the Committee agreed that all four Non-executive Director roles whose terms ended in 

2017/18 would proceed to open competition in order to better enhance the diversity of the 

Trust’s membership, patients and staff. 

The membership of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee during the year 
consisted of: 
 

Name Role Attendance 

Suzy Brain England OBE Chair of the Board 5 of 5 

Mike Addenbrooke Public Governor, Doncaster 5 of 5 

Alan Armstrong Senior Independent Director (Chair of the 
committee in respect of the Chair’s objective 
setting) 

1 of 1 
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Ruth Allarton Partner Governor 2 of 5 

Phil Beavers Public Governor, Doncaster (from 27 July 2017) 5 of 5 

Hazel Brand Public Governor, Bassetlaw (by agreement of 
Council of Governors, 31 January 2018) 

1 of 1 

David Cuckson Public Governor, Rest of England & Wales  4 of 5 

Lynn Goy Staff Governor (from 19 December 2017) 1 of 1 

Brenda Maslen  Public Governor, Doncaster (from 27 July 2017) 4 of 5 

Clive Tattley Partner Governor 4 of 5 

George Webb Public Governor, Doncaster 4 of 5 

Roy Underwood Staff Governor (to 20 November 2017) 2 of 4 

 
On two occasions in the year, the Committee sat as a panel to interview candidates for Non-
executive Director roles.  On these occasions the membership of the Appointments and 
Remuneration Committee was as follows: 
 

Name Role Attendance 

Suzy Brain England OBE Chair of the Board 2 of 2 

Mike Addenbrooke Public Governor, Doncaster 1 of 1 

Phil Beavers Public Governor, Doncaster (from 27 July 2017) 2 of 2 

Hazel Brand Public Governor, Bassetlaw (by agreement of 
Council of Governors, 31 January 2018) 

1 of 1 

David Cuckson Public Governor, Rest of England & Wales  2 of 2 

Brenda Maslen  Public Governor, Doncaster (from 27 July 2017) 1 of 1 

Clive Tattley Partner Governor 1 of 1 

George Webb Public Governor, Doncaster 1 of 1 

 
Governor elections and terms of office 

Governors serve for a three year term of office and are eligible to stand for re-election or re-
appointment at the end of that period. There is a maximum of three terms.  
 
During the year ending 31 March 2018, the following elections were held: 
 
Constituency Date of election No. of seats No. of 

candidates 
Ballot turnout 
(if applicable) 

Public – Bassetlaw 5 June 2017 3 8 28% 

Public – Doncaster 5 June 2017 2 14 13.3% 

Public – Rest of England and 
Wales 

5 June 2017 2 3 10.3% 

Staff – Non-clinical 5 June 2017 1 2 16.7% 

Staff – Nurses and Midwives 5 June 2017 1 1 n/a 

Staff – Other Healthcare 
Professionals 

5 June 2017 1 1 n/a 
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Membership 

 
The trust has two categories of members: 
 

 Public members - people who live within the areas covered by either of the three 
public constituencies: 

o Bassetlaw District  
o Doncaster Metropolitan Borough  
o Rest of England and Wales. 

 

 Staff members - Trust staff automatically become members unless they decide to 
‘opt-out’. There are four staff classes: 

o Medical and Dental  
o Nurses and Midwives 
o Other healthcare professionals 
o Non-clinical. 

 
At 31 March 2018, there are 16,145 members overall. An analysis of our current membership 
body is provided below: 
 

 Number of members at 
31 March 2018 

Public Constituency 9,644 

Doncaster 5,601 

Bassetlaw 2,870 

Rest of England & Wales 1,172 

Staff Constituency 6,501 

Nurses and Midwives 3,202 

Non-clinical 1,988 

Other healthcare professionals 714 

Medical and Dental 597 

TOTAL 16,145 

 
The Trust’s current membership strategy is to improve the quality and quantity of member 
engagement with a focus on underrepresented groups rather than increasing the overall 
membership numbers. 
 
The Trust held one member event during 2017/18 on medical imaging and oncology.  The 
Trust also held an Annual Members’ Meeting, where our staff put on health related displays 
and stalls.  
 
We work to engage with our members, and support Governors to seek the views of 
members, in a number of ways, including: 
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 Continuing to communicate directly with individual members and keeping them 
informed regarding governors activities via the member magazine, Foundations for 
Health. 

 Inviting feedback from members through the Foundation Trust Office. 

 Holding member events on the topics that our members are interested in, and 
seeking their feedback on the services discussed.  

 Governor attendance at local community events, targeting events at schools and 
colleges in order to recruit and engage with young people. 

 Continuing to regularly inform the membership of the Trust’s plans and activities 
through the member magazine, Foundations for Health. 

 Working to ensure contested Governor elections and improved member 
participation in the election process. 

 Working to recruit and engage young members, who are currently under-
represented, through engagement with local schools. 

 Publicising the governor role and the ‘Governor Patient Experience Pledge’ through 
the use of posters and cards. 

 Holding ‘meet the governor’ events at each of our main hospital sites. 
 
Members who wish to contact directors or Governors may do so via the Foundation Trust 
Office on foundation.office@dbh.nhs.uk or 01302 644157, or by post to: Trust Board 
Secretary, Doncaster Royal Infirmary, Armthorpe Road, Doncaster, DN2 5LT. 
 

Steps that Board members have taken to understand the views of governors and 
members 

Executive and Non-executive Directors attend Council of Governors meetings to offer their 
knowledge on their areas of expertise and to listen to the views of Governors. Other steps 
that directors have taken to understand the views of Governors and members are: 
 

 Attendance at governors’ quarterly ‘time out’ sessions and monthly governor briefs 

 Attendance at Council of Governors’ committee meetings where appropriate 

 Giving governors opportunities to raise queries and concerns directly with directors  

 Regular meetings and briefings between the Council of Governors, Chief Executive and Chair 

of the Board 

 Accessibility of the Chair of the Board, Trust Board Secretary, Senior Independent Director, 

and Foundation Trust Office 

 Nominated governor observers are invited to observe or sit on committees with directors, 

including the Finance and Performance Committee, Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee, 

Quality and Effectiveness Committee and Fred and Ann Green Legacy Advisory Group 

 Governor participation in Ward Quality Assurance Toolkit inspections 

 Governor sponsorship of wards 

 Consultation sessions with governors regarding the development of Trust forward plans 

 Governor views are sought as part of the process for appraising the performance of the 

Chair of the Board and Non-executive Directors 

 Sharing information, such as Board minutes, Governors’ Brief, reports and briefing papers 

and Foundations for Health, the members’ magazine. 



77 
 
 

NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance 
 

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has applied the 
principles of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance on a comply or explain basis. 
The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, most recently revised in July 2014, is based 
on the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012. 
 
For the year ending 31 March 2018, the Board considers that it was fully compliant with the 
provisions of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance. 
 
The Board of Directors is committed to high standards of corporate governance, 
understanding the importance of transparency and accountability and the impact of Board 
effectiveness on organisational performance. The Trust carries out an ongoing programme 
of work to ensure that its governance procedures are in line with the principles of the Code, 
including: 
 

 Supporting governors to appoint Non-executive Directors and external auditors with 
appropriate skills and experience 

 Ensuring a tailored and in-depth induction programme for the new Chair, Non-
executive Directors and Governors  

 Facilitating an external review of the Trust’s governance arrangements 

 Working with governors in ‘time out’ sessions, briefings and enabling governors to 
attend meetings of the committees of the Board, to improve the ways in which 
governors engage with and hold the Board to account 

 Ongoing review of compliance with the Code of Governance by the Council of 
Governors and Board of Directors when making decisions which impact on 
governance arrangements. 
 

For details on the disclosures required by the Code of Governance, see below: 
 

Ref.  Requirement  Disclosure 

A.1.1  This statement should also describe how any disagreements 
between the council of governors and the board of 
directors will be resolved. The annual report should include 
this schedule of matters or a summary statement of how 
the board of directors and the council of governors operate, 
including a summary of the types of decisions to be taken 
by each of the boards and which are delegated to the 
executive management of the board of directors.  

See Governance Report (p. 
64). 
 

A.1.2  The annual report should identify the chairperson, the 
deputy chairperson (where there is one), the chief 
executive, the senior independent director (see A.4.1) and 
the chairperson and members of the nominations, audit 
and remuneration committees. It should also set out the 
number of meetings of the board and those committees 
and individual attendance by directors.  

See Accountability Report 
(p. 32); Remuneration 
Report (p. 41); and Audit 
Committee section (p. 65). 
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A.5.3  The annual report should identify the members of the 
council of governors, including a description of the 
constituency or organisation that they represent, whether 
they were elected or appointed, and the duration of their 
appointments. The annual report should also identify the 
nominated lead governor.  

See Council of Governors 
section (p. 68-69) 

B.1.1  The board of directors should identify in the annual report 
each non-executive director it considers to be independent, 
with reasons where necessary.  

See Accountability Report 
(p.32) 

B.1.4  The board of directors should include in its annual report a 
description of each director’s skills, expertise and 
experience. Alongside this, in the annual report, the board 
should make a clear statement about its own balance, 
completeness and appropriateness to the requirements of 
the NHS foundation trust.  

See Accountability Report 
(p. 32-35) 

B.2.10  A separate section of the annual report should describe the 
work of the nominations committee(s), including the 
process it has used in relation to board appointments.  

See Remuneration Report 
(p.41) and Council of 
Governors section (p. 70-
72) 

B.3.1  A chairperson’s other significant commitments should be 
disclosed to the council of governors before appointment 
and included in the annual report. Changes to such 
commitments should be reported to the council of 
governors as they arise, and included in the next annual 
report.  

See Governance Report 
(p.32) 

B.5.6  Governors should canvass the opinion of the trust’s 
members and the public, and for appointed governors the 
body they represent, on the NHS foundation trust’s forward 
plan, including its objectives, priorities and strategy, and 
their views should be communicated to the board of 
directors. The annual report should contain a statement as 
to how this requirement has been undertaken and satisfied.  

See membership section 
(p.74) 

B.6.1  The board of directors should state in the annual report 
how performance evaluation of the board, its committees, 
and its directors, including the chairperson, has been 
conducted.  

See Governance Report 
(p.64-65) 

B.6.2  Where an external facilitator is used for reviews of 
governance, they should be identified and a statement 
made as to whether they have any other connection with 
the trust.  

See the Governance Report 
(p.65) – not used in the past 
year  

C.1.1  The directors should explain in the annual report their 
responsibility for preparing the annual report and accounts, 
and state that they consider the annual report and 
accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and 
understandable and provide the information necessary for 
patients, regulators and other stakeholders to assess the 
NHS foundation trust’s performance, business model and 

See the Annual Governance 
Statement (p.80) and 
Auditor’s report (p.87) 
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strategy. There should be a statement by the external 
auditor about their reporting responsibilities. Directors 
should also explain their approach to quality governance in 
the Annual Governance Statement (within the annual 
report).  

C.2.1  The annual report should contain a statement that the 
board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of its 
system of internal controls.  

See the Annual Governance 
Statement (p.87-89) 

C.2.2  A trust should disclose in the annual report:  
(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is 
structured and what role it performs; or  
(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact 
and the processes it employs for evaluating and continually 
improving the effectiveness of its risk management and 
internal control processes.  

See Audit Committee 
section (p.66) 
 

C.3.5  If the council of governors does not accept the audit 
committee’s recommendation on the appointment, 
reappointment or removal of an external auditor, the board 
of directors should include in the annual report a statement 
from the audit committee explaining the recommendation 
and should set out reasons why the council of governors 
has taken a different position.  

This has not occurred. 

C.3.9  A separate section of the annual report should describe the 
work of the audit committee in discharging its 
responsibilities. The report should include:  

 the significant issues that the committee considered in 
relation to financial statements, operations and 
compliance, and how these issues were addressed;  

 an explanation of how it has assessed the effectiveness 
of the external audit process and the approach taken to 
the appointment or re-appointment of the external 
auditor, the value of external audit services and 
information on the length of tenure of the current audit 
firm and when a tender was last conducted; and  

 if the external auditor provides non-audit services, the 
value of the non-audit services provided and an 
explanation of how auditor objectivity and 
independence are safeguarded.  

See Audit Committee 
section (p.65-66) 

D.1.3  Where an NHS Foundation Trust releases an Executive 
Director, for example to serve as a Non-executive Director 
elsewhere, the remuneration disclosures of the annual 
report should include a statement of whether or not the 
director will retain such earnings.  

This has not occurred. 

E.1.5  The board of directors should state in the annual report the 
steps they have taken to ensure that the members of the 
board, and in particular the non-executive directors, 

See Council of Governors 
section (p.74) 
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develop an understanding of the views of governors and 
members about the NHS foundation trust, for example 
through attendance at meetings of the council of governors, 
direct face-to-face contact, surveys of members’ opinions 
and consultations.  

E.1.6  The board of directors should monitor how representative 
the NHS foundation trust's membership is and the level and 
effectiveness of member engagement and report on this in 
the annual report.  

See membership section (p. 
73) 
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Single Oversight Framework 
 
NHS Improvement’s Single Oversight Framework provides the framework for overseeing 
providers and identifying potential support needs. The framework looks at five themes: 
 

 Quality of care 

 Finance and use of resources 

 Operational performance 

 Strategic change 

 Leadership and improvement capability (well-led). 

 
Based on information from these themes, providers are segmented from 1 to 4, where ‘4’ 
reflects providers receiving the most support, and ‘1’ reflects providers with maximum 
autonomy. A foundation trust will only be in segments 3 or 4 where it has been found to be 
in breach or suspected breach of its licence. 
 
Segmentation 
 
The Trust ended the year in segment three (mandated support) which reflects the breach of 
licence notified on 24 February 2016.  The Trust has an additional condition on its licence 
that it has in place sufficient and effective board, management and clinical leadership 
capacity and capability as well as appropriate governance systems and processes.  On 29 
February 2016, the Trust provided, and NHS Improvement accepted, a series of 
undertakings to ensure that the breaches do not continue or reoccur.   These related to: 
 

 Sustainability 

 Financial governance 

 Distressed Financing and Sustainability and Transformation Fund 

 General undertakings 

The undertakings provided have been discharged and progress is reported regularly to 
Board of Directors. 
 
This segmentation information is the Trust’s position as at 31 March 2018. Current 
segmentation information for NHS trusts and foundation trusts is published on the NHS 
Improvement website. 
 
Finance and use of resources 
 
The finance and use of resources theme is based on the scoring of five measures from ‘1’ to 
‘4’, where ‘1’ reflects the strongest performance. These scores are then weighted to give an 
overall score. Given that finance and use of resources is only one of the five themes feeding 
into the Single Oversight Framework, the segmentation of the Trust disclosed above might 
not be the same as the overall finance score here. 
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Area Metric 2017/18 2016/17 

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 

Financial 
sustainability Capital service cover rating 4 4 4 4 4 

 
4 

 Liquidity rating 3 3 3 3 2 4 

Financial 
efficiency I&E margin rating 4 4 4 4 4 

 
4 

Financial 
controls 

I&E margin: distance from 
financial plan 1 1 1 1 2 

 
 

 Agency rating 2 2 3 3 2 1 

Overall Rating 3 3 3 3 3 3 
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Statement of Accounting Officer’s responsibilities 

The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS 
Foundation Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their 
responsibility for the propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are 
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS Improvement. 
 
Under the NHS Act 2006, NHS Improvement has directed Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts 
in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on 
an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total 
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial year.  
 
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the 
requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:  
 

 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS Improvement, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 
consistent basis  

 Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis  

 State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any 
material departures in the financial statements  

 Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated 
authorities and guidance and  

 Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.  
 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and 
to enable him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the 
above mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.  
 

The financial reporting matters which affected the Trust during the year are outlined further 
in the Annual Governance Statement.  To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have 
properly discharged the responsibilities set out in NHS Improvement’s NHS Foundation Trust 
Accounting Officer Memorandum.  

 
 
 
 

Richard Parker 
Chief Executive (acting in his capacity as Accounting Officer)  
25 May 2018 
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Annual governance statement 
 
Scope of responsibility  
 
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst 
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for 
ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and 
that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities 
as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.  
 
The purpose of the system of internal control 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and 
the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Doncaster and Bassetlaw 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the 
date of approval of the annual report and accounts.  
 
Capacity to handle risk 
 
The Chief Executive has overall accountability and responsibility for risk management, while 
the Executive Directors are responsible for those risks which are relevant to their areas of 
responsibility. In particular, the Medical Director and Director of Nursing, Midwifery and 
Allied Health Professionals are responsible for risk to the safety and quality of patient care, 
and the Director of Finance is responsible for financial risk. The allocation of risks to 
individual directors is outlined in both the Board Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk 
Register. The Trust Board Secretary, on behalf of the Chief Executive, is responsible for the 
Board Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk Register. 
 
Risk policies are reviewed annually, in light of current best practice advice, to assess 
whether changes are required. 
 
Care Group directors and directorate managers are responsible for the risk registers for 
their departments. In addition, management of risk is a fundamental duty of all employees 
whatever their grade, role or status. The Trust uses the Datixweb integrated risk 
management system, and an associated training programme has been undertaken with staff 
at all levels, including Care Group management teams, to ensure that they are aware of 
current good practice in relation to risk management. Local risk management training needs 
are discussed with the risk management department and tailored accordingly, and the Trust 
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Board Secretary’s office may be contacted to provide guidance to staff on application of the 
relevant policies.  
 
The risk and control framework 
 
The Board assures itself of the validity of its corporate governance statement through 
reviews of its governance processes which are routinely undertaken by internal audit.  The 
Trust also underwent a well-led inspection under the CQC framework.  Other assurance 
comes from committee effectiveness reviews, Board and committee inspection of key 
performance metrics, consideration of the board assurance framework and corporate risk 
register, reviews of key governance documents such as the constitution, standing financial 
instructions and standing orders and involvement in a range of processes geared towards 
maintaining focus on quality such as ward walkabouts and quality impact assessments. 
 
The Board is responsible for determining the organisation’s risk appetite, ensuring that 
robust systems of internal control and management are in place and that risks to the 
achievement of organisational objectives are being appropriately managed. During 2017/18 
this responsibility has been supported through the assurance committees of the Board: 

 

 Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee – responsible for non-clinical risk, including 
financial governance, information governance and corporate governance 

 Quality and Effectiveness Committee – responsible for clinical risk, including clinical 
and quality governance 

 Finance and Performance Committee – responsible for undertaking monthly scrutiny 
of financial reporting and progress against effectiveness and efficiency plans. 

 
The primary role of these committees in respect of risk management is to review the 
assurance framework on a quarterly basis, and to satisfy the Board of Directors that there 
are satisfactory review arrangements in place for the Trust’s internal control and risk 
management systems. The arrangements for clinical (quality) risks and non-clinical risks are 
otherwise the same. The Board receives a quarterly report highlighting gaps in control and 
assurance as well as any proposed changes to the assurance framework.  
 
In addition to the above, the committees receive assurance regarding compliance with Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) registration and information governance requirements. Data 
quality forms part of the internal audit annual work plan. Risks to data security are managed 
and controlled through application of the Information Governance Policy and assessment of 
compliance with the requirements in the Information Governance Toolkit. 
 
As part of the Board’s commitment to improving risk management, the Trust’s Corporate 
Risk Register and Assurance Framework underwent significant enhancement in 2017/18 
following the approval of the Trust’s revised strategic direction.  The documentation was 
reviewed by internal audit and received a significant assurance rating with minor 
improvements. 
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The Trust’s Risk Management Strategy covers risk identification, evaluation, recording, 
escalation, control, review and assurance. It also defines the structures for the management 
and ownership of risk. 
 
The Management Board is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the Corporate Risk 
Register, which is linked with the assurance framework, on a monthly basis. Each Care 
Group and department is responsible for maintaining its own risk register, which is a 
standing agenda item on the Care Group management team meeting. Any risk identified as 
‘extreme’ is escalated to the Management Board for consideration regarding action 
required. 
 
To mitigate the risk of planned Efficiency and Effectiveness savings programmes adversely 
impacting on quality of care, all plans are reviewed and signed off by the Medical Director 
and Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals before being approved. 
 
The principal risks to compliance with licence condition FT4 are: 
 

o Risks to the provision of  accurate, comprehensive, timely and up to date financial 
information to support board decision-making and oversight 

o Risk of failure to maintain sound financial governance and control processes 
o Failure to maintain fit for purpose board assurance and governance processes. 

 
The Trust undertakes a variety of work in order to mitigate corporate governance risks, 
including regular audits and reviews of governance processes each year including reviews of 
its constitution and standing orders and of the reporting lines between Board, committees 
and other decision-making bodies. Significant risks to achievement of governance standards 
are included within the assurance framework and corporate risk register, and therefore 
reviewed in line with the processes outlined above. 
 
The Trust has ended 2017/18 in full compliance with the code of governance. The Board 
commissioned its latest external review of its governance arrangements in quarter three of 
2016/17.  The review made a total of 18 recommendations, including around strengthening 
the risk and board assurance processes.  Progress against these recommendations was 
taken through the Board of Directors and audited in quarter four of 2017/18.  The audit 
found all recommendations had been sufficiently embedded, enough to give significant 
assurance to the Board of Directors. 
 
The Business Intelligence Report and Finance Report are the key methods through which 
operational performance data is reported to the Board for oversight and assurance 
purposes. These reports are kept under continuous review and their formats are amended 
regularly in order to ensure they meet the needs of the board and support rigorous 
oversight and decision making.  
 
The most significant risks/challenges currently facing the Trust are: 
 

 Failure to achieve compliance with financial performance and achieve financial plan 

 Failure to achieve effectiveness and efficiency savings 
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 Failure to ensure that estates infrastructure is adequately maintained and upgraded 

in line with current legislation, standards and guidance.        

 Inability to recruit right staff and have staff with right skills 

 Inability to meet Trust's needs for capital investment 

This list is not exhaustive and more details can be found in the Corporate Risk Register, 
where mitigating actions and outcomes are detailed. These risks will be managed through 
the governance and assurance processes outlined above. Outcomes will be assessed 
through the Trust’s management reporting systems. 
 
The Trust has an effective structure in place for public stakeholder involvement, 
predominantly through the Council of Governors. The Trust’s assurance framework has 
been informed by partnership working and a variety of external contacts, including: 
 

 Collaborative working between governors and directors. The Council of Governors 
reviews updates from executive directors on performance, quality, and finance and 
associated risks at its quarterly meetings and through new monthly briefings 

 Consistent engagement with commissioners through contract review meetings and 
other contacts, and in relation to key shared risks 

 Governor observers in attendance at the Finance and Performance Committee, Audit 
and Non-clinical Risk Committee and Quality and Effectiveness Committee. 

 
Public stakeholders are involved in managing risks through involvement in patient safety 
review group and patient experience committee as well as a range of patient safety 
campaigns such as Gina’s Story, Carol’s Story, John’s Campaign and Sign Up to Safety.  
 
The Foundation Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care 
Quality Commission.  
 
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control 
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme 
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme 
rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with 
the timescales detailed in the Regulations.  
 
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under 
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with.  
 
The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans 
are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency 
requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this organisation’s 
obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are 
complied with. 
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Review of the economy, efficient and effectiveness of the use of resources 

 

The following policies and processes are in place to ensure that resources are used 
economically, efficiently and effectively:  
 

 Scheme of Delegation and Reservation of Powers to the Board 

 Standing Financial Instructions and Standing Orders 

 Competitive processes used for procuring non-staff expenditure items 

 Use of materials management and other best practice approaches to hold 
appropriate stock levels and minimise wastage 

 Cost improvement plans and effectiveness and efficiency work-streams, managed by 
the Finance directorate and designed to not impinge on effective delivery of quality 
patient care 

 Grip and control work, including tight controls on vacancy management, non-
permanent staffing and recruitment. 

  
The Board gains assurance regarding financial and budgetary management from a monthly 
finance report. The Audit and Non-Clinical Risk Committee receives reports regarding losses 
and compensations and waiver of standing orders, among others, while the Finance and 
Performance Committee receives monthly detailed reports on progress in delivering 
effectiveness and efficiency plans. Risks to the Trust’s financial objectives are subject to 
regular review and monitoring in the same way as other risks. 
 
A range of internal and external audits that provide further assurance on economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness have been conducted during the year and reported to the Audit 
and Non-clinical Risk Committee.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an annual opinion in accordance with 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, based upon and limited to the work performed, on 
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and 
governance processes (i.e. the system of internal control). This is achieved through a risk-
based programme of work, agreed with management and approved by the Audit and Non-
Clinical Risk Committee, which can provide assurance, subject to the inherent limitations 
described below.  The opinion covers the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 inclusive, 
and is based on the 10 audits that were completed in this period. 
 
For the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, Internal Audit was able to provide significant 
assurance with minor improvement opportunities to reflect that there is generally a sound 
system of internal control which is designed to meet the Trust’s objectives and that 
generally controls are being consistently applied in all the areas reviewed. 
 
Internal audit issued one ‘significant assurance’ report in relation to corporate governance 
and five ‘significant assurance with minor improvement opportunities’ reports relating to 
risk management and the board assurance framework, core financial systems, reference 
costs, estates strategy and workforce. 



89 
 
 

They also issued four ‘partial assurance with significant improvements required’ opinions in 

respect of 2017-18 assignments relating to medical records, medical equipment, staff 

engagement and receipting.  Recommendations are being addressed in each case and 

reported to Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee on a quarterly basis. 

The annual external audit review by EY, as stated in their ISA 260 report, provides an 
unqualified opinion on the Trust’s financial statements. The report identifies in the Value for 
Money assessment that the Trust continues to operate with a significant underlying deficit 
and requires ongoing cash support from NHS Improvement (£15.2m 17/18). 

 
The Trust’s 2017 reference cost index is 95.0, which means that costs are 5% below average. 
 
Information governance 
 
There have been no serious incidents relating to information governance, including data loss 
or confidentiality breach.   
 
Annual Quality Account 
 
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service 
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each 
financial year. NHSI has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and 
content of annual Quality Accounts which incorporate the above legal requirements in the 
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual.  
 
The formulation of the Trust’s Quality Account is led by the Director of Nursing, Midwifery 
and Allied Health Professionals, with the support of the Board of Directors and the Council 
of Governors. The Board of Directors monitors the key measures and objectives in the 
Quality Account on a monthly basis throughout the year. Significant risks to achievement of 
quality priorities are included within the Board assurance framework and corporate risk 
register, and therefore reviewed in line with the processes outlined above.  
 
Data in relation to the measures in the Quality Account is collected and reported alongside 
the data in relation to other performance and quality metrics, including NHSI compliance 
targets. The quality of this data is audited through regular internal audit reviews. 
 
In line with information governance requirements, the Trust carries out a rolling annual 
audit programme of specialty based inpatient waiting times data. 18 weeks data quality is a 
high priority, with a comprehensive rolling programme of routine validation. This ensures 
we have high quality data to maintain the accuracy of waiting times to enable us to treat 
patients in chronological order for the same clinical priority, support demand and capacity 
modelling and ensure accurate performance reporting. The results are reported to the Data 
Quality Group, which reports to the Information Governance Group, and results are used to 
inform action planning and targeted training. Additionally, we undertake quarterly reviews 
of all planned inpatient waiters and the results are shared with our main commissioner, NHS 
Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group.  
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The CQC last conducted a full inspection across all of the Trust’s sites in April 2015, and gave 
the Trust an overall rating of ‘requires improvement’, with a rating of ‘good’ for the Caring 
and Well-Led domains. 74% of areas assessed were rated ‘good’, and no areas were rated 
‘inadequate’, placing the Trust in the top 20% of trusts inspected nationally. The full results 
of the inspection, which provide an external view of the risks presented by the Trust, 
were reported to the Board. An action plan was developed in response to all 
recommendations made following the inspection, and the Trust has implemented all 
recommendations within agreed timescales. A further inspection under the CQC’s new 
framework was carried out between December 2017 and January 2018 and the outcome is 
awaited. 
 
Compliance with CQC standards is monitored by the Quality and Effectiveness Committee, 
and performance against CQUIN and other quality targets is monitored by the Board of 
Directors. The data quality behind quality and performance reports is subject to internal 
audit, the results of which are reported to the Audit and Non-clinical Risk Committee.  
 
Quality governance is subject to rigorous challenge through Non-executive Director and 
Governor engagement and non-executive chairmanship of the Audit and Non-clinical Risk 
and Quality and Effectiveness Committees. Non-executive Directors and Governors also 
actively engage with staff and patients on quality by regularly visiting wards and 
departments. 
 
The 2017/18 quality accounts were reviewed by external audit as part of consideration of 
this annual report and received an unqualified limited assurance report.  
 
Review of effectiveness 

 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed 
by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and executive managers and clinical leads 
within the NHS Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on the content of the Quality 
Account attached to this Annual Report and other performance information available to me.  
 
My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their 
management letter and other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result 
of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board, the Audit 
and Non-clinical Risk, Finance and Performance and Quality and Effectiveness Committees 
and plans to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system 
are in place.  
 
A number of the ways in which the Board and I have received assurance regarding the 
effectiveness of the Board’s system of controls have been outlined above.  
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This year has seen a stable leadership team continuing its efforts to reduce our financial 
deficit whilst continuing to improve standards of care.  Building on our teaching hospital 
status gained in January 2017, we have continued to demonstrate improvement and 
innovation, building an excellent new Quality Improvement and Innovation Team and 
supporting specific projects developed by our own clinicians relating to emergency triage, 
ophthalmology and ear, nose and throat.   
 
We agreed a new strategy and set of strategic objectives and took an active role in the 
developing accountable care partnerships at Place in Doncaster and Bassetlaw and the 
developing Accountable Care Systems for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw.  We reviewed our 
Board governance structures and introduced new arrangements for financial governance 
including effectiveness and efficiency plans and for quality and effectiveness.   
 
We recognise that our organisation would not exist without its fantastic staff and we have 
worked hard throughout the year to engage with them on a number of issues including the 
strategic vision, new catering service and wider local health system changes.  Unfortunately, 
this did not manifest in significantly better staff survey scores.  So we pledge to redouble 
our efforts over the coming year to ensure Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals is an 
employer of choice. 
 
In quality and performance terms, the Board remains assured that governance processes 
are effective. For 2017/18, we have achieved the 62 day wait for first treatment, coming in 
at 93.7%. We narrowly missed our two week referral rates when cancer is not suspected, 
and also missed out on suspected cases, achieving 89.2% instead of the required 93%. All 31 
day targets were achieved. 
 
The overall position for diagnostic waits was 98.4%, a slight deterioration from last year with 
the biggest challenges seen in Audiology. Plans are in place to improve this service in the 
next financial year. 
 
While performing above the national average, we are below the target set for RTT. In order 
to address this issue, weekly meetings have been held throughout the year in order to steer 
performance levels back in-line with our commissioned activity and targets.  To aid in this 
ambition, we have purchased a modelling tool called Gooroo to more accurately model 
activity requirements in the new financial year. 
 
Although we failed to achieve the four hour access target, 2017/18 saw the Trust 
outperform many of the trusts in the region and we were amongst the best performing 
organisations in the country. Despite seeing very high attendances, the Trust managed to 
stay above 90% for all quarters of the year, with particularly strong performance in March, 
achieving 93.3% against the access target, making us 13th best performing in the country.  
 
The Trust ends the year in segment 3 (of 4) in NHSI’s Single Oversight Framework owing to 

the breach on its licence arising from the financial misreporting in February 2016.  This 

remains under review and the Trust is confident of coming out of breach of its licence some 

time during 2018/19. 
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The systems for clinical and non-clinical risk management and governance are aligned, with 
robust processes in place for the monitoring of risks and controls. As part of our work to 
ensure continuous improvement, the format and structure of both the corporate risk 
register and board assurance framework have been refreshed and revised and now reflect 
best governance practice.  
 
Conclusion 

 

Following my review, my opinion is that Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust has a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of 
its policies, aims and objectives.  
 
No significant internal control issues have been identified. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Richard Parker 
Chief Executive  
25 May 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS OF 
DONCASTER AND BASSETLAW TEACHING HOSPITALS NHS TRUST NHS 
FOUNDATION TRUST  
 
Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Group and 
Foundation Trust Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Foundation Trust 
Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Group and 
Foundation Trust Statement of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 51, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual 
(FReM) to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts. 

In our opinion, the financial statements:   

 give a true and fair view of the state of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust and Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its income and 

expenditure and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the Department of Health Group Accounting 

Manual 2017/18 and the directions under paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 of the 

National Health Service Act 2006. 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report 
below. We are independent of the Foundation Trust in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including 
the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraph 24(5) of Schedule 7 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of 
Governors, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.  
 
Material uncertainty related to going concern 
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We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Trust has 
reported a deficit of £11.7m during the year ended 31 March 2018 and, as of that date, the 
Trust’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by £4.8m. As stated in Note 1, these 
events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a material 
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

 

Overview of our audit approach 

Key audit 
matters 

 Going Concern 

 Risk of fraud in revenue recognition 

 Risk of management override 

 PPE valuation 

Audit scope  We performed audit procedures on specific balances for one group 
component (the Trust charitable funds). 

 The components where we performed full or specific audit 
procedures accounted for 99.7% of gross expenditure, 99.8% of 
Revenue and 99.5% of Total assets. 

Materiality  Overall materiality of £7.89m which represents 2% of gross 
expenditure. 

 

Key audit matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the 
most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that 
we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall 
audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the 
engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 
 

Risk Our response to the risk 

 

Key observations 
communicated  to the Audit 
Committee  
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Going concern 

International Auditing 
Standard (ISA (UK&I) 570, 
requires auditors to “obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence about the 
appropriateness of 
management’s use of the 
going concern assumption in 
the preparation and 
presentation of the financial 
statements and to conclude 
whether there is a material 
uncertainty about the 
entity’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. 

The 2016-17 audit opinion 
on the Trust financial 
statements included an 
emphasis of matter relating 
to a material uncertainty 
over the Trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern 
for the foreseeable future. 

During 2017-18 the Trust has 
continued to rely on ongoing 
cash funding from NHS 
Improvement to support 
cash flow and to meet 
financial obligations. The 
Trust was also forecasting a 
£16.5m in-year deficit 
against a background of 
dealing with a significant 
underlying deficit of circa 
£30m. 

 

In responding to the 
identified risk we: 

• Obtained and 
considered 
management’s written 
justification supporting 
why the financial 
statements of the Trust 
are prepared on a going 
concern basis 

• Obtained the future 
financial plans of the 
Trust, including cash 
flow forecasts for a 
period of at least 12 
months from the 
anticipated date of 
signing the financial 
statements and 
considered the 
assumptions underlying 
these 

• Monitored the financial 
position of the Trust and 
considered the factors 
set out in practice note 
10 in relation to going 
concern and our 
reporting responsibilities 

• Reviewed disclosures on 
material uncertainties in 
the financial statements 
for completeness and 
accuracy. 

 

We identified that the Trust 
financial plans include the 
requirement for liquidity 
support to continue into 
2018-19 due to a planned 
in-year deficit of £6.9m. This 
support, whilst anticipated 
to continue and built into 
the financial plan submitted 
to NHS Improvement,  has 
not been formally 
confirmed. 

The Trust has an underlying 
deficit of £30m that has yet 
to be addressed, though the 
Trust is aiming to move into 
annual financial balance 
over the medium to long 
term.  

These matters give rise to a 
material uncertainty relating 
to the Trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. 

The Trust has recognised 
this in note 1 to the financial 
statements, referencing 
that: 

 The Trust has 
contracts in place 
with Commissioners 
to March 2019 

 Financial plans for 
2018-19 have been 
agreed with NHS 
Improvement 

 The Trust is part of 
the local Integrated 
Care System through 
which additional 
investment is 
expected and there 
is an implied support 
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for the continued 
operation of the 
Trust 

 The NHS 
Improvement Board 
have agreed to lift all 
licence conditions on 
the Trust following 
the second year of 
financial delivery 
ahead of plan. 

Risk of fraud in revenue 
recognition 

Under ISA 240 there is a 
presumed risk that revenue 
may be misstated due to 
improper revenue 
recognition.  

In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by 
Practice Note 10 issued by 
the Financial Reporting 
Council, which states that 
auditors should also 
consider the risk that 
material misstatements may 
occur by the manipulation of 
expenditure recognition.  

We consider the significant 
risk does not apply to 
payroll.  

In respect of income and 
expenditure we consider the 
risk is most focussed around 
those items that are non-
routine and involve more 
management estimation and 
judgement such as year-end 
accruals and activity based 
revenue. 

In responding to the 
identified risk we: 

• Documented our 
understanding of the 
processes and controls 
in place to mitigate the 
risks identified, and 
walked through those 
process and controls to 
confirm our 
understanding 

• Identified significant 
accounting estimates, 
discussing assumptions 
and calculation 
methodology with 
management 

• Tested the identified 
significant accounting 
estimates to confirm 
appropriateness and 
consistency with 
supporting records 
considering evidence of 
bias 

• Sample tested material 
revenue and 
expenditure streams 
with a focus on assets 
and liabilities at the 
year-end and 

Our testing has not 
identified any material 
misstatements with respect 
to revenue and expenditure 
recognition. 

Overall our audit work did 
not identify any material 
issues or unusual 
transactions which may 
have indicated that the 
Trust’s financial position had 
been misreported. 

Our review of Department 
of Health agreement of 
balances data identified a 
number of mismatches 
above the £300k NAO 
reporting threshold 
requiring further 
investigation. Following 
review we have gained 
assurance that the amounts 
included by the Trust are 
fairly stated. The Trust has 
not included £644k of 
expenditure with 
Rotherham NHS FT within 
supporting TAC forms and 
this will be reported to the 
National Audit Office as part 
of our reporting on whole of 
government accounts. 
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 compliance with 
accounting policies 

• Reviewed the 
Department of Health 
agreement of balances 
data, sample testing 
intra-NHS transactions 
and investigating 
significant differences 
(outside of DH tolerance 
thresholds). 

• Tested revenue cut-off 
at the period end date 

• Conducted testing to 
identify unrecorded 
liabilities at the year-end 

 

Our testing of assets and 
liabilities within the 
Statement of Financial 
Position identified £1.1m of 
credit balances within 
receivables relating to 
unallocated receipts and 
£1m of debit balances 
within payables relating to 
unallocated payments. 
These balances have been 
reclassified by management 
with no impact on the 
reported financial position 
of the Trust. 

There are no further matters 
to report to you. 

 

Risk of management 
override 

The financial statements as a 
whole are not free of 
material misstatements 
whether caused by fraud or 
error. 

As identified in ISA (UK and 
Ireland) 240, management is 
in a unique position to 
perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate 
accounting records directly 
or indirectly and prepare 
fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise 
appear to be operating 
effectively. We identify and 
respond to this fraud risk on 
every audit engagement. 

 

In responding to the 
identified risk we: 

 We considered the 
nature and form of fraud 
risks as part of our audit 
planning, including 
direct inquiry of 
management about the 
risks of fraud and the 
controls put in place to 
address those risks. We 
also obtained and 
understanding the 
oversight given by those 
charged with 
governance of 
management’s 
processes over fraud. 

 We performed 
mandatory procedures, 
including testing of 
journal entries and 
other adjustments in the 
preparation of the 

We did not identify any 
specific fraud risks other 
than that relating to fraud in 
revenue recognition that 
has already been identified 
as a significant risk.  

We did not identified any 
material weaknesses in 
controls or evidence of 
material management 
override. 

Through our testing of a 
sample of journals, we have 
not identified any matters to 
report to you other than 
relating to the release of 
accruals as below. 

We have not identified any 
instances of inappropriate 
judgements being applied or 
bias within significant 
accounting estimates. We 
did however, identify an 
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financial statements. 

 We performed 
substantive testing of a 
sample of manual 
journsls that met 
specific risk criteria in 
order to understand 
their purpose and 
appropriateness. 

 We reviewed and tested 
significant accounting 
estimates for evidence 
of management bias, 
including those related 
to pensions, accruals, 
asset valuation, 
depreciation and 
provisions. 

 We considered the 
existence of significant 
unusual transactions 
during the year, 
identifying the receipt of 
additional STF income 
and the release of prior 
year over accrued 
expenditure to test. 

 

error in the calculation of 
the injury benefit provision 
leading to an 
understatement of £411k. 
We have also identified an 
overstatement of the bad 
debt provision relating to 
overseas patients of £100k. 
Management have chosen 
not to amend for these 
findings in the final version 
of the financial statements. 

We gained assurance that 
the £16.3m of STF income 
reported in the financial 
statements has been 
appropriately accounted for. 

Our journal testing 
identified that the Trust has 
released £3.6m of accrued 
expenditure from 2016-17 
back to revenue on the basis 
that amounts had been over 
accrued or not matched 
with invoices received 
during 2017-18 following 
the transfer to the new 
ledger system. We have 
reviewed supporting 
documentation supporting 
the adjustment and concur 
with management’s 
treatment in this area. We 
have included this matter as 
a specific representation 
within the letter or 
management 
representation. 
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Risk of misstatement in 
valuation of land and 
buildings 

Land and buildings is the 
most significant balance in 
the Trust’s balance sheet. 
The valuation of land and 
buildings is complex and is 
subject to a number of 
assumptions and 
judgements. A small 
movement in these 
assumptions can have a 
material impact on the 
financial statements.  

 

In responding to the 
identified risk we: 

 Reviewed the output of 
the Trust’s valuer; 

 Challenged the 
assumptions used by the 
Trust’s valuer by 
reference to external 
evidence where 
appropriate; and 

 Tested the journals for 
the valuation 
adjustments to confirm 
that they have been 
accurately processed in 
the financial statements. 

 

As part of completing the 
valuation of land and 
buildings of the Trust for 
2017-18 the external valuer 
identified that there had 
been an error in the 
valuation completed by 
them during 2016-17. 
Certain Trust buildings had 
not been subject to the 
correct valuation indices 
resulting in an 
understatement of the 
increase in valuation for 
2016-17 to the value of 
£3m. 

As this error is not material, 
no adjustment has been 
made to the prior year 
brought forward valuations 
and the impact of this is 
included in the valuation 
movement for 2017-18. 

In reviewing the work of the 
valuer for the current year, 
we have obtained evidence 
to support their 
independence from the 
Trust and of their 
professional qualifications.  

We have reviewed the 
assumptions applied by the 
valuer and have confirmed 
that they are within an 
acceptable range with 
reference to the report of a 
further independent firm of 
valuers relating to NHS 
property assets. 

We have confirmed that the 
valuation movements have 
been correctly processed 
and reflected within the 
financial statements. We did 
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note however, that the 
valuation was not processed 
through the asset register in 
advance of updating the 
ledger and financial 
statements.  

In addition, in applying the 
valuation within note 18 to 
the financial statements, we 
identified that the Trust did 
not eliminate accumulated 
depreciation on revalued 
assets as required by the 
Department of Health 
Group Accounting manual. 
The impact of this is that the 
carry forward cost and 
depreciation of buildings 
was overstated by £23.6m.  

Management have 
corrected for this issue 
which had no impact on the 
net book value of assets 
reported in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

We have no further matters 
to report. 

 
In the prior year, our auditor’s report included a key audit matter in relation to authorisation 
of cash payments.  In the current year, this matter has not been included due to the Trust 
implementing controls and processes to address the identified weakness. The effectiveness 
of the design and operation of controls in this area have been confirmed through 
documentation and walkthrough. 

An overview of the scope of our audit 

Tailoring the scope 
 
Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of 
performance materiality determine our audit scope for the Group and Foundation Trust. This 
enables us to form an opinion on the financial statements. We take into account size, risk 
profile, the organisation of the Foundation Trust and effectiveness of controls, including 
controls and changes in the business environment when assessing the level of work to be 
performed.  All audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team. 
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We conducted an audit of the complete financial information of the Foundation Trust. For 
the consolidated charitable funds, we performed audit procedures on specific accounts that 
we considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the 
financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.  

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures accounted for 99.7% 
(2016-17: 99.3%) of the Group’s gross expenditure, 99.8% (2016-17: 99.5%) of the Group’s 
Revenue and 96.5% (2016-17: 99.6%) of the Group’s Total assets. The specific scope 
charitable funds component contributed 0% (2016-17: 0%) of the Group’s gross expenditure, 
0% (2016-17: 0%) of the Group’s Revenue and 3.0% (2016-17: 3.4%) of the Group’s Total 
assets.  The audit scope of these components may not have included testing of all significant 
accounts of the component but will have contributed to the coverage of significant accounts 
tested for the Group.   

The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed by our audit 
teams. 

                  

 

 

Materiality 
 
The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit 
procedures. 

We determined materiality for the Group to be £7.89 million (2016-17: £3.9 million), which 
is 2% (2016-17: 2%) of gross expenditure.  We believe that gross expenditure provides us 
with [a reasonable basis for determining materiality as this is the key activity and 

            Gross expenditure 

99.7% Full
scope
components

0% Specific
scope
components

0.3% Other
procedures

                        Revenue 

99.8% Full
scope
components

0% Specific
scope
components

0.2% Other
procedures

Total assets 

96.5% Full
scope
components

3% Specific
scope
components

0.5% Other
procedures
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performance measure of the Trust. The materiality percentage has increased from 1% in 
2016-17 to 2% in the current year on the basis that there were no significant adjusted or 
unadjusted errors identified during 2016-17 and our assessment of the control environment 
in place.   

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality and updated it to account 
for the reported group outturn figure. 

Performance materiality 
 
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level.  It is set at an 
amount to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of 
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality. 

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group’s overall 
control environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 50% (2016-17: 
50%) of our planning materiality, namely £3.95million (2016-17: £1.9million).  We have set 
performance materiality at this percentage due to the level of deficiencies identified in the 
prior year. 

Reporting threshold 
 
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial. 

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit 
differences in excess of £0.395m (2016-17: £0.195m), which is set at 5% of planning 
materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting 
on qualitative grounds.   

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of 
materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in 
forming our opinion. 

Other information  

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  The directors are responsible for 
the other information. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  

We read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts 
2017/18 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we 
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report. 
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We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribe by the Code of Audit Practice issued by the NAO 
 
In our opinion: 
 

 the information given in the performance report and accountability report for the 
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the 
financial statements; and 

 the parts of the Remuneration and Staff report identified as subject to audit has 
been properly prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual 2017/18. 

 
Matters on which we report by exception 
 
The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you if 
 

 We issue a report in the public interest under schedule 10(3) of the National Health 

Service Act 2006; 

 We refer the matter to the regulator under schedule 10(6) of the National Health 

Service Act 2006 because we have reason to believe that the Trust, or a director or 

officer of the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a decision involving unlawful 

expenditure, or is about to take, or has taken, unlawful action likely to cause a loss or 

deficiency; 

 we have been unable to satisfy ourselves that the Annual Governance Statement, 

and other information published with the financial statements meets the disclosure 

requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18 

and is not misleading or inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the 

audit; or 

 we have been unable to satisfy ourselves that proper practices have been observed 

in the compilation of the financial statements. 

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 
 
The NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18 requires us to report to you if 
in our opinion, information in the Annual Report is: 

 materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or 

 apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our 

knowledge of the NHS Foundation Trust acquired in the course of performing our 

audit. 

 otherwise misleading.  

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 
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In respect of the following, we have matters to report by exception 
 

 Proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

We report to you if we are not satisfied that the Trust has put in place proper arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources as required by 
schedule 10(1)(d) of the National Health Service Act 2006. 
The table below presents the findings of our work in response to the risk areas identified: 

Risk Our response to the risk Key observations 
communicated to the Audit 
Committee 

Financial resilience and 
sustainability  

The financial position and 
sustainability of the Trust 
continues to be challenging. 

During the year the Trust has 
continued to drawdown cash 
funding from NHS 
Improvement to support 
ongoing liabilities reflective 
of its deficit position. 

With an underlying deficit of 
around £30m the Trust was 
forecasting to achieve an in-
year deficit of £16.5m. This 
was after receipt of 
Sustainability and 
Transformation Funding (STF) 
of £11.6m and a cost 
improvement plan (CIP) 
target of £12.4m. 

Achievement of the planned 
financial performance 
represents a risk to the Trust 
as it was behind plan in 
achieving CIP targets during 
the year along with facing in 
year pressures that were 
driving increases in planned 
expenditure. There were also 
reductions in planned 

In responding to the 
identified risk we: 

• Reviewed the Trust’s 
future financial plans  
and consideration of the 
Trust’s future financial 
plans and the 
assumptions 
underpinning them 

• We considered the 2017-
18 outturn financial 
performance of the Trust 
and the impact of this on 
STF funding 

• Obtained confirmations 
from NHS Improvement 
regarding the level of STF 
funding achieved by the 
Trust and confirmed 
whether the Trust had 
met required 
performance targets to 
support this 

• Considered the 
availability of ongoing 
cash support and the 
impact on the going 
concern assumption 

 

Whilst the reported £11.7m 
deficit of the Trust is larger 
than the £7.2m deficit in 
2016-17, the Trust has 
delivered financial 
performance ahead of its 
planned control total target 
of £16.5m.  

The Trust has continued to 
improve its approach to 
development and delivery of 
CIP targets and has achieved 
84% of the planned savings 
for the year.  

In achieving this 
performance the Trust has 
benefitted from additional 
STF incentive and bonus 
income above the initial 
amount expected with total 
STF income of £16.3m. 

The receipt of STF income is 
not recurrent in nature and 
therefore the Trust 
effectively has an underlying 
deficit that has been 
assessed at around £30m. 

The Trust also continues to 
require ongoing cash support 
from NHS Improvement in 
order to meet financial 
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income in areas such as 
elective procedures. 

The above factors gave rise 
to a risk that the in-year 
deficit could further increase 
as failure to achieve planned 
financial performance would 
result in potential loss of the 
final quarter of STF funding 
of around £2.8m. 

The pressures on in-year 
financial performance, 
underlying deficit and 
reliance on cash support are 
indicative of a risk to the 
ongoing Trust’s ability to 
deploy resources in a 
sustainable manner. 

 liabilities. During the year, 
this support has increased 
the outstanding loan balance 
by £9.2m to £89.4m. The 
Trust expects to require this 
support over the next 12 
months given continued 
planned annual deficits, 
though no formal agreement 
is in place to confirm the 
continued availabilty of this 
funding. 

In order to achieve future 
financial balance and to 
deliver sustainable 
healthcare services in the 
future, the Trust will need to 
address the underlying 
deficit position. 

During the year the Trust has 
improved arrangements for 
CIP design and delivery, 
responding to the findings 
and improvement 
recommendations of 
external consultants. A new 
efficiency team has been 
established to support this, 
led by an efficiency Director 
who reports to the Director 
of Finance.  

This team is taking a much 
more structured approach 
with significant involvement 
and input from clinical staff 
in identification, design and 
delivery of savings plans and 
is a positive development 
that is required given the 
challenging CIP target for 
2018-19 of £17.8m. 

The Trust is also part of the 
South Yorkshire and 
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Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
System, a vehicle which is 
expected to deliver 
significant savings across the 
local health economy along 
with this Trust.  

The Integrated Care System 
is expected to drive service 
rationalisation in the area 
and there are currently key 
projects underway to 
support this such as the 
acute services review. 

On 9th May 2018 the NHSI 
Board agreed to lift licence 
breach conditions, reflecting 
improvements made by the 
Trust and compliance with 
required actions. 

 
Qualified conclusion (Except for)  
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General in August 2017, with the exception of the matters reported above, we are 
satisfied that, in all significant respects, Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.  
 
 
 Responsibilities of Accounting Officer 
As explained more fully in the Accountable Officer’s responsibilities statement set out on 
page 79, the Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal 
control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing 
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council 
of Governors intend to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
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assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.   

Auditor’s responsibilities with respect to value for money arrangements 

We are required to consider whether the Foundation Trust has put in place ‘proper 
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This 
is based on the overall criterion that “in all significant respects, the audited body had proper 
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”.  

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office 
and comprise the arrangements to: 

 Take informed decisions; 

 Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and  

 Work with partners and other third parties.  

In considering your proper arrangements, we draw on the requirements of the guidance 
issued by NHS Improvement to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework 
that you are already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as 
your annual governance statement.  

We are only required to determine whether there are any risk that we consider significant 
within the Code of Audit Practice which defines as: 

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that 
the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public. Significance has both 
qualitative and quantitative aspects”. 

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe 
conclusion on arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the 
nature and extent of further work that may be required. If we do not identify any significant 
risk there is no requirement to carry out further work. Our risk assessment considers both 
the potential financial impact of the issues we have identified, and also the likelihood that 
the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other stakeholders. 

Certificate 

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with the requirements of 
Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice 
issued by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(C&AG).  
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Stephen Clark  
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP 
Birmingham 
25 May 2018 
 
 
 
The maintenance and integrity of the Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust web site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the 
auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors 
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements 
since they were initially presented on the web site. 
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial 
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.  
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Chief Executive’s statement 

This year we have made good progress in a number of areas across our quality and safety 
indicators, in-line with one of our improvement priorities from last year. One particular 
highlight has reaching our target of zero ‘Never Events’. Additionally, we have achieved a 
lower than expected rate of Clostridium Difficile infections, with an improvement in the 
number of potentially preventable cases, with just three out of 28 identified preventable.  
 
This commitment to Infection Prevention and Control was also evidenced in our exemplary 
performance in vaccinating our staff against flu. Due to the efforts of our Health and 
Wellbeing Team along with peer vaccinators, we became the first acute Trust nationally to 
vaccinate over 75% of our front line staff for the second year running. In doing so, we 
successfully delivered the vaccination to over 3,500 doctors and nurses in just two months.  
 
Achieving such a high standard against a potentially preventable harm helps to protect not 
only our staff, but patients in their charge. Similarly, our achievement in improvements 
made in sepsis management has been exemplary, and a further accolade for our education 
teams. 
 
We have also seen a reduction of 20.7% in the number of formal complaints received in the 
year. Additionally, the number of complaints received relating to staff attitude and 
behaviour has dropped by 12.9% in-line with last year’s priorities. This is due to a number of 
initiatives such as education, quality improvement programmes and increased patient 
engagement activities led by our various Heads of Nursing, Midwifery and Therapies. 
Following this theme, in January, the Trust held a Patient Experience Day, championing the 
#HelloMyNameIs campaign across the Trust, as well as further commitments for the 
betterment of those we care for and treat. 
 
Following last year’s priorities, we have seen continued progress with our Hospital 
Standardised Mortality Ratio (HSMR), reducing by 3.66 points from 91.08 last year to 87.42 
this year, much lower than the expected range of 100.  
 
The Standardised Hospital Mortality Indicator (SHMI), which also includes deaths following 
discharge from hospital, has also improved, reducing by one point from 102 to 101. 
Although this is now within the expected range we will look to continue the improvement 
and move to less than 100 in 2018/19. 
 
Throughout 2016/17, the Trust faced significant challenges in staffing the Children’s Ward, 
known as A3, at Bassetlaw Hospital. Due to gaps in nursing staff and the junior doctor rota, 
the decision was taken in partnership with NHS Bassetlaw Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) to close the ward to overnight admissions until suitable staffing could be recruited 
and the service operated overnight safely.  
 
In October 2017, following a period of review, the decision was taken to extend this action 
for the foreseeable future whilst further work is undertaken by partners in South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw Accountable Care System (ACS) to identify possible regional solutions for 
issues such as recruitment. 
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To ensure we have the appropriate skills available to us, we have sought throughout the 
year to ensure that we have the right workforce to deliver our services.  In order to address 
on-going staffing challenges, seen both locally and nationally, we are accessing training 
schemes and working with partners to ensure our workforce are equipped with the 
expertise to provide safe and effective services for our patients.  
 
This focus has led to a development of opportunities with partners from other health 
providers, universities and colleges. This is in order to provide more training opportunities 
for Registered Nurses and unregistered support roles, such as Advanced Care Practitioners, 
Assistant Practitioners and Clinical Nurse Specialist Roles.  Where there are opportunities to 
introduce these types of new roles, we are evaluating their benefit to ensure that they 
contribute to our standards of providing high quality services.  
 
We regularly review our workforce plans to make the best use of the skills and expertise we 
have available in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and this will continue into 2018/19. 
Strengthening this resolve, we are committed to working closely with our local and regional 
partners, looking towards strengthening partnerships with commissioners, primary care and 
other health and social care providers to support the quality initiatives that improve the 
clinical outcomes and experience of care for patients. 
 
The attainment of ‘Teaching Hospital’ status in January 2017 was a major step forward for 
the Trust and recognition of the excellence in teaching and research that is embedded in the 
organisation.  Although difficult to specifically measure, attainment of this status has had a 
direct benefit to patient care and staff.  It has helped with recruitment of new staff, as well 
as retention, raised the profile and interest of current team members in education and 
research and raised the profile of the organisation. It is important that we continue to build 
on this success, increasing our focus on the research, with the future potential of being 
recognised as a University Hospital. 
 
In June 2017 the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) was named as one of the first Accountable Care Systems (ACS) in the 
country. Known as Health and Care Working Together in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, the 
ACS is a partnership of 25 organisations responsible for looking after the health and care of 
the 1.5 million people living in Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield. We 
have continued to work as a key member of this partnership while also taking part in the 
Hospital Services Review.  
 
As we look forward to the year ahead, we recognise that there is more to be done, to 
maintain our zero tolerance to ‘Never Events’, and further reduce infection risks from MRSA 
bacteraemia, whilst maintaining the improvements seen in Sepsis management.  
 
We seek to improve our patient safety indicators further and this is reflected in our 
priorities for improvement in 2018/19. 
 
 
 



112 
 
 

To the best of my knowledge, the information in this Quality Account is accurate. 
 
 
 
 
 

Richard Parker 
Chief Executive 
25 May 2018 
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Looking forward to our priorities for improvement in 2018/19 
 
The Trust has reviewed its performance against the quality priorities for 2017/18 and 
reviewed the risk profile of patient safety, experience and clinical effectiveness. This has 
meant a number of indicators from 2017/18 have been carried forward and the introduction 
new indicators for this year.  
 
These indicators will be reported to the Board or the Clinical Governance Committee on a 
quarterly basis, or more frequently if required. Delivering harm-free care and improving 
patient experience continues to be the Trust’s focus for 2018/19 and the table below 
identifies those indicators which are our highest priorities: 
 
 

Patient safety quality improvement targets 
  

Target 
2018/19 

Actual 
2017/18  

1. Take a zero tolerance approach to Never Events 0 0 

2. Reduce the number of healthcare associated 
infections (MRSA bacteraemia) 

0 2 

3. Maintain reliability of Sepsis management on 
admission to hospital 

>90% 91.7% 

 
 

Clinical effectiveness quality improvement targets Target 
2018/19 

Actual 
2017/18 

4. Reduce the number of deaths which may have been 
preventable -  Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio 
(HSMR)  

<95 88.43 
(Jan 17 – Dec 17) 

5. Reduce the number of deaths which may have been 
preventable - Summary Hospital-level Mortality 
Indicator (SHMI) 

<100 101 
(Dec 16 – Nov 17) 

6. Reduce avoidable Re-admissions (30 days – 
Standardised Readmission Ratio) 

SRR <99 SRR 95.54 
(Dec 16 – Nov 17) 

7. Reduce the number of missed hospital appointments 7% 10.02% 

 
 

Patient experience quality improvement targets Target 
2018/19 

Actual 
2017/18 

8. Reduce the number of complaints 5%  
reduction based 

on 2017/18 

424 
(20.7% reduction 

achieved) 

9. Demonstrate increased Patient Engagement 
activities in each Care Group. 

100% of Care 
Groups 

100% 

10. Reduce the number of complaints relating to staff 
attitude and behaviour 

5%  
reduction based 

on 2017/18 

108 
(12.9% reduction 

achieved) 
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In identifying the priorities for improvement for 2018/19, the Trust has taken into account 
the views of: 
 

 Patients and their care outcomes: Via patient surveys and complaints monitoring   

 Staff: Reports on clinical outcomes and incident reporting 

 Commissioners: Via quality meetings and contractual arrangements 

 Service users: Via the work of the Patient Experience and Engagement Committee 

and priorities identified in analysis of key themes. 

Over the coming year, the Trust aims to develop strategies to improve patient engagement 
and listening activities and we are developing an overarching measure of our improvement 
in patient experience - see page 133 to 136. Ultimately, we believe this will strengthen the 
patients and public voice in how we prioritise quality improvement initiatives. 
 

Looking back on our priorities for improvement in 2017/18 
 
Over the last year we have made substantial improvements in delivering harm free care. The 
following tables provide an overview of our achievements against the quality improvement 
targets we set for 2017/18.  
 
Key 
 
 = target achieved 

 = close to target 

   = behind plan 
 

Patient safety quality improvement targets Target 
2017/18 

Actual 
2017/18 

Progress 

1. Take a zero tolerance approach to “never 
events” 

0 0  

2. Reduce the number of healthcare associated 
infections - MRSA bacteraemia 

0 2 < 

3. Maintain or reduce the number of healthcare 
associated infections - C difficile 

40 28  

4. Increase reliability of Sepsis management on 
admission to hospital* 

>90% 91.7%  

 
 

Clinical effectiveness quality improvement targets Target 
2017/18 

Actual 
2017/18 

Progress 

5. Reduce the number of deaths which may have 
been preventable -  Hospital Standardised 
Mortality Ratio (HSMR)  

<100 88.43 
(Jan 17 – Dec 17) 
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6. Reduce the number of deaths which may have 
been preventable - Summary Hospital-level 
Mortality Indicator (SHMI) 

<100 101 
(Dec 16 – Nov 17) 

 

 

7. Reduce avoidable Re-admissions (30 days – 
Standardised Readmission Ratio) 

SRR <99 SRR 94.4 
(Dec 16 – Nov 17) 

 

 
 

Patient experience quality improvement targets Target 
2017/18 

Actual 
2017/18 

Progress 

8. Reduce the number of complaints 517 424 
(20.7% reduction 

achieved) 

 

9. Demonstrate increased Patient Engagement 

activities in each Care Group. 

100% of 
Care 

Groups 
100% 

 

10. Reduce the number of complaints relating to 

staff attitude and behaviour 

116 108 
(12.9% reduction 

achieved) 

 

 
* Governor selection. 
 

Statements of assurance 
 

Review of services 
 
During 2017/18, Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
provided and or sub-contracted 49 relevant health services.  
 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all the data 
available to them on the quality of care in all 49 of these relevant health services. 
 
The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in 2017/18 represents 100% 
of the total income generated from the provision of relevant health services by Doncaster 
and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for 2017/18.   

 
Participation in clinical audits 
 

During 2017/18, 30 national clinical audits and three national confidential enquiries covered 
relevant health services that Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust provides. 
 
During that period, Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
participated in 26 of the national clinical audits and three of the national confidential 
enquiries which it was eligible to participate in. 
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The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Doncaster and Bassetlaw 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust participated in, and for which data collection was 
completed during 2017/18, are listed below alongside the number of cases submitted to 
each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered cases required by the 
terms of the audit or enquiry. 
 
The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Doncaster and Bassetlaw 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was eligible to participate in during 2017/18 are as 
follows (see table on the next page– ineligible audits stated as NA). 
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Trust 

participation  

Data collection 
completed during 

2017/18 
% of cases submitted 

Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute Myocardial Infarction (MINAP)  Yes Yes 100% 

Adult Cardiac Surgery  NA NA NA 

Bowel Cancer (NBOCAP)  Yes Yes 100% 

Cardiac Rhythm Management (CRM)  Yes Yes 100% 

Case Mix Programme (CMP)  Yes Yes 100% 

Child Health Clinical Outcome Review Programme  Yes Yes 100% 

Congenital Heart Disease (CHD)  NA NA NA 

Coronary Angioplasty/National Audit of Percutaneous Coronary Interventions (PCI)  NA NA NA 

Diabetes (Paediatric) (NPDA)  Yes Yes 100% 

Elective Surgery (National PROMs Programme)  Yes Yes 100% 

Endocrine and Thyroid National Audit  No No - 

Falls and Fragility Fractures Audit programme (FFFAP)  Yes Yes 100% 

Fractured Neck of Femur Yes Yes 100% 

Head and Neck Cancer Audit  No No (1) 

Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) programme  Yes Yes 100% 

Learning Disability Mortality Review Programme  Yes Yes 100% 

Major Trauma Audit  Yes Yes 100% 

Maternal, Newborn and Infant Clinical Outcome Review Programme  Yes Yes 100% 

Medical & Surgical Clinical Outcome Review Programme  Yes Yes 100% 

Mental Health Clinical Outcome Review Programme Yes Yes 100% 

National Audit of Breast Cancer in Older Patients (NABCOP) No No - 

National Audit of Dementia  Yes Yes 100% 

National Bariatric Surgery Registry (NBSR) NA NA NA 

National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA)  Yes Yes 100% 

National Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease Audit Programme (COPD)  Yes Yes 100% 

National Clinical Audit of Specialist Rehabilitation for Patients with Complex Needs following 
Major Injury (NCASRI) 

NA NA 
NA 
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(1) Trust participation has not been possible due to ongoing problems with the national database 

 
 

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion Programme  Yes Yes 100% 

National Diabetes Audit -Adults  Yes Yes 100% 

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit (NELA)  Yes Yes 80% 

National Heart Failure Audit  Yes Yes 100% 

National Joint Registry (NJR)  Yes Yes 100% 

National Lung Cancer Audit (NLCA)  Yes Yes 100% 

National Maternity & Perinatal Audit Yes Yes 100% 

National Neonatal Audit Programme (NNAP) 
(Neonatal Intensive and Special Care) 

Yes Yes 
100% 

National Ophthalmology Audit  No No - 

National Vascular Registry  Yes Yes 100% 

Neurosurgical National Audit Programme NA NA NA 

Oesophago-gastric Cancer (NAOGC)  Yes Yes 100% 

Paediatric Intensive Care (PICANet)  NA NA NA 

Pain in Children  Yes Yes 100% 

Sentinel Stroke National Audit programme (SSNAP)  Yes Yes 100% 

Serious Hazards of Transfusion (SHOT): UK National Haemovigilance NA NA NA 



119 
 
 

The reports of all national clinical audits were reviewed by the Trust in 2017/18 and 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the 
following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided: 
 

 The Trust will undertake any actions which were found necessary to improve the 
quality of healthcare.  

 
The reports of 245 local clinical audits were reviewed in 2017/18 and we intend to take the 
following actions to improve the quality of healthcare: 
 

 The Trust will ensure all actions are taken forward through the clinical governance 
arrangements at specialist and Care Group level. 

 
We have listed below three examples of improvements which have been made as a result of 
audits undertaken throughout 2017/18: 
 
Management of Severe Sepsis and Septic Shock in Adults 
An audit project within the Emergency Department at Bassetlaw Hospital, to monitor our 
compliance with nationally recognised standards in the management of sepsis.  This audit is 
on the RCEM national audit programme. 
 
Following this audit improvements have been observed in the following areas: 

 Frontline staff awareness of the Trust Sepsis 6 Care Pathway 

 The recording of vital signs, senior reviews and blood tests  

 

External Cephalic Version (ECV) in Bassetlaw Hospital  
An audit project within the Obstetrics Department at Bassetlaw Hospital, to monitor 
compliance with Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists Management of Breech 
Presentation 
 
Following this audit and completion of the above action improvements have been observed 
in the following areas: 
 

 100% of appropriate women were informed of ECV trial.   

 All women who had a successful ECV trial gave birth via a normal vaginal delivery. 

Use of Infusion Pumps for IV Fluids administration in Adults on Doncaster Hospital Wards 

An audit was carried out to determine the Trust position against the following standards in line with 
NICE guideline CG37 
 

 100% of intravenous fluids for adults should be administered via a volumetric pump at 

specified volume, rate and duration  

Following this audit an IV Fluid Balance Chart has been implemented in order to improve 

compliance. 
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Participation in clinical research 

 
The number of participants recruited onto studies adopted onto the National Institute for 
Health Research Portfolio research was 1,128, exceeding our annual target of 1,000. This 
included patients receiving relevant health services provided or sub-contracted by the Trust, 
as well as carers and staff. 
 
During 2017/18, 69 additional studies were approved to commence within the Trust, which 
include Clinical Trials of Investigational Medicinal Products (CTIMPs) and Medical Device 
trials.  We support research in differing roles, either as a sponsoring organisation, a 
participating organisation or as a participant identification centre.  The department of 
Research and Development is continuing to expand to reflect both the increasing level of 
research activity and also to support the continuing advancement of research within the 
Trust, with the Research team providing comprehensive support to researchers during the 
planning, set-up and delivery phases of research. 
 
Participation in clinical research demonstrates our commitment to improving the quality of 
care we offer to patients and to making our contribution to wider health improvements.   
 
Our clinical staff members stay abreast of the latest possible treatment options and active 
participation in research leads to successful patient outcomes.  Our engagement with 
clinical research demonstrates our commitment to testing and offering the latest medical 
treatments and techniques. 
 
We have successfully achieved almost all of the KPIs listed in the Research and Development 
Strategy and are in the process of writing our next five-year Strategy, which will commence 
in July 2018. 
 
Within this last year we have been particularly focussed on delivery to the Collaborations for 
Leadership in Applied Health Research and Care (CLAHRC) programme.  This has included 
the twelve-month appointment of a Research Fellow, who will be taking forward specific 
elements of our strategy over the next year. 

Use of the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework 
 
A proportion of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust income 
in 2017/18 was conditional on achieving quality improvement and innovation goals agreed 
between Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and any person 
or body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement with for the provision of 
relevant health services, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation payment 
framework. 
 
Further details of the agreed goals for 2017/18 and for the following 12 month period are 
available electronically at:  
 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/nhs-standard-contract/cquin/cquin-16-17/ 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/nhs-standard-contract/cquin/cquin-16-17/
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The monetary total in 2017/18, conditional upon achieving quality improvement and 
innovation goals, was £7.07m. The total associated payment in 2017/18 is £6.61m 
(associated payment £6.23 in 2016/17). 
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Statements from the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
 

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is required to register 
with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and its current registration status is Full 
Registration compliance with no conditions on registration. 
 
The CQC Commission has not taken enforcement action against Doncaster and Bassetlaw 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust during 2017/18. 
 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has not participated in 
any special reviews or investigations by the CQC during the reporting period. 
 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has undergone an 
unannounced inspection by the CQC in December 2017 followed by a Well Led inspection in 
January 2018. The subsequent findings are expected in quarter one or two of 2018.  
 
From the last comprehensive inspection in April 2015 the outcome report provided in 
October 2015 gave the Trust overall outcome was ‘Requires Improvement’. Doncaster Royal 
Infirmary, Bassetlaw Hospital and Retford Hospital were given outcome of ‘Requires 
Improvement’, with Montagu Hospital being as assessed as ‘Good’.  
 

 
 
Positively noted in the assessment was that there were no services or components of core 
pathways identified as ‘Inadequate’, with a total of 74% of services and their component 
parts being assessed as ‘Good’. 
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The action plan that was developed in response to the Comprehensive Inspection report in 
October 2015 has been delivered and reported through the Clinical Governance Committee 
and the Audit and Non-Clinical Risk Committee. Internal audit have followed up including 
mock inspection. This has identified further recommendations to sustain improvements and 
remedy findings from the mock inspection.  
 

Data quality 
 

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust submitted records 
during 2017/18 to the Secondary Uses Services for inclusion in the Hospital Episode 
Statistics which are included in the latest published data (month 10 2017/18) the 
percentage of records in the published data: 
 
Which included the patient’s valid NHS number was:  

 99.6% for admitted patient care – national position 99.4% 

 99.7% for outpatient care – national position 99.5% 

 97.4%  for accident and emergency care – national position 97.3% 
 
Which included the patients valid General Medical Practice Code was: 

 100% for admitted patient care – national position 99.9% 

 100% for outpatient care – national position 99.8% 

 99.9% for accident and emergency care – national position 99.8% 

Information governance toolkit attainment 2017/18 
 

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Information Governance 
Assessment Report overall score for 2017/18 was 75% and was graded as Satisfactory. 

Clinical coding error rate 
 



124 
 
 

In line with Information Governance Requirements the Trust had external inpatient clinical 
coding audits, (diagnoses and procedure coding) undertaken during 2017/2018 which 
resulted in the Trust achieving IG Level two. The combined results of the audits were: 
 

 Primary diagnoses incorrect  - 6.0 %  

 Secondary diagnoses incorrect – 3.5 % 

 Primary procedures incorrect – 5.3 % 

 Secondary procedures incorrect – 6.2 % 
 
The results should not be extrapolated further than the actual sample audit as some of the 
issues raised may only relate to the speciality selected and will not apply to other 
specialities. Extrapolating the overall results would not provide an accurate position in 
relation to performance.    The audit consisted of 200 finished consultant episodes covering 
a wide variety of specialties. The Trust continues to focus on improving the quality and 
depth of clinical coding and has further improved its data quality assurance processes. 
 

The Trust recognises the importance of high quality information as a fundamental 
requirement for the prompt, safe and effective treatment of patients.  High quality 
information is critical to the delivery of high quality care to patients and in meeting the 
needs of clinical governance, management information, accountability, financial control, 
health planning and service agreements. 
 
High quality business information supports decision making as well as ensuring that the 
Trust reports its performance accurately both internally and externally including 
Commissioners, NHS England, Monitor, the Department of Health and the Care Quality 
Commission.   
 
Achievement of CQUIN, accurate charging for income, through robust data collection and 
reporting, is also reliant on high quality data. It also provides commissioner confidence and 
assurance. 
 
Maintaining and driving improvements in data quality continued to be an area of high 
priority and focus for the Trust, during 2017/2018 and this will continue in 2018/2019 and 
beyond. The Trust continues to invest in data quality resources. 
 
Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust will be taking the following 
actions to improve data quality: 
 

 In October 2016, the Trust implemented a modern Patient Administration System 
(PAS), which alongside other benefits, has provided opportunities for long term 
improved data quality. As with all major new system implementations, there 
continues to be some data quality challenges, and focused work continues to 
address these challenges. 

 

 Nationally, data quality is measured by the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) Data 
Quality Dashboards. For 2017/2018 to month 10 (latest published data) the Trust 
had a composite score of 99.4% across a range of indicators against a national 
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comparative score of 97.7 per cent. The Trust is consistently above the national 
average and is third within Yorkshire and Humberside. This is a significant 
achievement for the Trust and demonstrates a strong commitment to high quality 
data. 

 

 18 Weeks data quality continues to be of high priority for the Trust with routine 
validation firmly embedded within the Trust and an area of focus as part of the 
“Right First Time” Trust project. This ensures we have high quality data to maintain 
the accuracy of waiting times to support treating patients in chronological order for 
the same clinical priority, support demand and capacity modelling and ensure 
accurate performance reporting.  

 

 Key priority packages of work were agreed and delivered in line with the 
requirements laid down within the Data Quality Improvement Plan for 2017/2018 
within the NHS Standard Contract with Commissioners. “Right First Time” data 
quality work continues to be an area of highest priority both for the Trust and 
Commissioners. A key project delivery for 17/18 was the new Emergency Care Data 
Set. The Trust achieved this on time with good data quality outcomes linked to 
CQUIN payments. This work continues in 18/19. 

 

 We continue to provide focus on key data quality performance areas through the 
Trust Data Quality Group. The group identifies key work streams to address areas of 
concern and then monitors and reviews progress against improvement targets. The 
Data Quality Group reports to the Trust Information Governance Group.  

 

 We continue to undertake key regular data quality audits, both to fulfil Information 
Governance and local requirements. We promote the principle of “Right First Time” 
in respect of recording patient information. 

 

For all Trust system implementations, data quality is a key element within the project, 
including potential risks along with mitigating strategies and actions.   
 

Learning from Deaths 
 
During 2017/18, 1,873 of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
patients died. This comprised the following number of deaths which occurred in each 
quarter of that reporting period: 
 

 445 in the first quarter 

 416 in the second quarter 

 565 in the third quarter 

 447 in the fourth quarter. 

 
In 2017/18, 461 case record reviews were carried out in relation to the 1,873 deaths 
included above. 
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In zero cases a death was subjected to both a case record review and an investigation.  The 
number of deaths in each quarter for which a case record review or an investigation was 
carried out: 
 

 105 in the first quarter 

 264 in the second quarter 

 63 in the third quarter 

 29 in the fourth quarter. 

Zero representing 0% of number in initial paragraph of patient deaths during the reporting 
period are judged to be more likely than not to have been due to problems in the care 
provided to the patient. 
 
In relation to each quarter, this consisted of: 
 

 0 representing [number as a 0%] for the first quarter 

 0 representing [number as a 0%] for the second quarter 

 0 representing [number as a 0 %] for the third quarter 

 0 representing [number as a 0%] for the fourth quarter. 

 
These numbers have been estimated using the Structured Judgement Mortality Review 
methodology. 
 
The following themes have been identified from the reviews thus far: 

 Delay in recognising the dying chronically ill patient resulting in unnecessary 
interventions/tests 

 Inappropriate reasons for DNACPR documented 

 Unnecessary ward transfers 

 Poor fluid balance monitoring. 
 
The following actions have been taken following the findings above: 

 Educational sessions presented at trust wide lunchtime lectures which included all of 
the above themes 

 Article written for the trust wide communication ‘Buzz’ 

 Specific wards where fluid balance recording was an issue were alerted via the 
Matron and ward sister and this is being monitored via governance. 

 Individual feedback given to Drs when an inappropriate reason for DNACPR is 
written. 

 
The main impact of the above actions is that patients who are started on an end of life care 
pathway has risen by 22% since we began this process. In addition, we have not identified 
any problems with inappropriate reasons for DNACPR since Q2. 
 
337 case record reviews and 2 investigations completed after 31/3/17 which related to 
deaths which took place before the start of the reporting period. Representing 0.59% of the 
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patient deaths before the reporting period, are judged to be more likely than not to have 
been due to problems in the care provided to the patient.  This number has been estimated 
using the structured judgement methodology. This case was then investigated as a serious 
incident 
 
Seven Day Hospital Services 
The seven day services programme is designed to ensure that patients who are admitted as 
an emergency, receive high quality consistent care, whatever day they enter hospital.  

Ten clinical standards for seven day services in hospital were developed in 2013, these 
standards define what seven day services should achieve, no matter when or where patients 
are admitted. 

Of the ten clinical standards, four were identified as priorities due to their potential in 
improving patient outcomes, these four priority standards are:  

 Standard 2 – Time to first consultant review 

 Standard 5 – Access to diagnostic tests 

 Standard 6 – Access to consultant-directed interventions 

 Standard 8 – Ongoing review by consultant twice daily if high dependency patients, 
daily for others 

 

Progress against these standards is measured by a biannual survey where for standards 2 
and 8, a sample of cases notes is reviewed from a seven day period. Compliance for 
standards 5 and 6 is via self-declaration from the Trust. Target for delivery of the standards 
for the Trust is April 2020 and the threshold for compliance of each standard is 90%. 
 
In March 2017, the Trust achieved 69% for standard 2, declared itself non-compliant for 
weekend Echo and weekend MRI for clinical standard 5 and declared compliance for clinical 
standard 6.  Clinical standard 8, the Trusts achieved an overall score of 88% for patients 
requiring ongoing twice daily consultant reviews and an overall score of 90% for patients 
requiring ongoing daily consultant reviews.  
 
In September 2017 only clinical standard 2 was measured and the Trust achieved 58%.  
 
Meeting with our NHSE’s Sustainable Improvement Team regional co-ordinator has 
highlighted some potential nuances in the data collection, which could be addressed in 
order to improve our position and provide a more accurate Trust position. 
 
The spring 2018 survey is currently underway and the Trust is working closely with NHSE’s 
Sustainable Improvement Team to help ensure that results in this round of the survey are 
optimal. 
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The Trust is required to report on a core set of indicators.  Presented, in the table below is the required data for the last two reporting periods. The data was made available by the 
Health & Social Care Information Centre. 

 
NHS Trusts & NHS Foundation trusts 

performance 

     National Average Doncaster & Bassetlaw NHS Foundation Trust intends to take 
the following actions to improve this number, and so the 
quality of its services by: 

Highest Lowest 

The value and banding of the SHMI* for the Trust 
 

1.128 
Banding 1 
(2013/14) 

1.057 
Banding 2 
(2014/15) 

1.0011 
Banding 2 
(2015/16) 

1.0202 
Banding 2 
(2016/17) 

1 
Banding 2 
(2016/17) 

The Trust will continue to implement  the measures which 
have been outlined on page 131 of the Quality Account 
2017/18 

1.2473 
Banding 1 

0.727 
Banding 3 

Percentage of patient deaths with palliative care 
coded at either diagnosis or speciality level  

19.2% 

(2013/14) 

29.3% 

(2014/15) 
40.98% 

(2015/16) 
45.02% 

(2016/17) 
31.46% 

The Trust has an active process to monitor mortality rates 
including those patients who are in receipt of palliative care, 
include a quality of care review. 

59.76% 11.52% 

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs)  
(EQ 5D Adjusted average health gain)  
 
Groin hernia surgery  
Varicose vein surgery 
Hip replacement surgery 
Knee replacement 

 
 
 

0.076 
0.138 
0.423 
0.322 

(2013/14) 

 
 
 

0.067 
0.119 
0.455 
0.331 

(2014/15) 

 
 
 

0.068 
0.105 
0.403 
0.313 

(2015/16) 

 
 
 

0.070 
* 

0.424 
0.294 

(2016/17) 

 
 
 

0.086 
0.092 
0.217 
0.224 

(2016/17) 

Ensuring that the Clinical Director within the Care Group 
actively monitors the PROMs scores and takes action as 
appropriate in order to improve health gain scores for patients. 

 
 

0.135 
0.131 
0.537 
0.404 

(2016/17) 

 
 

0.006 
0.010 
0.010 
0.242 

(2016/17) 

Readmissions to hospital within  
28 days of being discharged, percentage aged:  
0 – 14 
15 and over 

 
10.24% 
11.86% 

(2011/12) 

 
10.01% 
11.45% 

(2011/12) 

   
At the time of producing this report no data was available from 
NHS Digital.  The next release date for this indicator is yet to be 
confirmed. 

 
14.94% 
11.86% 

(2011/12) 

 
6.40% 
8.96% 

(2011/12) 

Responsiveness to inpatients personal needs 67.4% 
 (2013/14) 

69.9% 
(2014/15) 

70.1% 
(2015/16) 

67.7% 
(2016/17) 

68.1% 
(2016/17) 

The Trust’s achievement is just below the national average.  
We will continue to monitor the views of our service users and 
implement changes where necessary in order to improve the 
experience of our patients. 

85.2% 60% 

Percentage of staff employed by, or under contract to, 
the Trust during the reporting period who would 
recommend the Trust as a provider of care to their 
family or friends 

57% 
(2014) 

64% 
(2015) 

59% 
(2016) 

62% 
(2017) 

70% 
(2017) 

Using staff surveys about the provision of care on wards and 
departments helps identify ways of improving services, 
coupled with demonstrating initiatives to improve the quality 
of care. As staff go through appraisals the discussions about 
the quality of care are included. 

86% 47% 

Percentage of patients who were admitted to hospital 
and who were assessed for venous thromboembolism 

95.03% 
(Jan17 – Mar17) 

95.01% 
(Apr17 – Jun17) 

95.02% 
(Jul17-Sep17) 

95.04% 
(Oct17 – Dec17) 

95.36% 
(Oct17-Dec17) 

Trust performance remains on target. 
100% 76.08% 

Rate of C.difficile per 100,000 bed days 
 

14.2 
(2013/14) 

14.8 
(2014/15 

10.8 
(2015/16)’ 

13.2 
(2016/17) 

13.2 
(2016/17) 

Implementing all the measures which have been outlined on 
page 129 of the Quality Account 2017/18 

82.7 0.0 

Number and rate of patient safety incidents reported 
within the Trust 

Number: 3905 
Rate: 6.6 

(Oct13 – Mar14) 

Number: 5548 
Rate: 36.1 

(Oct14 – Mar15) 

Number: 5522 
Rate: 38.0 

(Oct15 – Mar16) 

Number: 4908 
Rate: 35.9 

(Oct16 – Mar17) 

Number: 
Rate:  

(Oct16 – Mar17) 

Incident reporting rates are within the expected range when 
compared to our class. 

Number: 14506 
Rate: 45.7 

Number: 1301 
Rate: 24.6 

 
Percentage of patient safety incidents which resulted 
in severe harm or death. 

2.63% (103) 
 (Oct13 – Mar14) 

0.99% (55) 
(Oct 14-Mar15) 

0.38% (21) 
 (Oct15 – Mar16) 

0.36% (18) 
(Oct16 – Mar17) 

 
 (Oct16 – Mar17) 

The latest dataset from the National Reporting and Learning 
System (NRLS) shows an increase although below the national 
average. A culture of reporting is promoted and encouraged. 

  

 The Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:  It has been extracted from NHS Digital  without further amendments, and the Trust 
has considered underlying reasons for its performance against these indicators, putting action plans in place as required 
 
* Adjusted average health gain data is not available for Varicose Vein Surgery as casemix adjusted figures are not calculated for organisations with fewer than 30 modelled records.  There are only 18 modelled records 
attributed to the Trust. 
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Achievements against quality improvement priorities 2017/18 
 

Quality improvement 1 – patient safety 

Take a zero tolerance approach to “never events” 
 

Why = these are largely preventable patient safety incidents that should not occur if 
preventative measures have been implemented within the Trust 
Outcome = 1 case, close to target.  
 
During 2017/18 the Trust achieved its aim of having no reported never events during this 
period. Never Events were defined by the National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) as ‘serious, 
largely preventable patient safety incidents that should not occur if the available 
preventative measures have been implemented by healthcare providers.’ Up to January 
2018 
 

Period Number of incidents reported* Per 1000 occupied bed days 

2012/13 2 0.0062 

2013/14 3 0.0092 

2014/15 1 0.0030 

2015/16 2 0.0063 

2016/17 1 0.0034 

2017/18 0 0.0000 

 
 

Progress, Monitoring & Reporting: The learning from root cause analysis which follows any 
such events is shared Trust-wide to ensure that the learning from the Never Event does not 
happen again in the future. Reporting to the Board of Directors takes place monthly. 
 
The Trust has an incident reporting system that specifically enables any member of staff to 
highlight never events or serious incidents, so that any potential case can be reviewed 
rapidly. This provides a culture of openness and the duty of candour to our patients. 
 
This year also saw further embedding of the Trust’s ‘Freedom to Speak Up Guardians’. These 
staff champions help support the Trust to become a more open place to work, where all 
staff feel confident to speak up about patient care at all times.  In December, we were 
visited by Dr Henrietta Hughes, National Guardian for the NHS, who met with staff as well as 
the Trust’s Guardian to further promote the role. 
 

*It should be noted that year on year figures are not directly comparable as the original ‘Never Events’ definition as set out by NPSA in 

April 2009 was expanded for 2011/12 and then expanded further in 2012/13, and revised again in 2014/15. The latest version was 
published in January 2018. 
 
Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems. This data is governed by: National 
definitions 
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Quality improvement 2 – patient safety 

To reduce levels of hospital acquired MRSA bacteraemia 
 

Why = the Trust wishes to ensure the safest possible care for patients by reducing the 
number of healthcare acquired infections. 
 
Outcome = Trust not achieved trajectory with two cases reported during 2017/18; this is 
an improvement from 2016/17 with three cases reported. 
 

Year  Number of reported cases Per 1000 occupied bed days 

2012/13 2 0.0062 

2013/14 2 0.0061 

2014/15 2 0.0061 

2015/16 2 0.0063 

2016/17 3 0.0102 

2017/18 2 0.0072 

 
The Trust had two MRSA bacteraemia against a zero tolerance to avoidable infection in 
2017/18 financial year: 
 

 The first case was a Patient admitted to the respiratory unit with anaemia secondary 

to heart failure. Admission screen was positive and the patient was referred to 

Dermatologist due to severe eczema. The patient had a single temperature spike in 

the background of long term urinary catheter, which was changed under Gentamicin 

cover. Blood culture grew MRSA considered to be a skin flora contaminant. PIR 

outcome: contaminant. 

 The second case was in a Patient known to Chatfield suite, having chemotherapy for 

cancer, PICC was noted on clerking in, but no further mention, or review regarding 

line until patient spiked temperature. Blood cultures taken from PICC were positive 

with MRSA. PIR outcome: avoidable with lapse in care. 

There are policies, procedures and training in place to reduce the risk of MRSA bacteraemia, 
and other infections, with surveillance monitoring systems in place to monitor the reliability 
of the processes that mitigate risks. In addition to impressing upon staff that the compliance 
to policies and procedures is required, the following learning has been identified: 
 

 Patients who are colonised with MRSA are at a greater risk of MRSA infection, so 
avoiding when possible: invasive devices, such as urinary catheters, central venous 
access, IV cannulas, use of IV routes when possible with antibiotics. We have 
launched and are promoting the Zero Tolerance to MRSA: search and destroy 
approach. 

 Documentation of VIP scores is to be monitored more frequently to determine levels 
of compliance, we have also included an audit on CVAD as part of the quality matrix 
for care Group 

 Use of decolonisation treatments proactively for higher risk patients. 
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 To reduce the impact of contaminants in blood culture, we also launched the “Blood 
culture contaminants: Break it Down” promoting the aseptic non-touch technique 
when carrying out venepuncture for blood cultures. 

 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting: Dashboards are completed for the monitoring and 
reporting of HCAI’s.  Reporting to the Board of Directors takes place monthly. 
 
Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems 
This data is governed by: National definitions 
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Quality improvement 3 – patient safety 

To reduce levels of hospital acquired C-diff 
 

Why = the Trust wishes to ensure the safest possible care for patients by reducing the 
number of healthcare acquired infections. 
 
Outcome = Trust trajectory achieved with 28 cases reported during 2017/18, which 
demonstrates a 30% reduction out of a trajectory of 40 cases. 
 

Year  Number of reported cases Per 1000 occupied bed days 

2012/13 67 0.1988 

2013/14 41 0.1269 

2014/15 44 0.1353 

2015/16 32 0.1023 

2016/17 26 0.0891 

2017/18 28 0.1010 

 
 
We recorded 28 cases attributed to the Trust with three of these showing lapses in care due 
to antibiotic use outside Trust guidelines. We met our PHE trajectory for Clostridium difficile 
infection for 2017/18, although failed to achieve our internal Trust trajectory by having 
three cases more.  
 
There was one cross infection involving three patients in the respiratory unit with ribotype 
015.  
 
The lapses in care for the three cases, down by one case compared to 2016/17, have been 
addressed through local action, with antibiotic stewardship being the focus for trust wide 
learning. This means using the correct antibiotic for the presenting need and keeping course 
lengths within recommended use. 
 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting: Dashboards are completed for the monitoring and 
reporting of HCAI’s.  Reporting to the Board of Directors takes place monthly. 
 
Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems 
This data is governed by: National definitions 
 

 



133 
 
 

Quality improvement 4 – patient safety 

Increase reliability of Sepsis management on admission to hospital 
 

Why = In line with NICE guidelines and national CQUIN requirements the Trust wants to 
ensure that we have a systematic approach towards the prompt identification and 
treatment of sepsis.  
 
Outcome = Although in Q1 compliance against screening and timely treatment was below 
90%, from Q2 onwards the Trust achieved over 90% with Q3 achievement reaching over 
95%. 
 
 

Period Sepsis Screening Timely Treatment 

Q1 2017/18 74% 85% 

Q2 2017/18 92% 90% 

Q3 2017/18 97% 100% 

Q4 2017/18 97% 100% 

 
Patient’s presenting as an emergency should be appropriately screened for Sepsis and 
treated in a timely manner. 
 
During Q1 the Trust only achieved 74% screening compliance, with only 85% of high risk 
patients been treated with IV antibiotics within 1 hour as per the NICE recommendations.   
 
Following the implementation of the revised local sepsis protocol screening and treatment 
compliance steadily improved with Q3 screening performance achieving 97%, whilst 100% 
of high risk patients received appropriate treatment in a timely manner. 
 
The Trust will continue to monitor sepsis management for 2018/19. 
 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting: Dashboards are completed for monitoring by Clinical 
Governance Committee. Monthly reporting to the Board of Directors.  National reporting 
quarterly. 
 
Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems 
This data is governed by: National definitions 
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Quality improvement 5 & 6 – clinical effectiveness 

Reduce the number of deaths which may have been preventable 
 

Why = Implementing a system for continuous review of HSMR and SHMI will support 
achievement of no avoidable deaths and no avoidable harm to patients. 
 
Outcome = Target achieved HSMR: 87.42 (Jan 17 – Dec 17) SHMI 101 (Dec 16 – Nov 17). 
 

Year  HSMR SHMI 

2013 111.12 (Jan 13 – Dec 13) 108.47 (Oct 12 – Sep 13) 

2014 108.68 (Jan 14 – Dec 14) 112.88 (Oct 13 – Sep 14) 

2015 95.62 (Jan 15 – Dec 15) 105.7 (Oct 14 – Sep 15) 

2016 91.08 (Jan 16 – Dec 16) 102 (Dec 15 – Nov 16) 

2017 87.42 (Jan 17 – Dec 17) 101 (Dec 16 – Nov 17) 

 
Both the HSMR and the SHMI continue to show a steadily improving picture reflecting the 
work that the Trust has put in in recent years in re-engineering emergency pathways, 
improved depth of coding and 7/7 working as well as undertaking reviews of deaths and 
undertaking thematic analysis for the purpose of learning.  
 
The difference in the values reflects that the SHMI also takes account of deaths within 30 
days of discharge and not just in hospital deaths. 
 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting:  Monitoring of the Trust HSMR and SHMI continues 
through the Mortality Monitoring Group. Reporting to the Board of Directors takes place 
monthly. 
 
Data Source:   HED 
This data is governed by: National definitions 
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Quality improvement 7 – clinical effectiveness 

Reduce the number of avoidable re-admissions 
 

Why = Avoidable emergency re-admissions are a symptom of poor planning and support 
for patients when going home. This can also identify pathways of care that are 
prematurely discharging patients before they are well enough to cope at home. 
 
Outcome =  
 

Year  HSMR 

2013 111.12 (Jan 13 – Dec 13) 

2014 108.68 (Jan 14 – Dec 14) 

2015 95.62 (Jan 15 – Dec 15) 

2016 91.08 (Jan 16 – Dec 16) 

2017 87.42 (Jan 17 – Dec 17) 

 
 
The Trust has an integrated discharge team, collaborating with social care to optimise safe 
discharge planning. This measure illustrates benchmarked performance that remains below 
the 100 standardised ratio, with a reduction in the last available set of data. This illustrates 
that the readmission rate is slightly better than average and a positive indicator, particular 
when coupled with better than average length of stay for both elective and non-elective 
care. 
 
 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting:  Monthly reporting to Clinical Governance Committee. 
 
Data Source:   HED 
This data is governed by: National definitions 
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Quality improvement 8 – patient experience 

Reduce the number of formal complaints 
 

Why = learning from formal complaints is taken forward through actions to improve 
services in line with the needs of the patients. 
 
Outcome = 424 formal complaints have been reported during 2017/18 this demonstrates 
a 21% improvement on the number reported during 2016/17. Target achieved. 
 
The number of formal complaints received into the trust has significantly decreased over 
2017/18 well below the 10% reduction target. First line resolution at ward and department 
level and continued improvement work through education and quality initiatives across our 
Care Groups has been instrumental in this performance. 
 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting: Internal Audit review of actions. Audit of high risk and 
Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman investigations. Reporting to the Patient 
Experience and Engagement Committee.  
 
Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems. This data is governed by: National & 
Local definitions 
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Quality improvement 9 – patient experience 

Demonstrate increased Patient Engagement activities in each Care Group 
 

Why = we are committed to improving the experience of our patients, families and carers. 
This means we want to work in partnership with our staff and patients to seek 
opportunities to improve the quality of care that we provide. We are constantly learning 
from the feedback that we receive and want to actively listen to our patients to 
understand what matters to them. We also recognise that sometimes we don’t always get 
it right. In situations like this we pledge to our patients, families and carers that we will 
work with them to understand where care has not met their your expectations and in 
doing so promise that this will not affect ongoing or future care that they may receive. 
 
 
Outcome = Through an increase in Patient Engagement activities aligned with learning 
from complaints and compliments, our Care Groups have reduced the number of formal 
complaints received and improved Patient Experience evidenced through patient 
feedback and sharing of patient stories. 
 
 
We have pledged our commitment to increasing Patient engagement in our Patient 
Experience & Engagement Strategy in line with our Strategic Direction: 
 
Patients- we will work with patients, their families and carers in co-designing and 

developing accessible, high quality and responsive services that provide a positive patient 

experience. 

People- we are committed to actively listening to our patients, their families and cares and 

welcome all feedback to improve the quality and provide a positive experience of care. 

Performance- we welcome feedback to ensure our services are high performing and our 

Patient Experience Team will be proactive in making access even easier. 

Partners- we will work with our partners to improve patient experience, listen to feedback 

and increase our engagement activities across our communities, using information 

technology tools where appropriate to do so. 

Prevention- we will work with patients and their families and carers in seeking early 

resolution to concerns and complaints, will actively listen and when things go wrong we will 

ensure that lessons learned are shared to improve patient experience.  

 

 



138 
 
 

The development of a balanced scorecard including hard and soft metrics (national and 

local) will also be used to provide thrice yearly surveillance of performance in relation to 

Patient Experience & Engagement: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting: Reporting to Patient Experience & Engagement 
Committee and Clinical Governance Committee 
 

Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems. This data is governed by:  Local 

definitions 
 
 
 
 
  

 

•Use the patient voice to 
drive the improvement 
priorities 

•Support staff & patients 
in Qii initiatives to deliver 
improvements in care 
quality & patient 
experience 

•Recruit  & train patients 
to participate in Qii 
projects  

•Provide consistency in 
quality of care using 
metrics to measure & 
monitor compliance 

•Increase patient 
engagement per Care 
Group 

•Reduce number of 
complaints, and those  
relating to staff attitude 
& behaviour 

•Develop patient stories 
for learning & 
improvement 

•Use soft metric data to 
identify themes for 
improvement 

•Collate all data to 
recognise best practice 
and develop plans to 
provide consistency of 
quality 

•Improve patient experience 
& satisfaction with our 
services 

•Ensure services are person 
centred and responsive to 
individual needs 

•Enhance the role of the 
Patient Experience Team 
being forward facing in 
meeting patients needs & 
supporting engagement 
activities 

Supporting 
Patients, 

Families & 
Carers 

Patient & 
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Engagement 

Improvement 
Quality of 

Care 

 
Patients 
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Quality improvement 10 – patient experience 
 

Reduce the number of complaints relating to staff attitude and behaviour 
 

Why = The good attitudes and behaviour of staff is paramount to providing a good quality 
service and patient experience. This also relates to the families and visitors of patients, 
and reinforces out Trust values. 
 
Outcome = 108, this demonstrates a 12.9% improvement on the number reported during 
2016/17. Target achieved 
 
The Trust set an objective of reducing the number of complaints about staff attitude and 
behaviour for the quality account for 2017/18, to reduce by 10%. The chart below illustrates 
that this has been achieved. The total number of staff attitude and behaviour complaints in 
2016/17 was 129 and in 2017/18 it was 108 this represent an overall reduction of 12.9% 
 
Progress, Monitoring & Reporting:  Reporting monthly to the Patient Experience & 
Engagement Committee and quarterly to the Clinical Governance Committee 
 
Data Source:   Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust internal systems 
This data is  governed by: National definitions  
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 Review of Quality Performance 2017/18 
 
The national and local Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) targets have been 
met on the whole. There was full achievement across all but some aspects of the Sepsis 
screening and treatment and reduction of antibiotic consumption, which were partially 
achieved.  A particularly positive achievement in the CQUIN’s over the last year is the flu 
vaccination of staff, with the Trust being the first to reach the target nationally for the 
second year running. 
 
The Trust uses a range of quality measurements to assess the services that we provide, 
including accreditation for nutrition, infection prevention and control, patient safety and 
staff and patient experience. Much of this information is relevant to each clinical area, so 
have driven quality improvement through use of triangulated measurements and annual 
assessments by Heads of Nursing and Midwifery and Deputy Directors in the Nursing 
Directorate. When issues are identified the Deputy Directors take forward interventions 
with the relevant Head of Nursing or Midwifery and their leadership team to tackle 
performance and provide support. We have taken a harder line with expected standards, 
improving on each ward’s historical performance, to contribute to the Quality Assurance 
Tool outcomes so that we can continue to build on the progress of previous years. 
 
The table below outlines the Trust’s performance against indicators which form part of the 
Single Oversight Framework (SOF): 
 

 
National targets and regulatory 
requirements  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

National 
target or 
trajectory 
2017/18 

 

 
All cancers: 62-day wait for first 
treatment from: 
 

 Urgent GP referral for 
suspected cancer 

 

85.5% 
 

86.5% 
 

85.9% 85% 

 
All cancers: 62-day wait for first 
treatment from: 
 

 NHS Cancer Screening Service 
referral 

 

92.7% 93.5% 93.7% 90% 

 
18 week maximum wait from 
referral to treatment (patients on 
an incomplete pathway)  
Data Source: Doncaster and 

92.1% 90.5% 89.1% 92% 
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Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust internal systems 
 

 
Maximum waiting time of four 
hours in A&E from arrival to 
admission, transfer or Discharge 
Data Source: Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust internal systems 
 

94.51% 91.4% 91.5% 95% 

Maximum 6-week wait for 
diagnostic procedures 

98.7% 99% 98.4% 99% 

Venous thromboembolism (VTE) 
risk assessment 

95% 95.02% 95.02% 95% 

 
2018/19 Quality Improvement Priorities comparative data 
 
The table below shows comparative data to provide additional context: 
 

 Target 
2018/19 

2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 

Patient safety quality 
improvement targets 

  

1. Take a zero tolerance 

approach to Never Events 0 0 1 2 1 

2. Reduce the number of 

healthcare associated 

infections (MRSA bacteraemia) 
0 2 3 2 2 

3. Maintain reliability of Sepsis 

management on admission to 

hospital 
>90% 91.7% 75%   

Clinical effectiveness quality 
improvement targets 

  

4. Reduce the number of deaths 

which may have been 

preventable -  Hospital 

Standardised Mortality Ratio 

(HSMR)  

<95 
88.43 

(Jan 17 – Dec 
17) 

93.66 
(Jan16 – Dec 

16) 

95.15 
(Jan 15 – 
Dec15) 

108.68 
(Jan 14 – Dec 

14) 

5. Reduce the number of deaths 
which may have been <100 

101 
(Dec 16 – Nov 

17) 

102 
(Dec 15-Nov 

16) 

105.7 
(Oct 14 – 
Sep15) 

112.88 
(Oct 13 – Sep 

14) 
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preventable - Summary 
Hospital-level Mortality 
Indicator (SHMI) 

6. Reduce avoidable Re-
admissions SRR <99 

SRR 94.4 
(Dec 16 – Nov 

17) 
97.81** 98.53 100.21 

7. Reduce the number of missed 

hospital appointments * 7% 10.2%    

 

Patient experience quality improvement targets 

8. Reduce the number of formal 

complaints 

5%  
reduction 
based on 
2017/18 

424 
(20.7% 

reduction) 

570 563 640 

9. Demonstrate increased Patient 

Engagement activities in each 

Care Group. 

100% of 
Care 

Groups 

100% Not 
measured 

Not 
measured 

Not 
measured 

10. Reduce the number of 

complaints relating to staff 

attitude and behaviour 

5%  
reduction 
based on 
2017/18 

108 
(12.9% 

reduction) 

129 144 143 

 
*Governor selection. 
 

Comments on the 2017/18 Quality Account were received by: 
 
Healthwatch Doncaster 
Healthwatch Doncaster are pleased to provide comments and a response to Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s 2017-18 Quality Accounts. 
 
Over 2017/18 Healthwatch Doncaster has received 129 stories and pieces of feedback about the 
Trust through the Healthwatch Doncaster Feedback Centre. 
 
The feedback received covered a range of departments and gave an overall positive picture of the 
experience of local people: 76% of experiences shared were classed as a positive or neutral story. 
 
Healthwatch Doncaster and Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospital (DBTH) worked closely on a 
jointly agreed piece of work about ‘Why do people miss their hospital appointments?” – this project 
engaged over 1600 people in hospital outpatients, primary care and community locations. The 
outcomes of the project clearly identified the need for improved communication and provision of 
information with and for local people. The recommendations from the Missed Appointments project 
have been presented to the Trust Board and a Task and Finish Group to implement the 
recommendations and improvements has been supported by the Chair, Non-Exec Directors and the 
Chief Executive. The 2018/19 Quality Improvement Priorities include the Governor’s selection of a 
focus on reducing missed hospital appointments by 7% - this demonstrates a commitment to 
improving the quality of the patient experience as a result of listening to patients engaged by 
Healthwatch Doncaster through the Missed Appointments project. 
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Healthwatch Doncaster, NHS Doncaster CCG, Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust (RDaSH) and DBTH have been working closely on an exciting project linked to 
Planned Care. The NHS England 100-day challenge to make system improvements to three specialty 
areas – Cardiology, Urology and ENT – has been well supported across all the partners. Healthwatch 
Doncaster are pleased that there has a consistent focus on listening to the voice of patients and 
using their feedback to make improvements to services so that outcomes for patients are improved. 
The work in this specialty areas will continue beyond the initial 100 days. 
 
Healthwatch Doncaster are members of DBTH’s Patient, Engagement and Experience Committee. 
We attend regular monthly meetings and we are assured that the focus on the meetings is on 
improving the quality of services by listening to and engaging with patients, carers and families. 
 
Healthwatch Doncaster would like to thank the staff at DBTH for their continued support enabling 
greater engagement and involvement of patients, carers and families in making improvements to 
the quality and experience clinical services. 
 
Andrew Goodall 
Chief Operating Officer 
Healthwatch Doncaster  

 
NHS Bassetlaw Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust Quality Account for 2017/18.  
 
Once again, I would like to commend DBTH for its open and constructive approach to engaging with 
its commissioners in the planning, delivery and monitoring of services. We agree with the priorities 
that have been focussed on, and assess this report is an accurate record of progress towards their 
achievement. Progress regarding patient safety and a reduction in avoidable harms remains 
excellent and has now been improving for a number of years. 
  
We encourage the Trust to further focus upon the following: 
 

 A focus on improving patient experience and in particular a reduction in negative experience 

relating to staff attitude and behaviour 

 A focus on staff wellbeing which is key to the delivery of high quality services and can be 

measured in part through staff retention rates  

 A continuation of work to address avoidable mortality and morbidity with an increase in 

system wide reviews in partnership with other agencies. 

We look forward to further discussions ensuring there are sustainable and safe services for our area. 
  
Cathy Burke 
Deputy Chief Nurse 
NHS Bassetlaw CCG 

 
Nottinghamshire Health Scrutiny Committee 

The Health Scrutiny Committee for Nottinghamshire welcomes the opportunity to comment on 

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Account for 2017/18. 
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The closure of Ward A3 (Paediatrics) at Bassetlaw Hospital to inpatient admissions from 7:00 PM 
each day as a result of gaps in nursing and junior doctor rotas continues to be a source of concern to 
the committee. The committee urges the Trust to swiftly progress its work looking at regional 
solutions to recruitment issues with a view to reopening the ward as quickly as possible. The 
committee hopes that the Trust will employ imaginative measures to bolster recruitment, including 
rotation to Bassetlaw Hospital as part of normal duties. 
 
The committee commends the Trust on its work examining missed hospital appointments, and 
explaining to the community the real costs involved. 
 
The committee would like to see a wider range of information from the Trust in addition to winter 
planning, in order to build a up a more coherent picture of your work. This should include (but not 
be limited to) the learning outcomes from deaths, complaints, serious incidents and Never Events (if 
these occur). 
 
The committee hopes that the Trust will engage in ongoing work to effectively direct patients away 
from the Emergency Department, if they are attending inappropriately, to other services. 
 

NHS Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
NHS Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is pleased to comment on Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trusts Annual Quality Account for 2017/18.  The Trust 
continues to work collaboratively with our local partners and approaches the delivery of care jointly 
to ensure quality service provision is in line with local commissioning intentions for the patients of 
Doncaster.   
 
In June 2017, the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
became one of the first Accountable Care Systems (ACS).  All trusts in the area are active members 
of this system. Alongside the work within the ACS, DBTH has played a key role in the development of 
the Doncaster Place Plan and this role continues as the plan moves forward to be implemented.   
 
Becoming a Teaching Hospital in 2017 enabled the trust to gain recognition of excellence in teaching 
and research and being supported by both Sheffield Hallam University and the University of 
Sheffield. The CCG welcomed this and feel that this, alongside other initiatives, will continue to have 
a positive impact in relation to the workforce challenges both within the Trust and other care 
providers locally. The CCG support this work that is key to sustaining the quality of care for the 
population of Doncaster, improving outcomes for patients and also providing learning opportunities 
for the local community. 
 
The report focuses on positive achievements throughout the year and also identifies some priorities 
for improvement in the coming year.  These priorities will be reported to their Board and/or their 
Clinical Governance and Quality Committee.   
 
The Trust has continued to be challenged by the pressure on the urgent care system as have most 
organisations on a national level and this has been evident particularly within Emergency 
Department targets. They have continued to work in a flexible way to meet the needs of patients in 
Doncaster.  They have engaged in a range of transformational programmes being undertaken across 
Doncaster to both reduce attendance and ensure that people are seen by the right service both 
within the hospital and outside of the acute setting.  We are pleased that there were no 12 hour 
trolley waits within the Emergency Department throughout the year. 
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There is an on-going challenge within the Trust in relation to meeting the 62 day wait for cancer 
treatments and the Trust is engaged with the CCG and wider network to understand and improve 
performance. 
 
As in previous years, the Trust continues with a commitment to be open and transparent in relation 
to quality and safety of care provided. Alongside key achievements, the Quality Account outlines 
areas of work that will continue into the coming year. The Trust has achieved an improvement in the 
Hospital Standard Mortality Ratio that reflects the ongoing commitment to delivering high quality, 
harm free care.  As part of this work, the Trust is supporting particular areas of focus such as the 
Learning Disabilities Mortality Review programme (LeDeR)  They continue to report on moderate 
harm and have implemented Duty of Candour (DoC) to medium as well as severe harm incidents. 
 
We commend the Trust on their continued focus on patient safety strategies particularly in relation 
to Sepsis identification and treatment the reduction of Never Events to zero. In preparation for the 
winter period, the trust undertook a successful staff flu vaccination programme, becoming the first 
trust to achieve the 75% target for their front line staff to be vaccinated. 
 
The Quality Account again identifies that they have made improvements from last year in relation to 
complaints management.  They have seen a positive reduction in the number of complaints and are 
also dealing with this in a timely and effective manner. We again encourage the Trust to continue 
developing systems and processes to allow open dialogue with their patients and families in line 
with the duty of candour. 
 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Trust and all their staff for their dedication, 
continued focus and hard work during a difficult year and winter and we look forward to working 
with them collaboratively to both deliver further improvements in the quality of care and experience 
and to rise to the challenges of the coming year.   

 
Andrew Russell 
Chief Nurse 
NHS Doncaster CCG 
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Quality 
Account/Report 
 
The directors are requires under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service 
(Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Account for each financial year. 
 
NHS Improvement has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and 
content of annual quality reports (which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on 
the arrangements that foundation trust boards should put in place to support the data 
quality for the preparation for the quality report. 
 
In preparing the quality report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves 
that: 

 The content of the quality report meets the requirements set out in the NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and supporting guidance  

 The content of the quality report is not inconsistent with internal and external sources 
of information including: 
o Board minutes and papers for the period April 2017 to March 2018 
o Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2017 to March 

2018;    
o Feedback from Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group dated May 2018 and from 

Bassetlaw Clinical Commissioning Group dated May 2018 
o Feedback from Governors dated May 2018 
o Feedback from Healthwatch Doncaster dated May 2018 
o The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority 

Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated 30 April 2018. 
o The latest national patient survey dated February 2018 
o The latest national staff survey dated February 2018 
o The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment 

dated May 2018 

 The quality report has been prepared in accordance with NHS Improvement's annual 
reporting manual and supporting guidance (which incorporates the Quality Accounts 
regulations) as well as the standards to support data quality for the preparation of the 
Quality Report 

 The Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation trust’s 
performance over the period covered 

 The performance information reported in the quality report is reliable and accurate 

 There are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of 
performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review to 
confirm that they are working effectively in practice 

 The data underpinning the measure of performance reported in the Quality Report is 
robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed 
definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and the Quality Report has 
been prepared in accordance with NHS Improvement’s annual reporting guidance. 
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The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the 
above requirements in preparing the Quality Report. 
 
By order of the Board, 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Suzy Brain England                                        Richard Parker 
Chair                                                                 Chief Executive 
25 May 2018                                                   25 May 2018 
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Limited assurance report on the content of the quality reports and mandated 
performance indicators  
 
We have been engaged by the council of governors of Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust (“the Trust”) to perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s quality report for the year 
ended 31 March 2018 (the ‘Quality Report’) and certain performance indicators contained therein.  

  
This report is made solely to the Trust’s Council of Governors, as a body, in accordance with our 
engagement letter dated 23/04/2018.  We permit the disclosure of this report within the Annual Report 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 to enable the Council of Governors to demonstrate that they have 
discharged their governance responsibilities by commissioning an independent assurance report in 
connection with the indicators.  
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Trust and the Trust's Council of Governors as a body, for our examination, for this report, or for 
the conclusions we have formed. 

  

Our work has been undertaken so that we might report to the Council of Governors those matters that 

we have agreed to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. Our report must not be 

recited or referred to in whole or in part in any other document nor made available, copied or recited 

to any other party, in any circumstances, without our express prior written permission.  This 

engagement is separate to, and distinct from, our appointment as the auditors to the Trust. 

 

Scope and subject matter  

 

The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2018 subject to limited assurance consist of the national 
priority indicators as mandated by NHS Improvement:  

  
 Percentage of patients within a total time in A&E of 4 hours or less from arrival to admission. 

 Percentage if incomplete pathways with 18 weeks for patients on incomplete pathways at 
the end of the reporting period. 

  
We refer to these national priority indicators collectively as the ‘indicators’.  

  

Respective responsibilities of the directors and Ernst & Young LLP  

 

The directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the quality report in accordance 
with the criteria set out in the ‘NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18’ issued by 
NHS Improvement.  

 

Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether 
anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:  

 the quality report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out in the 
‘NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18’ , which is supported by  NHS 
Improvement’s Detailed Requirements for quality reports 2017/18;   

 the quality report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified in 
detailed in Section 2.1 of the ‘Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality reports 
2017/18’ and  

 the indicators in the quality report identified as having been the subject of limited assurance in 
the quality report are not reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the 
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‘NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18’ and supporting guidance and the 
six dimensions of data quality set out in the ‘Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on 
Quality Reports 2017/18’.  

  

We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of the ‘NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2017/18’ and supporting guidance, and consider the 
implications for our report if we become aware of any material omissions. 

 

We read the other information contained in the quality report and consider whether it is materially 
inconsistent with the other information sources detailed in Section 2.1 of the ‘Detailed guidance for 
external assurance on quality reports 2017/18’. These are  

  

 Board minutes for the period April 2017 to March 2018  

 Papers relating to quality reported to the Board over the period April 2017 to March 
2018  

 feedback from commissioners, dated May 2018  

 feedback from governors, dated May 2018  

 feedback from local Healthwatch organisations, dated May 2018  

 feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committee dated May 2018  

 the trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority 
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated 30

th
 April 2018  

 the latest national patient survey, dated February 2018  

 the latest national staff survey, dated February 2018  

 Care Quality Commission inspection, dated April 2015 and 

 the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the trust’s control environment, dated 
May 2018  

  

We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or 
material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively, the ‘documents’). Our responsibilities do 
not extend to any other information.  

 

We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our team comprised 
assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts.  

 

This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors of 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust NHS Foundation Trust as a 
body, to assist the Council of Governors in reporting Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and activities. We permit the disclosure of this 
report within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2018, to enable the Council of 
Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities by commissioning 
an independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of Governors as a 
body and Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this 
report, except where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior consent in writing.  
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Assurance work performed  

 

We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of 
Historical Financial Information’, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board 
(‘ISAE 3000’). Our limited assurance procedures included, but were not limited to:  

  

 evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for managing 
and reporting the indicators  

 making enquiries of management  

 limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator back to 
supporting documentation  

 comparing the content requirements of the ‘NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 
2017/18’ to the categories reported in the Quality Report.  

 reading the documents.  

  

  
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain 
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a 
negative conclusion on the Quality Report. The procedures performed in a limited assurance 
engagement vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance 
engagement. Consequently the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is 
substantially lower than the assurance that would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance 
engagement been performed.  

 

Inherent limitations  

 

Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial 
information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for determining such 
information. 

  

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the selection of 
different, but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in materially different 
measurements and can affect comparability. The precision of different measurement techniques may 
also vary. Furthermore, the nature and methods used to determine such information, as well as the 
measurement criteria and the precision of these criteria, may change over time. It is important to read 
the quality report in the context of the criteria set out in the ‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting 
manual 2017/18’ and supporting guidance. The scope of our assurance work has not included 
governance over quality or non-mandated indicators, which have been determined locally by 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.  

 

Conclusion  

 

Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that, for the year ended 31 March 2018:  

  

 the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out in the 
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2018 and the Detailed requirements for 
quality reports 2017/18 published in January 2018 (updated in February 2018) issued by NHS 
Improvement   

 the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified, and  

 the indicators in the Quality Report subject to limited assurance have not been reasonably 
stated in all material respects in accordance with NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 
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Manual 2018 and the Detailed requirements for quality reports 2017/18 published in January 
2018 (updated in February 2018) issued by NHS Improvement .  

 
 
 
 
 

Ernst & Young  
1 Colmore Square, Birmingham 

25 May 2018 
 

 

The maintenance and integrity of the Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s web 

site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by Ernst & Young LLP does not involve 

consideration of these matters and, accordingly, Ernst & Young LLP accept no responsibility for any changes that 

may have occurred to the Quality Report since it was initially presented on the web site. 

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ 

from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



152 
 
 

Financial Review 

Foreword to the accounts 

These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared by Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 
25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006 and are presented to Parliament 
pursuant to Schedule 7, paragraph 25 (4) (a) of the National Health Service Act 2006. 

 

 

 

Richard Parker 
Chief Executive  
25 May 2018 
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Foreword to the accounts

Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust

These accounts, for the year ended 31 March 2018, have been prepared by Doncaster & Bassetlaw 

Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 & 25 of Schedule 7 within 

the National Health Service Act 2006.
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Group and Foundation Trust Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Operating income from patient care activities 3 335,060 328,284 335,060 326,584 

Other operating income 4 51,952 59,263 51,324 59,263 

Operating expenses 6, 8 (394,503) (390,106) (393,448) (387,352)

Operating (deficit) from continuing operations (7,491) (2,559) (7,064) (1,505)

Finance income 11 49 325 49 38 

Finance expenses 12 (1,358) (1,762) (1,358) (1,762)

PDC dividends payable (2,869) (3,232) (2,869) (3,232)

Net finance costs (4,178) (4,669) (4,178) (4,956)

Other (losses) / gains 13 (11) - (11) - 

(Deficit) for the year from continuing operations (11,680) (7,229) (11,253) (6,462)

Surplus / (deficit) on discontinued operations and the gain / (loss) on 

disposal of discontinued operations 15 - - - - 

(Deficit) for the year (11,680) (7,229) (11,253) (6,462)

Other comprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Impairments 7 - - - - 

Revaluations 21 13,490 3,959 13,490 3,959 

May be reclassified to income and expenditure when certain conditions are met:

Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial investments 13 - 259 - 259 

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period 1,810 (3,011) 2,237 (2,244)

(Deficit) for the period attributable to:

non-controlling interest, and - - - - 

Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (11,680) (7,229) (11,253) (7,228)

TOTAL (11,680) (7,229) (11,253) (6,462)

Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the period attributable to:

non-controlling interest, and - - - - 

Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 1,810 (3,011) 2,237 (2,244)

TOTAL 1,810 (3,011) 2,237 (2,244)

Group Trust
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Group and Foundation Trust Statement of Financial Position

31 March 2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 16 -17 6,792 6,453 6,792 6,453 

Property, plant and equipment 18 -19 200,695 188,921 200,695 188,921 

Investment property 22 - - - - 

Investments in associates (and joint ventures) 23 - - - - 

Other investments / financial assets 24 8,025 8,016 - - 

Trade and other receivables 28 1,621 1,533 1,621 1,533 

Other assets 29 - - - - 

Total non-current assets 217,133 204,923 209,108 196,907 

Current assets

Inventories 27 5,526 4,584 5,526 4,584 

Trade and other receivables 28 32,376 26,725 31,899 26,631 

Other investments / financial assets 24 - - - - 

Other assets 29 - - - - 

Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups 30 - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 31 12,776 3,187 11,866 2,397 

Total current assets 50,678 34,496 49,291 33,612 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 32 (42,542) (27,290) (41,939) (27,625)

Borrowings 35 (10,214) (3,027) (10,214) (3,027)

Other financial liabilities 33 - - - - 

Provisions 37 (627) (583) (627) (583)

Other liabilities 34 (2,054) (1,096) (2,054) (1,096)

Liabilities in disposal groups 30 - - - - 

Total current liabilities (55,437) (31,996) (54,834) (32,331)

Total assets less current liabilities 212,374 207,423 203,565 198,188 

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 32 - - 

Borrowings 35 (79,158) (77,143) (79,158) (77,143)

Other financial liabilities 33 - - - - 

Provisions 37 (1,948) (2,204) (1,948) (2,204)

Other liabilities 34 - - - - 

Total non-current liabilities (81,106) (79,347) (81,106) (79,347)

Total assets employed 131,268 128,076 122,459 118,841 

Financed by 

Public dividend capital 130,161 128,780 130,161 128,780 

Revaluation reserve 46,584 33,094 46,584 33,094 

Available for sale investments reserve - - - - 

Other reserves - - - - 

Merger reserve - - - - 

Income and expenditure reserve (54,286) (43,033) (54,286) (43,033)

Non-controlling Interest - - - - 

Charitable fund reserves 26 8,809 9,235 - 

Total taxpayers' equity 131,268 128,076 122,459 118,841 

The notes on pages 7 to 60 form part of these accounts.

Name              Mr Richard Parker

Position          Chief Executive Officier ………………………………………………………………………………

Date                25 May 2018

Group Trust
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Group Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Group

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Available 

for sale 

investment 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Merger 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve

Charitable 

fund 

reserves Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2017 - brought 

forward 128,780 33,094 - - - (43,033) 9,235 128,076 

At start of period for new FTs - - - - - - - - 

(Deficit) for the year - - - - - (11,253) (426) (11,679)

Revaluations - 13,490 - - - - - 13,490 

Public dividend capital received 1,381 - - - - - - 1,381 

Transfer to FT upon authorisation - - - - - - - - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2018 130,161 46,584 - - - (54,286) 8,809 131,268 

Group Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017

Group

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Available 

for sale 

investment 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Merger 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve

Charitable 

fund 

reserves Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2016 - brought 

forward 128,780 29,939 - - - (37,375) 9,742 131,086 

Prior period adjustment - - - - - - - - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2016 - restated 128,780 29,939 - - - (37,375) 9,742 131,086 

At start of period for new FTs - - - - - - - - 

(Deficit) for the year - - - - - (6,462) (766) (7,228)

Revaluations - 3,959 - - - - - 3,959 

Revaluations and impairments - charitable fund assets - - - - - - - - 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (804) - - - 804 - - 

Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial investments - - - - - - 259 259 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2017 128,780 33,094 - - - (43,033) 9,235 128,076 
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Foundation Trust Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Trust

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 128,780 33,094 (43,033) 118,841 

At start of period for new FTs - 

(Deficit) for the year (11,253) (11,253)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves - 

Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and expenditure reserve for 

impairments arising from consumption of economic benefits - 

Other transfers between reserves - 

Impairments - 

Revaluations 13,490 13,490 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - 

Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures - 

Fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial investments - 

Recycling gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial investments - 

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) recognised directly in OCI - 

Other recognised gains and losses - 

Remeasurements of the defined net benefit pension scheme liability/asset - 

Public dividend capital received 1,381 1,381 

Public dividend capital repaid - 

Public dividend capital written off - 

Other movements in public dividend capital in year - 

Reserves eliminated on dissolution - 

Other reserve movements - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2018 130,161 46,584 (54,286) 122,459 

Foundation Trust Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017

Trust

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2016 - brought forward 128,780 29,939 (37,375) 121,344 

Prior period adjustment - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2016 - restated 128,780 29,939 (37,375) 121,344 

(Deficit) for the year (6,462) (6,462)

Revaluations 3,959 3,959 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (804) 804 - 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2017 128,780 33,094 (43,033) 118,841 
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of 

establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the Department of Health 

and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as the public 

dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent 

that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating 

income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a 

previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic benefit or a 

reduction in service potential.

Income and expenditure reserve

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.

Charitable funds reserve

This reserve comprises the ring-fenced funds held by the NHS charitable funds consolidated within these financial statements in 

note 51.
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Group Statement of Cash Flows

2017/18 2016/17

Note £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating (deficit) (7,491) (3,427)

Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciation and amortisation 6.1 8,826 8,827 

Net impairments 7 - 786 

Income recognised in respect of capital donations 4 (257) (2,077)

(Increase) in receivables and other assets (5,357) (12,871)

(Increase) / decrease in inventories (942) 890 

Decrease / (increase) in payables and other liabilities 15,019 (3,696)

(Decrease) / increase in provisions (212) 1,535 

Movements in charitable fund working capital (363) (196)

Tax (paid)/received - - 

Operating cash flows from discontinued operations - - 

Other movements in operating cash flows 601 2,422 

Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 9,824 (7,807)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 49 38 

(Purchase)/sale of financial assets / investments - - 

Purchase of intangible assets (1,125) (731)

Sales of intangible assets - - 

Purchase of PPE and investment property (5,685) (9,442)

Sales of PPE and investment property 75 982 

Receipt of cash donations to purchase assets - 2,077 

Prepayment of PFI capital contributions - - 

Net cash flows from charitable fund investing activities - 287 

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities (6,686) (6,789)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received 1,381 - 

Movement on loans from DHSC 9,201 18,382 

Movement on other loans - (22)

Other interest paid (1,358) (1,734)

PDC dividend (paid) (2,773) (1,810)

Financing cash flows of discontinued operations - - 

Net cash flows from charitable fund financing activities - - 

Net cash flows from financing activities 6,451 14,816 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,589 220 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - b/f 3,187 2,967 

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under absorption accounting 47 - - 

Unrealised gains / (losses) on foreign exchange - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 31.1 12,776 3,187 

Group
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For the year ended 31st March 2018

Notes to the Accounts

1 Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

1 Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial statements of 

the trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 

(GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the GAM 2017/18 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the GAM 

follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as 

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a 

choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of 

the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are described 

below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to accounts. 

1 Note 1.1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of 

property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

2 Note 1.1.2 Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 requires the management of all entities to assess, as part of the 

accounts preparation process, the bodies’ ability to continue as a going concern. This is further enforced by 

Department of Health requirements to review the trust’s going concern basis on an annual basis, the going 

concern principle being the assumption that an entity will remain in business for the foreseeable future.  

This is to facilitate the accounting basis to be used in the preparation of the Trust’s annual accounts. Should an 

assessment be made that an entity is not a going concern then the year end balance sheet should be prepared 

on a ‘disposals’ basis i.e. items valued at their likely sale value. In many cases this would propose significantly 

lower values than the usual valuations based on ongoing trading (e.g. stocks) and require the inclusion of other 

‘winding up costs’ (e.g. redundancies).

In considering the application of the going concern principle in preparing these financial statements it has been 

identified that there is a material uncertainty that casts significant doubt upon the Trust’s ability to continue as a 

going concern and, that therefore, the Trust may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the 

normal course of business.  

The identified uncertainty is due to the Trust’s continued reliance on additional liquidity funding provided by 

NHS Improvement (NHSI). No formal undertaking has been received from NHSI to confirm this funding will be 

provided as needed, though the funding has been included in financial plans submitted to them.

After completing a full review, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust will have sufficient 

resources to continue is operations in the foreseeable future. For this reason and based on the matters below, 

the Trust continues to adopt the going concern principle in preparing the financial statements:

The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Trust were unable to continue 

as a going concern

1. Continuing support from local commissioners - the Trust currently has a contract in place to 31
st
 March 2019

2. The Trust ended the year with c£12m cash in the bank

3. Within the proposals for the local ICS the Trust is expecting to become the second major emergency centre 

in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw with inward investment to support the additional services once final decisions 

are made e.g. the successful bid for additional CT facilities to support this show the intent to support the site 

going forward

4. The Trust is in discussions with CCGs to repatriate work to its sites

5. Whilst no formal undertaking has been received from NHSI to continue to provide additional liquidity on an 

ongoing basis, all planning assumptions that the Trust operates under imply this will be forthcoming

6. The Trust has delivered a year-end financial outcome ahead of its agreed control total for 2017/18 and plans 

to achieve the lower target assigned for 2018/19

7. The NHSI Board have agreed to lift all licence conditions on the Trust following the second year of financial 

delivery ahead of plan.

2 Note 1.2 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
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The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the 

process of applying the trust accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 

the financial statements:

As required by IAS 1.122. the following judgements made by management are disclosed below.

Income estimates

In measuring income for the year, management have taken account of all available information. Income 

estimates that have been made have been based on actual information related to the financial year. 

Included in the income figure is an estimate for open spells, patients undergoing treatment that is only partially 

complete at midnight on 31st March. The number of open spells for each specialty is taken and multiplied by 

the average specialty price and adjusted for the proportion of the spell which belongs to the current year.

Injury compensation scheme income is also included to the extent that it is estimated it will be received in future 

years. It is recorded in the current year as this is the year in which it was earned. However as cash is not 

received until future periods, when the claims have been settled, an estimation must be made as to the 

collectability.

Expense accruals

In estimating expenses that have not yet been charged for, management have made a realistic assessment 

based on costs actually incurred in the year to date, with a view to ensuring that no material items have been 

omitted. This is done utilising data extracted from the Trust's accounts payable system, allied with professional 

judgement of the Trust's expenditure profile. The Trust is also required to account for the cost of annual leave 

carried forward, which is based on a statistically sound sample of staff.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

Specialised property has been valued at depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis in 

line with Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors standards. Land has been valued having regard to the cost of 

purchasing notional replacement sites in the same locality as the existing sites. The application of valuation 

methodologies and external indices are covered in the accounting policies at note 1.5.

Asset lives applied to property, plant and equipment are provided by the Trust's externally appointed and 

professionally qualified valuers. 

Impairment of trade receivables

In accordance with the stated policy on impairment of financial assets, management have assessed the 

impairment of receivables based on professional judgement and the type of debts typically held by the Trust.

Provisions

In accordance with the stated policy on provisions, management have used best estimates of the expenditure 

required to settle the obligations concerned, applying HM Treasury’s discount rate as stated in the case of 

provisions for injury benefit claims and early retirements. The level of this provision is also based on information 

provided by the Government Actuaries Department. Other provisions that may arise are employee related 

claims and legal claims, which are based on information received from the Trust's insurers and internally 

generated information.

2 Note 1.2.1 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant 

risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Disclose information about assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty, as required by IAS 1.125. Disclosures 

must include the nature of the assumption and the carrying amount of the asset/liability at the end of the reporting period 

and may include sensitivity of the carrying amount to the assumptions, expected resolution of uncertainty and range of 

possible outcomes within the next financial year, and an explanation of changes to past assumptions if the uncertainty 

remains unresolved. Examples could include: indices used for asset valuations, asset lives, provision balances, intangible 

asset valuations.

3 Note 1.3 Consolidation
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NHS Charitable Fund

The trust is the corporate trustee to Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust charitable fund. 

The trust has assessed its relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the trust is 

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns and other benefits for itself, patients and staff from its involvement with the 

charitable fund and has the ability to affect those returns and other benefits through its power over the fund.

The charitable fund’s statutory accounts are prepared to 31 March in accordance with the UK Charities Statement of 

Recommended Practice (SORP) which is based on UK Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102. On consolidation, 

necessary adjustments are made to the charity’s assets, liabilities and transactions to:

• recognise and measure them in accordance with the trust's accounting policies and

• eliminate intra-group transactions, balances, gains and losses.

4 Note 1.4 Income

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is measured at 

the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the trust is contracts with commissioners in 

respect of health care services. At the year end, the trust accrues income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a 

patient care spell is incomplete.

Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in a subsequent financial year, that income is 

deferred. 

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and is 

measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

Revenue grants and other contributions to expenditure

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the provision 

of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to 

match that expenditure. 

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the  Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as 

income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider, 

the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

5 Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are 

recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but 

not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are 

permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

Pension costs 

NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, 

defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of 

Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme are not designed in a way that would enable employers to identify 

their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. There, the schemes are accounted for as though they are 

defined contribution schemes.

Employer's pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is 

due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the 

trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

6 Note 1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is measured 

at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in 

the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 
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7 Note 1.7 Property, plant and equipment

7 Note 1.7.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:    

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes

• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust

• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably

• the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the assets 

are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar disposal dates and 

are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, eg, plant 

and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

7 Note 1.7.2 Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring 

or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 

intended by management.

All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. All land and buildings are revalued using professional valuations when 

management determine there to be a material difference between carrying value and fair value as defined by International 

Accounting Standard (IAS) 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. All other assets are valued at net current replacement cost as 

a proxy for fair value, with management checking a number of high value items each year to ensure this is still reasonable and 

no material differences found.

An item of property, plant and equipment which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value under 

IFRS 13, if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying 

amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost 

incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably. 

Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition 

above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that does not generate additional future 

economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income in the period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful economic lives in a manner consistent with 

the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not 

depreciated. 

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the 

reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contract 

assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively. 
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Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a revaluation 

decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset 

concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of 

‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service potential in 

the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and 

expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance 

in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to the 

extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating expenditure to the 

extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any 

remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made 

from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the revaluation reserve 

when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

7 Note 1.7.3 De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met: 

• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary for such 

sales;

• the sale must be highly probable i.e.:

         - management are committed to a plan to sell the asset

         - an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale

         - the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price

         - the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale’ and

         - the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant changes made 

to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs 

to sell’.  Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been 

met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’ and 

instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when 

scrapping or demolition occurs.

7 Note 1.7.4  Donated and grant funded assets 
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Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The 

donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic 

benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is 

deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, plant 

and equipment. 

Page 12



Page 13

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

For the year ended 31st March 2018

Notes to the Accounts

7.5 Note 1.7.5  Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions  

7.6 Note 1.7.6  Useful Economic lives of property, plant and equipment 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Land - - 

Buildings, excluding dwellings 45 53 

Dwellings 45 53 

Plant & machinery 7 15 

Transport equipment 5 7 

Information technology 1 5 

Furniture & fittings 1 7 

8 Note 1.8 Intangible assets 

8.1 Note 1.8.1 Recognition 

PFI and LIFT transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s 

FReM , are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the trust. In accordance with IAS 17, the underlying 

assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent finance lease liability. Subsequently, 

the assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets as appropriate.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cost and the charges for 

services. 

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the Statement 

of Comprehensive Income.

Useful economic lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful economic 

lives are shown in the table below:

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful economic life or the lease term, 

unless the trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in the 

same manner as owned assets above.

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from 

the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is 

probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the 

asset can be measured reliably. 
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8.2 Note 1.8.2 Measurement 

8.3 Note 1.8.3 Useful economic life of intangible assets 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Information technology 1 5 

Development expenditure 1 5 

Websites 1 5 

Software licences 1 5 

Licences & trademarks 1 5 

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item 

of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, eg application software, is 

capitalised as an intangible asset.

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and 

prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible 

assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income 

generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, plant and 

equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value under IFRS 13, 

if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or “fair value less costs to sell”.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful economic lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of 

economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful economic lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset.  The range of useful 

economic lives are shown in the table below:

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as 

intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised.

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:

• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use

• the trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it

• the trust has the ability to sell or use the asset

• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits, eg, the presence of a 

market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset;

• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the trust to complete the development and sell or use 

the asset and

• the trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.
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Patents 1 5 

Other (purchased) 1 5 

Goodwill 1 5 
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9 Note 1.9 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using  the first in, 

first out (FIFO).

# Note 1.10 Investment properties

The Trust does not hold Investment properties within Land, Buildings and Dwellings.

Only those assets which are held solely to generate a commercial return are considered to be investment properties.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Properties occupied by employees, whether or not they pay rent at market rates, are not classified as investment properties.

# Note 1.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 

hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 

and that form an integral part of [the entity]’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at current 

values.

# Note 1.12 Carbon Reduction Commitment scheme (CRC)

The CRC scheme is a mandatory cap and trade scheme for non-transport CO2 emissions. The trust is registered with the 

CRC scheme, and is therefore required to surrender to the Government an allowance for every tonne of CO2 it emits during 

the financial year. A liability and related expense is recognised in respect of this obligation as CO2 emissions are made.

The carrying amount of the liability at the financial year end will therefore reflect the CO2 emissions that have been made 

during that financial year, less the allowances (if any) surrendered voluntarily during the financial year in respect of that 

financial year.

The liability will be measured at the amount expected to be incurred in settling the obligation. This will be the cost of the 

number of allowances required to settle the obligation.

Allowances acquired under the scheme are recognised as intangible assets.

# Note 1.13 Financial instruments and financial liabilities

Recognition 

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as 

goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are 

recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, i.e., when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is 

made.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised 

and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described above/below.

Regular way purchases or sales are recognised and de-recognised, as applicable, using the Settlement date.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument.

De-recognition

All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the trust has 

transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets are categorised as “fair value through income and expenditure”, loans and receivables or “available-for-sale 

financial assets”. 

Financial liabilities are classified as “fair value through income and expenditure” or as “other financial liabilities”.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure”

Financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure” are financial assets or financial 

liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 

purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as 

hedges. Derivatives which are embedded in other contracts but which are not “closely-related” to those contracts are 

separated-out from those contracts and measured in this category. Assets and liabilities in this category are classified as 

current assets and current liabilities.

These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs expensed in the 

income and expenditure account. Subsequent movements in the fair value are recognised as gains or losses in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an 

active market. 

The trust’s loans and receivables comprise: current investments, cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued 

income and “other receivables”.

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated 

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset.

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are either designated in this category or not 

classified in any of the other categories. They are included in long-term assets unless the trust intends to dispose of them 

within 12 months of the Statement of Financial Position date.

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction costs, and measured 

subsequently at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves and reported in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income as an item of “other comprehensive income”. When items classified as “available-for-sale” are sold or impaired, the 

accumulated fair value adjustments recognised are transferred from reserves and recognised in “finance costs” in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Other financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured 

subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts 

exactly estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter 

period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the Statement of Financial 

Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to 

finance costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not 

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Determination of fair value

For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are determined from quoted market 

prices/independent appraisals/discounted cash flow analysis or other.

Impairment of financial assets

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at “fair 

value through income and expenditure” are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, 

and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial 

recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 

interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced through the use of an allowance account/bad debt provision.

The Trust reviews all debtors for recoverability on a timely basis. If there is doubt regarding the recoverability of a debt then 

Trust would apply a prudent impairment to the debt to group of debts as is appropriate.
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# Note 1.14 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All 

other leases are classified as operating leases.

# Note 1.14.1 The trust as lessee 

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the trust, the asset is recorded as property, 

plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of 

the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item of property 

plant and equipment. 

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of finance over 

the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease 

liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are 

recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for 

each is assessed separately. 

# Note 1.14.2 The trust as lessor

Finance leases

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the trust's net investment in the 

leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust's net 

investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

# Note 1.15 Provisions 

The trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for which it is 

probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The 

amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the discount 

rates published and mandated by HM Treasury.  

Clinical negligence costs 

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which, in 

return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence 

cases, the legal liability remains with the trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf 

of the trust is disclosed at note 37.3 but is not recognised in the trust’s accounts. 

Non-clinical risk pooling 

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes 

under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the costs of claims 

arising. The annual membership contributions, and any “excesses” payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 

expenses when the liability arises. 
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# Note 1.16 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future 

events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or 

for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

# Note 1.17 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time 

of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument 

within the meaning of IAS 32. 

At any time, the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at 

the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is 

calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the trust during the financial 

year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for 

(i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), 

(ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) deposits, 

excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and 

(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the 

dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual 

accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the 

annual accounts.

# Note 1.18 Value added tax 

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 

purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised 

purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

# Note 1.19 Corporation tax

The Trust's activities relate to the provision of goods and services relating to healthcare. The Trust is not liable for Corporation 

Tax.
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# Note 1.20 Foreign exchange 

The functional and presentational currency of the trust is sterling.

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate on 

the date of the transaction. 

Where the trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial Position date:

• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at “fair value through income and expenditure”) are translated at 

the spot exchange rate on 31 March

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the 

transaction and

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair 

value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the Statement of 

Financial Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains and 

losses on these items.

# Note 1.21 Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the trust 

has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the 

requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM . 

# Note 1.22 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health 

service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special 

control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way 

that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure 

on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the trust not been 

bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports 

on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.

# Note 1.23 Gifts

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts include all 

transactions economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its expected useful 

life, and the sale or lease of assets at below market value.
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# Note 1.24 Transfers of functions to or from other NHS or local government bodies

For functions that have been transferred to the trust from another NHS or local government body, the assets and liabilities 

transferred are recognised in the accounts as at the date of transfer. The assets and liabilities are not adjusted to fair value 

prior to recognition. The net gain or loss corresponding to the net assets or liabilities transferred is recognised within income or 

expenses, but not within operating activities.

For property plant and equipment assets and intangible assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation or amortisation 

balances from the transferring entity’s accounts are preserved on recognition in the trust’s accounts. Where the transferring 

body recognised revaluation reserve balances attributable to the assets, the trust makes a transfer from its income and 

expenditure reserve to its revaluation reserve to maintain transparency within public sector accounts. 

For functions that the trust has transferred to another NHS or local government body, the assets and liabilities transferred are 

de-recognised from the accounts as at the date of transfer. The net loss or gain corresponding to the net assets or liabilities 

transferred is recognised within expenses or income, but not within operating activities. Any revaluation reserve balances 

attributable to assets de-recognised are transferred to the income and expenditure reserve.    Adjustments to align the 

acquired function to the trust's accounting policies are applied after initial recognition and are adjusted directly in taxpayers’ 

equity.

# Note 1.25 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2017/18.

# Note 1.26 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

As required by IAS 8, there are no new accounting standards in 2017/18 that are applicable to the Trust or have been adopted 

early; however, the following standards have been amended

IAS 12 Income taxes – amendment relating to the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses 

IAS 7 Statements of cash flows - amendment to require additional disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from 

financing activities. This includes all changes in liabilities – both cash and non-cash flow related such as the impact of 

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, changes in fair value or gain/ loss of control of subsidiaries. HM Treasury has 

announced that this amendment will be deferred until 2018/19 although early adoption is permitted in 2017/18. There is no 

impact to the valuation basis of either cash or non-cash liabilities as a result of adopting the amendment.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities – amendment to clarify the scope of the standard as part of the annual 

improvements to IFRS 2014-2016. 
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2 Note 2 Operating Segments

The Foundation Trust's NHS charitable fund has a deficit of £427,000 (2016/17 £670,000 deficit) before taking into account 

intra group transactions.

The Foundation Trust has applied the aggregation criteria from IFRS 8 Operating Segments because the care groups 

provide similar services, have homogenous customers, common production processes and a common regulatory 

environment. On this basis the Foundation Trust believes that there is one segment.

The Foundation Trust manages the delivery of healthcare services across 6 care groups .The overall deficit 

reported to the Foundation Trust Board under the care group based reporting structure was £11,913,000 

(2016/17 £6,662,000 deficit), which is the same as the deficit reported in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income.
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3 Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities (Group)

3 Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Acute services  

Elective income 55,682 56,557 

Non elective income 98,662 81,962 

First outpatient income 22,714 50,895 

Follow up outpatient income 22,885 - 

A & E income 19,586 18,277 

High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs) - - 

Other NHS clinical income 109,099 116,354 

Income from other sources (e.g. local authorities) 3,484 - 

Private patient income 856 654 

Other clinical income 2,092 2,704 

Total income from activities 335,060 327,403 

3 Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2017/18 2016/17

Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000 

NHS England 30,083 - 

Clinical commissioning groups 298,546 320,064 

Department of Health and Social Care - - 

Other NHS providers - 147 

NHS other - 110 

Local authorities 3,484 3,724 

Non-NHS: private patients 855 654 

Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 158 326 

NHS injury scheme 1,617 2,378 

Non NHS: other 317 - 

Total income from activities 335,060 327,403 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 335,060 327,403 

Related to discontinued operations - - 

The Income from CCGs for activity covered by 'Payment by Results' is charged at national tariff, subject to a market forces 

factor adjustment. 

Injury costs recovery income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 22.84% (2016/17 22.94%) to reflect expected rates 

of collection.
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Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Income recognised this year 158 326 

Cash payments received in-year - - 

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables - - 

Amounts written off in-year - - 

Note 4 Other operating income (Group) 

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Research and development 1,269 852 

Education and training 10,902 10,135 

Receipt of capital grants and donations 257 2,543 

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure - 96 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 16,626 14,083 

Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers - - 

Sustainability and transformation fund income 16,302 22,324 

Rental revenue from operating leases 683 453 

Rental revenue from finance leases - - 

Income in respect of staff costs where accounted on gross basis - 33 

Charitable fund incoming resources 629 819 

Other income 5,283 8,805 

Total other operating income 51,952 60,144 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 51,952 59,263 

Related to discontinued operations - - 

Note 4.1 Income from activities arising from commissioner requested services

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Income from services designated as commissioner requested services 335,061 327,403 

Income from services not designated as commissioner requested services - - 

Total 335,061 327,403 

Note 4.2 Profits and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

There were no profits on disposal of property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31st March 2018.

Under the terms of its provider licence, the trust is required to analyse the level of income from activities that has arisen from 

commissioner requested and non-commissioner requested services. Commissioner requested services are defined in the 

provider licence and are services that commissioners believe would need to be protected in the event of provider failure. This 

information is provided in the table below:
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Note 5 Fees and charges (Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Income - - 

Full cost - - 

Surplus / (deficit) - - 

Note 6.1 Operating expenses (Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 5,874 9,445 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 9,399 9,014 

Purchase of social care - - 

Staff and executive directors costs 256,848 250,652 

Remuneration of non-executive directors 133 124 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 25,804 27,248 

Supplies and services - general 6,434 5,037 

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 37,244 37,823 

Consultancy costs 1,566 1,663 

Establishment 2,707 1,764 

Premises 14,281 13,378 

Transport (including patient travel) 502 533 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8,039 8,087 

Amortisation on intangible assets 787 740 

Net impairments - 786 

Increase in provision for impairment of receivables 365 930 

Increase in other provisions (0) 853 

Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 92 81 

other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) 16 10 

Internal audit costs 92 137 

Clinical negligence 18,094 16,080 

Legal fees 424 391 

Insurance 284 334 

Research and development 311 - 

Education and training 2,791 518 

Rentals under operating leases 736 611 

Redundancy 13 505 

Car parking & security 468 473 

Losses, ex gratia & special payments 4 82 

Other NHS charitable fund resources expended 1,056 2,748 

Other 139 59 

Total 394,503 390,106 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 394,503 390,093 

Related to discontinued operations - - 
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Note 6.2 Other auditor remuneration (Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:

1. Audit of accounts of any associate of the trust - 75 

2. Audit-related assurance services 16 16 

3. Taxation compliance services - - 

4. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above - - 

5. Internal audit services - - 

6. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5 - - 

7. Corporate finance transaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above - - 

8. Other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above - - 

Total 16 91 

Note 6.3 Limitation on auditor's liability (Group)

Note 7 Impairment of assets (Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:

Loss or damage from normal operations - 786 

Over specification of assets - - 

Abandonment of assets in course of construction - - 

Unforeseen obsolescence - - 

Loss as a result of catastrophe - - 

Changes in market price - - 

Impairments of charitable fund assets - - 

Other - - 

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit - 786 

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve - - 

Total net impairments - 786 

The limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work is £0m (2016/17: £2m).

The impairment in 2016/17 arose due to a revaluation exercise on certain buildings under the modern equivalent asset 

basis. 
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Note 8 Employee benefits (Group)

2017/18 2016/17

Total Total

£000 £000 

Salaries and wages 197,564 199,660 

Social security costs 22,406 16,744 

Apprenticeship levy 967 - 

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions 22,401 21,986 

Pension cost - other 18 23 

Other post employment benefits - - 

Other employment benefits - - 

Termination benefits - - 

Temporary staff (including agency) 15,819 12,281 

NHS charitable funds staff - - 

Total gross staff costs 259,175 250,694 

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff - - 

Total staff costs 259,175 250,694 

Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets - - 

Note 8.1 Retirements due to ill-health (Group)

During 2017/18 there were no early retirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (6 in the year ended 31 

March 2017).  The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is 0k (£409k in 2016/17).  

The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.

There are no director long term incentive schemes, other pension benefits, guarantees or advances.
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Note 9 Pension costs

Due to a change in the law, all employers are required to automatically enrol certain workers in a pension scheme. If employees 

meet the scheme's eligibility criteria they will be enrolled in the NHS Pension Scheme. If an employee can not be enrolled in the 

NHS Pension Scheme for whatever reason, they are automatically enrolled in an alternative qualifying pension scheme. For 

Doncaster and Bassetlaw FT employees this scheme is the National Employees' Saving Trust (NEST).

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into 

account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 

2012. The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with 

the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and employee and employer 

representatives as deemed appropriate. 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits payable 

and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  Both are unfunded 

defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 

Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify 

their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined 

contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to 

that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would 

be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal 

valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) 

as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with 

updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for 

financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2018, is based on valuation data as 31 March 

2017, updated to 31 March 2018 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, 

the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have 

also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the 

annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published 

annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
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Note 10 Operating leases (Group)

Note 10.1 Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

As a lessor

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Operating lease revenue

Minimum lease receipts 683 453 

Contingent rent - - 

Other - - 

Total 683 453 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000 £000 

Future minimum lease receipts due: 

- not later than one year; 346 453 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 417 795 

- later than five years. - - 

Total 763 1,248 

Note 10.2 Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

As a lessee

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Operating lease expense

Minimum lease payments 736 611 

Contingent rents - - 

Less sublease payments received - - 

Total 736 611 

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000 £000 

Future minimum lease payments due: 

- not later than one year; 550 424 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,063 948 

- later than five years. - 39 

Total 1,613 1,411 

Future minimum sublease payments to be received - - 

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust is the lessor.

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is the lessee.

The Foundation Trust has a number of leasing arrangements for the use of land and buildings, mainly with other NHS 

organisations. The only significant leasing arrangement not with another NHS organisation is with Parkhill Hospital at Doncaster 

Royal Infirmary. The lease between the Foundation Trust ( lessor) and Parkhill Hospital (lessee) has currently expired as at 31st 

March 2018.

The Foundation Trust has a number of leasing arrangements with other NHS bodies in respect of the use of their buildings. The 

minimum lease payments were £187k (2016/17 £374k). This arrangement ceased in September 2017.

In addition to this the Foundation Trust also has leasing arrangements in respect of medical service contracts. The minimum lease 

payments were £549k (2016/17 £237k).
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Note 11 Finance income (Group)

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Interest on bank accounts 49 38 

Interest on impaired financial assets - - 

Interest income on finance leases - - 

Interest on other investments / financial assets - - 

NHS charitable fund investment income - 287 

Other finance income - - 

Total 49 325 

Note 12.1 Finance expenditure (Group)

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money.

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Interest expense:

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 1,358 1,760 

Other loans - - 

Overdrafts - - 

Finance leases - - 

Interest on late payment of commercial debt - 2 

Main finance costs on PFI and LIFT schemes obligations - - 

Contingent finance costs on PFI and  LIFT scheme obligations - - 

Total interest expense 1,358 1,762 

Unwinding of discount on provisions - - 

Other finance costs - - 

Total finance costs 1,358 1,762 

Note 12.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public 

Contract Regulations 2015

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Total liability accruing in year under this legislation as a result of late payments - 

Amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made under this 

legislation - 2 

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation - - 

Note 13 Other gains / (losses) (Group)

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 

Gains on disposal of assets - - 

Losses on disposal of assets (11) (13)

Gains / losses on disposal of charitable fund assets - 882 

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets (11) 869 

Gains / (losses) on foreign exchange - - 

Fair value gains / (losses) on investment properties - - 

Fair value gains / (losses) on financial assets / investments - - 

Fair value gains/(losses) on charitable fund investments & investment properties - - 

Fair value gains / (losses) on financial liabilities - - 

Recycling gains / (losses) on disposal of available-for-sale financial investments - - 

Total other gains / (losses) (11) 869 
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Note 14 Trust income statement and statement of comprehensive income

Note 15 Discontinued operations (Group)

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the trust is exempt from the requirement to present its own 

income statement and statement of comprehensive income. The trust’s defict for the period was £11.253 million 

(2016/17: £6.462 million).  The trust's total comprehensive expense for  the period was £7.064 million (2016/17: £2.661 

million). 

The Trust does not have any operations that are classified as discontinued in the year ended 31st March 

2018

Page 31



Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

For the year ended 31st March 2018

Note 16.1 Intangible assets - 2017/18

Group

Software  

licences

Intangible 

assets under 

construction

Other 

(purchased) Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 12,376 (0) 27 12,403 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Additions 1,125 1 - 1,125 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2018 13,501 0 27 13,528 

Amortisation at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 5,949 - - 5,949 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Provided during the year 787 - - 787 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Amortisation at 31 March 2018 6,736 - - 6,736 

Net book value at 31 March 2018 6,765 0 27 6,792 

Net book value at 1 April 2017 6,427 (0) 27 6,454 

Note 16.2 Intangible assets - 2016/17
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Group

Software  

licences

Intangible 

assets under 

construction

Other 

(purchased) Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - as previously stated 7,795 324 27 8,146 

Prior period adjustments - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - restated 7,795 324 27 8,146 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Additions 731 - - 731 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications 3,850 (324) - 3,526 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2017 12,376 (0) 27 12,403 

Amortisation at 1 April 2016 - as previously stated 5,209 - - 5,209 

Prior period adjustments - - - - 

Amortisation at 1 April 2016 - restated 5,209 - - 5,209 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Provided during the year 740 - - 740 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Amortisation at 31 March 2017 5,949 - - 5,949 

Net book value at 31 March 2017 6,427 (0) 27 6,454 

Net book value at 1 April 2016 2,586 324 27 2,937 
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Trust

Software  

licences

Intangible 

assets under 

construction

Other 

(purchased) Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 12,376 (0) 27 12,403 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Additions 1,125 1 - 1,125 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2018 13,501 0 27 13,528 

Amortisation at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 5,949 - - 5,949 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Provided during the year 787 - - 787 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Amortisation at 31 March 2018 6,736 - - 6,736 

Net book value at 31 March 2018 6,765 0 27 6,792 

Net book value at 1 April 2017 6,427 (0) 27 6,454 
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Note 17.2 Intangible assets - 2016/17

Trust

Software  

licences

Intangible 

assets under 

construction

Other 

(purchased) Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - as previously 

stated 7,795 324 27 8,146 

Prior period adjustments - 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - restated 7,795 324 27 8,146 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Additions 731 - - 731 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications 3,850 (324) - 3,526 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2017 12,376 (0) 27 12,403 

Amortisation at 1 April 2016 - as previously stated 5,209 - - 5,209 

Prior period adjustments - 

Amortisation at 1 April 2016 - restated 5,209 - - 5,209 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Provided during the year 740 - - 740 

Impairments - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - 

Amortisation at 31 March 2017 5,949 - - 5,949 

Net book value at 31 March 2017 6,427 (0) 27 6,454 

Net book value at 1 April 2016 2,586 324 27 2,937 
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Note 18.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2017/18

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2017 - brought 

forward 8,035 178,919 3,490 - 51,325 410 22,700 6,449 271,328 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Additions - 3,895 - - 1,530 - 921 66 6,411 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations 390 (10,420) 89 - - - - - (9,941)

Reclassifications - - - - - 5 - (5) - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - (89) - - - - - (89)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2018 8,425 172,394 3,490 - 52,855 415 23,621 6,510 267,709 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2017 - brought 

forward - 20,312 91 - 39,561 332 17,476 4,635 82,407 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year - 3,120 90 - 2,724 - 1,541 564 8,039 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - (23,432) - - - - - - (23,432)

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2018 - - 181 - 42,285 332 19,017 5,199 67,015 

Net book value at 31 March 2018 8,425 172,394 3,309 - 10,570 83 4,604 1,311 200,695 

Net book value at 1 April 2017 8,035 158,607 3,399 - 11,764 78 5,224 1,814 188,921 
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Note 18.2 Property, plant and equipment - 2016/17

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - as previously 

stated 8,035 167,332 4,167 6,499 48,502 410 21,824 5,497 262,266 

Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - restated 8,035 167,332 4,167 6,499 48,502 410 21,824 5,497 262,266 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Additions - 4,693 - - 2,893 - 876 952 9,414 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations 39 3,920 - - - - - - 3,959 

Reclassifications - 2,974 - (6,499) - - - - (3,525)

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition (39) - (677) - (70) - - - (786)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2017 8,035 178,919 3,490 - 51,325 410 22,700 6,449 271,328 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2016 - as 

previously stated - 16,615 - - 36,750 327 15,876 4,046 73,614 

Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2016 - restated - 16,615 - - 36,750 327 15,876 4,046 73,614 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year - 2,911 102 - 2,880 5 1,600 589 8,087 

Impairments - 2,248 - - - - - - 2,248 

Reversals of impairments - (1,462) - - - - - - (1,462)

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals/ derecognition - - (11) - (69) - - - (80)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2017 - 20,312 91 - 39,561 332 17,476 4,635 82,407 

Net book value at 31 March 2017 8,035 158,607 3,399 - 11,764 78 5,224 1,814 188,921 

Net book value at 1 April 2016 8,035 150,717 4,167 6,499 11,752 83 5,948 1,451 188,652 

There are no differences between the PPE (group) note and the PPE (Trust only) note for disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the Accounts

Note 18.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2017/18

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2018

Owned - purchased 8,425 165,391 3,309 - 9,548 83 4,558 1,238 192,551 

Finance leased - - - - - - - - - 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service concession 

arrangements - - - - - - - - - 

PFI residual interests - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - government granted - 1,282 - - 96 - - - 1,378 

Owned - donated - 5,721 - - 926 - 46 73 6,766 

NBV total at 31 March 2018 8,425 172,394 3,309 - 10,570 83 4,604 1,311 200,695 

Note 18.4 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2016/17

Group Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2017

Owned - purchased 8,035 151,595 3,399 - 10,644 78 5,153 1,741 180,645 

Finance leased - - - - - - - - - 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service concession 

arrangements - - - - - - - - - 

PFI residual interests - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - government granted - 1,282 - - 141 - 8 - 1,431 

Owned - donated - 5,730 - - 979 - 63 73 6,845 

NBV total at 31 March 2017 8,035 158,607 3,399 - 11,764 78 5,224 1,814 188,921 
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Note 19.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2017/18

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2017 - brought 

forward 8,035 178,919 3,490 - 51,325 410 22,700 6,449 271,328 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Additions - 3,895 - - 1,530 - 921 66 6,411 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations 390 (10,420) 89 - - - - - (9,941)

Reclassifications - - - - - 5 - (5) - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - (89) - - - - - (89)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2018 8,425 172,394 3,490 - 52,855 415 23,621 6,510 267,709 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2017 - brought 

forward - 20,312 91 - 39,561 332 17,476 4,635 82,407 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year - 3,120 90 - 2,724 - 1,541 564 8,039 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - (23,432) - - - - - - (23,432)

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2018 - - 181 - 42,285 332 19,017 5,199 67,015 

Net book value at 31 March 2018 8,425 172,394 3,309 - 10,570 83 4,604 1,311 200,695 

Net book value at 1 April 2017 8,035 158,607 3,399 - 11,764 78 5,224 1,814 188,921 

Note 19.2 Property, plant and equipment - 2016/17
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Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - as previously 

stated 8,035 167,332 4,167 6,499 48,502 410 21,824 5,497 262,266 

Prior period adjustments - 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - restated 8,035 167,332 4,167 6,499 48,502 410 21,824 5,497 262,266 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Additions - 4,693 - - 2,893 - 876 952 9,414 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations 39 3,920 - - - - - - 3,959 

Reclassifications - 2,974 - (6,499) - - - - (3,525)

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition (39) - (677) - (70) - - - (786)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2017 8,035 178,919 3,490 - 51,325 410 22,700 6,449 271,328 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2016 - as 

previously stated - 16,615 - - 36,750 327 15,876 4,046 73,614 

Prior period adjustments - 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2016 - restated - 16,615 - - 36,750 327 15,876 4,046 73,614 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year - 2,911 102 - 2,880 5 1,600 589 8,087 

Impairments - 2,248 - - - - - - 2,248 

Reversals of impairments - (1,462) - - - - - - (1,462)

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to/ from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals/ derecognition - - (11) - (69) - - - (80)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2017 - 20,312 91 - 39,561 332 17,476 4,635 82,407 

Net book value at 31 March 2017 8,035 158,607 3,399 - 11,764 78 5,224 1,814 188,921 

Net book value at 1 April 2016 8,035 150,717 4,167 6,499 11,752 83 5,948 1,451 188,652 
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Note 19.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2017/18

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2018

Owned - purchased 8,425 165,391 3,309 - 9,548 83 4,558 1,238 192,551 

Finance leased - - - - - - - - - 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service concession 

arrangements - - - - - - - - - 

PFI residual interests - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - government granted - 1,282 - - 96 - - - 1,378 

Owned - donated - 5,721 - - 926 - 46 73 6,766 

NBV total at 31 March 2018 8,425 172,394 3,309 - 10,570 83 4,604 1,311 200,695 

Note 19.4 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2016/17

Trust Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2017

Owned - purchased 8,035 151,595 3,399 - 10,644 78 5,153 1,741 180,645 

Finance leased - - - - - - - - - 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service concession 

arrangements - - - - - - - - - 

PFI residual interests - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - government granted - 1,282 - - 141 - 8 - 1,431 

Owned - donated - 5,730 - - 979 - 63 73 6,845 

NBV total at 31 March 2017 8,035 158,607 3,399 - 11,764 78 5,224 1,814 188,921 
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# Note 20 Donations of property, plant and equipment

# Note 21 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

# Note 22.1 Investment Property

This valuation was carried out by Cushman and Wakefield; an independent arms length firm of Chartered Surveyors and 

Valuers

The valuation assumption for this class of assets is on the basis of replacement by an modern equivalent.

The assets are valued on a replacement/ rebuild basis at current construction costs - as determined by the BCIS (Building 

Cost Information Service) Index

For the class of Non Current Assets PPE (Property, Plant and Equipment) - Land, Buildings and Dwellings: the most recent 

valuation was as at 31st March 2018.

The Foundation Trust does not hold any Land, Buildings or Dwellings on an Investment only basis.

There are no changes to accounting estimates ( i.e. asset residual value, useful economic lives, valuation methodology or 

depreciation methods) related to the valuation of property, plant or equipment; 

The Trust received donations of equipment within the financial year totalling £257k. This consisted of items to be used for 

Clinical Diagnosis; including an Endoscopic Ultrasound Processor and Bronchial Ultrasound Scopes.

There are no restrictions or conditions of use placed upon these donated assets.
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# Note 23 Investments in associates and joint ventures

The trust does not hold any Investments in associates or joint ventures.

# Note 24 Other investments / financial assets (non-current)

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April - brought forward 8,016 9,732 - 

Prior period adjustments - - - 

Carrying value at 1 April - restated 8,016 9,732 - - 

At start of period for new FTs - - 

Transfers by absorption - - - - 

Acquisitions in year 681 1,297 - - 

Movement in fair value - 259 - - 

Net impairments - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale and assets in 

disposal groups - - - - 

Amortisation at the effective interest rate (assets held at 

amortised cost only where applicable) - - - - Current portion of loans receivable transferred to current 

financial assets - - - - 

Disposals (672) (3,272) - - 

Transfer to FT upon authorisation - - 

Carrying value at 31 March 8,025 8,016 - - 

# Note 24.1 Other investments / financial assets (current)

The Foundation Trust does not hold either other investments or financial assets (current).

Group Trust

The Foundation Trust holds an 100% controlling Investment within the Foundation Trust's Charitable Funds. The financial 

position and financial performance of the Charitable Fund are consolidated within these Group Accounts.
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# Note 25 Disclosure of interests in other entities

# Note 26 Analysis of charitable fund reserves

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 

Unrestricted funds:

Unrestricted income funds 2,906 3,078 

Revaluation reserve - - 

Other reserves - - 

Restricted funds:

Endowment funds - - 

Other restricted income funds 5,903 6,158 

8,809 9,236 

# Note 27 Inventories

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Drugs 2,211 2,265 2,211 2,265 

Work In progress - - - - 

Consumables 3,250 2,254 3,250 2,254 

Energy 19 19 19 19 

Other 46 46 46 46 

Charitable fund inventory - - - - 

Total inventories 5,526 4,584 5,526 4,584 

of which:

Held at fair value less costs to sell - - 

The Trust does not hold any interests in unconsolidated subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates or unconsolidated structured 

entities.

The Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

Charitable Fund (registered charity number 1057917). The object is for funds to be used “for any purpose or purposes relating 

to the National Health Service wholly or mainly for the service provided by Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS Foundation 

Trust”.

Unrestricted income funds are accumulated income funds that are expendable at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance of 

the charity's objects.  Unrestricted funds may be earmarked or designated for specific future purposes which reduces the 

amount that is readily available to the charity.

Restricted funds may be accumulated income funds which are expendable at the trustee's discretion only in furtherance of the 

specified conditions of the donor and the objects of the charity.  They may also be capital funds (e.g. endowments) where the 

assets are required to be invested, or retained for use rather than expended.

Group Trust

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £25,789k (2016/17: £38,324k).  Write-down of inventories recognised as 

expenses for the year were £0k (2016/17: £0k).
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# Note 28.1 Trade receivables and other receivables

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current

Trade receivables 13,833 5,717 13,833 5,717 

Capital receivables (including accrued capital related income) - - - - 

Accrued income 15,692 16,744 15,692 16,744 

Provision for impaired receivables (642) (1,040) (642) (1,040)

Deposits and advances - - - - 

Prepayments (non-PFI) 2,114 1,310 2,114 1,310 

PFI prepayments - capital contributions - - - - 

PFI lifecycle prepayments - - - - 

Interest receivable - - - - 

Finance lease receivables - - - - 

PDC dividend receivable - - - - 

VAT receivable 902 765 902 765 

Corporation and other taxes receivable - - - - 

Other receivables - 3,135 - 3,135 

NHS charitable funds: trade and other receivables 476 94 

Total current trade and other receivables 32,376 26,725 31,899 26,631 

Non-current

Trade receivables 3,219 2,368 3,219 2,368 

Capital receivables (including accrued capital related income) - - - - 

Accrued income - - - - 

Provision for impaired receivables (1,598) (835) (1,598) (835)

Deposits and advances - - - - 

Prepayments (non-PFI) - - - - 

PFI prepayments - capital contributions - - - - 

PFI lifecycle prepayments - - - - 

Interest receivable - - - - 

Finance lease receivables - - - - 

VAT receivable - - - - 

Corporation and other taxes receivable - - - - 

Other receivables - - - - 

NHS charitable funds: trade and other receivables - - - - 
Total non-current trade and other receivables 1,621 1,533 1,621 1,533 

Of which receivables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 22,079 21,032 22,079 21,032 

Non-current - - - - 

Group Trust
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# Note 28.2 Provision for impairment of receivables

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April as previously stated 1,875 1,206 1,875 1,206 

Prior period adjustments - 

At 1 April - restated 1,875 1,206 1,875 1,206 

Transfers by absorption - - 

Increase in provision 365 930 365 930 

Amounts utilised - (261) - (261)

Unused amounts reversed - - 

At 31 March 2,240 1,875 2,240 1,875 

# Note 28.3 Credit quality of financial assets

Group

Trade and 

other  

receivables

Investments 

& Other 

financial 

assets

Trade and 

other  

receivables

Investments 

& Other 

financial 

assets

Ageing of impaired financial assets £000 £000 £000 £000 

0 - 30 days 888 - 737 - 

30-60 Days 118 - 311 - 

60-90 days 24 - 547 - 

90- 180 days 124 - 541 - 

Over 180 days 1,683 - 1,356 - 

Total 2,836 - 3,492 - 

Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their due date

0 - 30 days 21,337 - 713 - 

30-60 Days 650 - 302 - 

60-90 days 579 - 823 - 

90- 180 days 1,420 - 538 - 

Over 180 days - - 855 - 

Total 23,987 - 3,231 - 

Trust

Trade and 

other  

receivables

Investments 

& Other 

financial 

assets

Trade and 

other  

receivables

Investments 

& Other 

financial 

assets

Ageing of impaired financial assets £000 £000 £000 £000 

0 - 30 days 888 - 737 - 

30-60 Days 118 - 311 - 

60-90 days 24 - 547 - 

90- 180 days 124 - 541 - 

Over 180 days 1,683 - 1,356 - 

Total 2,836 - 3,492 - 

Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their due date

0 - 30 days 21,337 - 713 - 

30-60 Days 650 - 302 - 

60-90 days 579 - 823 - 

90- 180 days 1,420 - 538 - 

Over 180 days - - 855 - 

Total 23,987 - 3,231 - 

Group Trust

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
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28 Note 28.4 Credit quality of financial assets

A provision is made against trade receivables based on the number of days by which the invoice is overdue.

29 Note 29 Other assets

30 Note 30.1 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 £000 £000 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal 

groups at 1 April - 300 

Prior period adjustment - 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal 

groups at 1 April - restated - 300 

Transfers by absorption - - 

Assets classified as available for sale in the year - - 

Assets sold in year - (300)

Impairment of assets held for sale - - 

Reversal of impairment of assets held for sale - - 

Assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons 

other than disposal by sale - - 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal 

groups at 31 March - - 

TrustGroup

At 31 March 2016 Barrowby House was held for sale, with a sale being completed in the 2016/17 financial year.

The Trust does not have any receivables classified as other assets.
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# Note 30.2 Liabilities in disposal groups

# Note 31.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements

2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 3,187 2,967 2,396 2,169 

Prior period adjustments - 

At 1 April (restated) 3,187 2,967 2,396 2,169 

Transfers by absorption - - 

Net change in year 9,589 220 9,470 227 

At 31 March 12,776 3,187 11,866 2,396 

Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 1,281 898 371 107 

Cash with the Government Banking Service 11,495 2,289 11,495 2,289 

Deposits with the National Loan Fund - - - - 

Other current investments - - - - 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 12,776 3,187 11,866 2,396 

Bank overdrafts (GBS and commercial banks) - - - - 

Drawdown in committed facility - - - - 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 12,776 3,187 11,866 2,396 

# Note 31.2 Third party assets held by the trust

The Foundation Trust does not currently hold any monies on behalf of patients or other parties

Group Trust

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible 

investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

The Trust does not have any liabilities in disposal groups.
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# Note 32.1 Trade and other payables

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Trade payables 10,418 11,532 10,419 11,895 

Capital payables 1,495 1,026 1,495 1,026 

Accruals 19,619 11,688 19,619 11,688 

Receipts in advance (including payments on account) - 1 - 1 

Social security costs 5,125 5 5,125 5 

VAT payables - - - - 

Other taxes payable - - - - 

PDC dividend payable 146 52 146 52 

Accrued interest on loans 257 205 257 205 

Other payables 4,880 2,753 4,880 2,753 

NHS charitable funds: trade and other payables 602 28 

Total current trade and other payables 42,542 27,290 41,941 27,625 

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 6,362 5,018 6362 5018

Non-current - - - - 

# Note 32.2 Early retirements in NHS payables above

Group Trust
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# Note 33 Other financial liabilities

# Note 34 Other liabilities

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Deferred income 2,054 1,096 2,054 1,096 

Deferred grants - - - - 

Deferred PFI credits / income - - - - 

Lease incentives - - - - 

NHS charitable funds: other liabilities - - - - 

Total other current liabilities 2,054 1,096 2,054 1,096 

Non-current

Deferred income - - - - 

Deferred grants - - - - 

Deferred PFI credits / income - - - - 

Lease incentives - - - - 

NHS charitable funds: other liabilities - - - - 

Net pension scheme liability - - - - 

Total other non-current liabilities - - - - 

# Note 35 Borrowings

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Current 

Bank overdrafts - - - - 

Drawdown in committed facility - - - - 

Loans from DHSC 10,214 3,027 10,214 3,027 

Other loans - - - - 

Obligations under finance leases - - - - 

PFI lifecycle replacement received in advance - - - - 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession 

contracts (excl. lifecycle) - - - - 

NHS charitable funds: other current borrowings - - - - 

Total current borrowings 10,214 3,027 10,214 3,027 

Non-current

Loans from DHSC 79,157 77,143 79,157 77,143 

Other loans - - - - 

Obligations under finance leases - - - - 

PFI lifecycle replacement received in advance - - - - 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession 

contracts - - - - 

NHS charitable funds: other current borrowings - - - - 

Total non-current borrowings 79,157 77,143 79,157 77,143 

Group Trust

Group Trust

The Trust does not have any other financial liabilities.
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# Note 36 Finance leases

#

Note 36.1 Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust as a lessor

#

Note 36.2 Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust as a lessee

The Trust does not have any finance lease receivables as a lessee. Certain items of equipment and machinery are leased 

via operating leases which are disclosed within note 10.

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust - Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18

The Trust does not have any finance lease receivables as a lessor.
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# Note 37.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis (Group)

Group

Pensions - 

early 

departure 

costs

Legal 

claims

Re-

structuring

Continuing 

care

Equal Pay 

(including 

Agenda for 

Change) Redundancy Other

Charitable 

fund 

provisions Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2017 1,166 329 - - - 76 1,216 - 2,787 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Change in the discount rate - - - - - - - - - 

Arising during the year - - - - - - - - - 

Utilised during the year (425) (59) - - - 29 243 - (212)

Reclassified to liabilities held in disposal 

groups - - - - - - - - - 

Reversed unused - - - - - - - - - 

Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - - - 

Movement in charitable fund provisions - - - - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2018 741 270 - - - 105 1,459 - 2,575 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 108 270 - - - 105 144 - 627 

- later than one year and not later than five 

years; 132 - - - - - 509 - 641 

- later than five years. 501 0 - - - 0 806 - 1,307 

Total 741 270 - - - 105 1,459 - 2,575 

[For each class of provision, the group should 

disclose:

Liabilities have been valued at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the Statement of Financial Position date, based on market data.
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# Note 37.2 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis (Trust)

Trust

Pensions - 

early 

departure 

costs

Legal 

claims

Re-

structuring

Continuing 

care

Equal Pay 

(including 

Agenda for 

Change) Redundancy Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2017 1,166 329 - - - 76 1,216 2,787 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - 

Change in the discount rate - - - - - - - - 

Arising during the year - - - - - - - - 

Utilised during the year (425) (59) - - - 29 243 (212)

Reclassified to liabilities held in disposal 

groups - - - - - - - - 

Reversed unused - - - - - - - - 

Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2018 741 270 - - - 105 1,459 2,575 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 108 270 - - - 105 144 627 

- later than one year and not later than five 

years; 132 - - - - - 509 641 

- later than five years. 501 0 - - - 0 806 1,307 

Total 741 270 - - - 105 1,459 2,575 
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# Note 37.3 Clinical negligence liabilities

# Note 38 Contingent assets and liabilities

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Value of contingent liabilities 

NHS Resolution legal claims - 191 - 191 

Employment tribunal and other employee related litigation - - - - 

Redundancy - - - - 

Other - - - - 

Gross value of contingent liabilities - 191 - 191 

Amounts recoverable against liabilities - - 

Net value of contingent liabilities - 191 - 191 

Net value of contingent assets - - 

# Note 39 Contractual capital commitments

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Property, plant and equipment 823 668 823 668 

Intangible assets 140 30 140 30 

Total 963 698 963 698 

At 31 March 2018, £173,200k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of 

Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (31 March 2017: £162,500k).

Group Trust

Group Trust
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Note 40 Defined benefit pension schemes

The Trust does not operate any material defined pension schemes other than the statutory NHS Pension Scheme.
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# Note 41 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements

# Note 42 Off-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concession arrangements

The Trust has no obligations to account for in respect of PFI or LIFT schemes on-Statement of Financial Position.

The Trust has no obligations to account for in respect of PFI or LIFT schemes off-Statement of Financial Position.
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Note 43 Financial instruments

Note 43.1 Financial risk management

Currency Risk

Interest rate risk

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

The majority of the Trust's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies and therefore has low exposure to 

credit risk. The maximum exposure as at 31 March 2018 are the Receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and 

other receivables note.

The Trust's operating costs are incurred under contracts with Commissioners, which are financed from resources voted 

annually by Parliament. The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within it's prudential borrowing limit. The 

Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in 

creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider 

relationship that the NHS Trust has with commissioners and the way those commissioners are financed, the NHS Trust is 

not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments paly a more limited role in 

creating or changing the risk than would be typical listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. 

Financial assets and liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks 

facing the NHS Trust in undertaking its activities.

The Trust's treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within the parameters defined 

formally within the Trust's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors. Trust treasury activity 

is subject to review by the Trust's Internal auditors.

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the uk 

and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. Therefore, the Trust has low exposure to currency rate 

fluctuations.

The Trust borrows from the government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by the Trust's 

regulators. The borrowings are in line with the life of the associated assets. Interest is charged at the National Loans Fund 

rate; fixed for the life of the loan. Therefore, the trust has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
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Note 43.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Group

Loans and 

receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Embedded derivatives - - - - - 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 28,883 - - - 28,883 

Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 11,866 - - - 11,866 

Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial assets 9,048 - - - 9,048 

Total at 31 March 2018 49,797 - - - 49,797 

Group

Loans and 

receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017

Embedded derivatives - - - - - 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 22,794 - - - 22,794 

Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 3,241 - - - 3,241 

Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial assets 7,962 - - - 7,962 

Total at 31 March 2017 33,997 - - - 33,997 

Trust

Loans and 

receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Embedded derivatives - - - - - 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 28,883 - - - 28,883 

Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 11,866 - - - 11,866 

Total at 31 March 2018 40,749 - - - 40,749 

Total book 

value

Total book 

value

Total book 

value

Held to 

maturity

£000 

Available-for-

sale

Available-for-

sale

£000 

Held to 

maturity

Available-for-

sale

Held to 

maturity

Assets at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Assets at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Assets at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E
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Note 43.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Trust

Loans and 

receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017

Embedded derivatives - - - - - 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 22,766 - - - 22,766 

Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,396 - - - 2,396 

Total at 31 March 2017 25,162 - - - 25,162 

Note 43.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Group

£000 £000 £000 

- - - 

89,371 - 89,371 

- - - 

- - - 

31,529 - 31,529 

- - - 

- - - 

Consolidated NHS charitable fund financial liabilities 601 - 601 

121,501 - 121,501 

Group

£000 £000 £000 

- - - 

80,170 - 80,170 

- - - 

- - - 

27,560 - 27,560 

1,096 - 1,096 

- - - 

Consolidated NHS charitable fund financial liabilities - - - 

108,826 - 108,826 

Total book 

value

Total book 

value

Provisions under contract

Liabilities at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Liabilities at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Total book 

value

Total at 31 March 2017

Embedded derivatives

Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities

Obligations under finance leases

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Held to 

maturity

Available-for-

sale

Other financial liabilities

Assets at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Embedded derivatives

Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 

Provisions under contract

Total at 31 March 2018

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 
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Note 43.2 Carrying values of financial assets
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Note 43.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Trust

£000 £000 £000 

- - - 

89,371 - 89,371 

- - - 

- - - 

31,529 - 31,529 

- - - 

- - - 

120,900 - 120,900 

Trust

£000 £000 £000 

80,170 - 80,170 

- - - 

- - - 

27,261 - 27,261 

1,096 - 1,096 

- - - 

- - - 

108,527 - 108,527 

Note 43.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Note 43.5 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 

55,087 31,683 54,485 31,384 

22,957 11,497 22,957 11,497 

43,457 54,311 43,457 54,311 

- 11,335 - 11,335 

121,501 108,826 120,899 108,527 

Group Trust

Total book 

value

Total book 

value

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017

Embedded derivatives

Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities

Total at 31 March 2018

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Liabilities at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

In more than five years

In one year or less

In more than one year but not more than two years

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Embedded derivatives

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities

Provisions under contract

Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities

In more than two years but not more than five years

Total

The book value (carrying value) of receivables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of the asset.

The book value (carrying value) of payables is a reasonable approximation of the fair value of the asset.

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Liabilities at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Other financial liabilities

Provisions under contract

Total at 31 March 2017

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 
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# Note 44 Losses and special payments

Group and trust

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Number £000 Number £000 

Losses

Cash losses - - - - 

Fruitless payments - - - - 

Bad debts and claims abandoned - - 194 126 

Stores losses and damage to property - - - - 

Total losses - - 194 126 

Special payments

Compensation under court order or legally binding arbitration 

award 37 206 44 159 

Extra-contractual payments - - - - 

Ex-gratia payments 15 47 21 6 

Special severance payments - - - - 

Extra-statutory and extra-regulatory payments - - - - 

Total special payments 52 253 65 165 

Total losses and special payments 52 253 259 291 

Compensation payments received - - 

# Note 45 Gifts

Group and trust

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Number £000 Number £000 

Total gifts - - - - 

There were no gifts in excess of £300k.

2017/18 2016/17

There were no individual cases in excess of £300k.

2017/18 2016/17
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# Note 46 Related parties

The Material Balances with related parties are as follows:

Income Expenditure Receivables Payables

£000 £000 £000 £000

Department of Health Group 390,538 30,505 22,079 5,959

Other Government Bodies                     -  45,774 1,049 5,125

390,538 76,279 23,128 11,084

Income Expenditure Receivables Payables

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS Doncaster CCG 195,333                   -  4,007 3

NHS Bassetlaw CCG 64,013 38 1,220 41

NHS England 51,434                   -  9,413                   -  

HM Revenue & Customs                     -  22,406                    -  5,125

NHS Pension Scheme                     -  22,401                    -                    -  

NHS Resolution (formerly NHS Litigation Authority)                     -  18,385                    -                    -  

Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 10,908 7,255 4,125 3,162

Health Education England 11,078                   -  1,277                   -  

NHS Rotherham CCG 9,918                   -  46                   -  

NHS Barnsley CCG 5,839                   -                    -                    -  195

NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 3,462                   -  63                   -  

NHS Hardwick CCG 3,327                   -  1

Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 1,138 2,105 181 402

NHS Wakefield CCG 2,821                   -                    -                    -  67

NHS Newark and Sherwood CCG 2,801                   -                    -                    -  423

NHS East Riding of Yorkshire CCG 1,772                   -  34                   -  

Sheffield Children's NHS Foundation Trust 94 1,529 103 315

Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 1,538 51 75 25

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 1,301                   -  908 879

NHS Lincolnshire West CCG 1,015                   -  37                   -  

367,792 74,170 21,489 10,638

The Consolidated Accounts include Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals Foundation Trust - Charitable Funds Accounts. 

There are Trustees of the Charitable Fund that are also members of the Foundation Trust Board.

The Department of Health is regarded as the Trust's parent department. Other NHS and Government bodies are also regarded as a related party. During 

the year the Foundation Trust had transactions as follows:

Group and Foundation Trust

During the year the Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the following:

Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is a public benefit corporation which was established under the granting of 

Authority by the Independent Regulator for NHS Foundation Trusts, Monitor.

During the year none of the Governors, Board Members or Management Board Members or parties related to them; or entities controlled, jointly 

controlled or significantly influenced by them or a close family member has undertaken any material transactions with the Foundation Trust.

Other than the figures contained in the remuneration report no other payments were made to directors
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47 Note 47 Transfers by absorption

The Trust did not have any transfers by absorption during the accounting period.

48 Note 48 Prior period adjustments

The Trust does not have any prior period adjustments.

49 Note 49 Events after the reporting date

The Trust does not have any material adjusting events after the reporting date to disclose.

50 Note 50 Final period of operation as a trust providing NHS healthcare

This is not the Trust's final period of operation as a provider of NHS Healthcare,
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51 Note 51 NHS Charitable Fund

The Trust did not have any transfers by absorption during the accounting period.

51.1 Summary statement of financial activities Restated

2017/18 2016/17

Total Total

Funds Funds

£000 £000

Incoming resources 375 347

Resources expended (1,056) (2,399)

Net outgoing resources

(681) (2,052)

Investment Income 244 241

Transfers between funds - -

Gains on revaluation and disposal of investment assets 10 1,141

Net movement in funds (427) (670)

Fund balances B/F 9,235 9,905

Fund balances C/F 8,808 9,235

2017/18

31 March 

2017

Total Total

Funds Funds

£000 £000

Investment assets 8,025 8,016

Current assets 476 457

Cash 909 791

Current liabilities (602) (29)

Total net assets 8,808 9,235

Charitable funds 8,808 9,235

The Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

Charitable Fund (registered charity number 1057917). The object is for funds to be used “for any purpose or purposes 

relating to the National Health Service wholly or mainly for the service provided by Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust”.
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